
Lincoln County 

AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest 

Report of Review and Potential Alternatives 

 

March 21, 2023 

 

 

 

  



Lincoln County 
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest 

Report of Findings and Recommendations 
March 21, 2023 

 

1 
 

Introduction. Lincoln County Resolution 2022-06-20 (Appendix A) created the AD HOC 
Committee on Pine Crest pursuant to Lincoln County Ordinance 2.07(7). The scope and 
duties of the committee were set as follows: 
 

• Review the existing financial obligations concerning Pine Crest, and to review the 
prudence of any future contractual obligations concerning Pine Crest made by 
either signed contract or County Board resolution. 

• Review the original and current use of the Pine Crest building and grounds. 

• Review the Nursing Home Management Agreement and the Memorandum of 
Understanding (repair and maintenance of durable medical equipment and 
removal/rearrangement of furniture) between Lincoln County and North Central 
Health Care as such documents relate to the building and bed licenses. 

• Provide a report to the Lincoln County Board of Supervisors outlining the past and 
current successes, failures and status of the Pine Crest Nursing Home. 

• Provide recommendations to the Lincoln County Board of Supervisors for 
consideration, detailing areas of improvement for Lincoln County’s overall position 
concerning Pine Crest Nursing Home. 

 
Committee Composition. The Lincoln County Board appointed the following Supervisors 
to serve on the AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest at the June 21, 2022 County Board 
meeting: 
 

• Ken Wickham (Chair) 

• Marty Lemke 

• Bill Bialecki 

• Greg Hartwig 

• Angela Cummings 
 
Resolution 2022-06-20 assigned the following additional Lincoln County employees as ex 
officio (non-voting) members to participate on the Committee, as necessary: 
 

• Administrative Coordinator 

• Maintenance Director 

• Information Technology Director 

• Corporation Counsel 
 

Schedule. Resolution 2022-06-20 further resolved that the Committee conclude its 
business no later than the March 2023 County Board meeting. Accordingly, The AD HOC 
Committee on Pine Crest executed their assignment between July 2022 and March 2023. 
Minutes of the Committee’s meetings are included in Appendix B. 
 
Information Gathering Means and Methods. The Committee utilized a variety of 
techniques to gather information during the review. These are briefly captured below. 



Lincoln County 
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest 

Report of Findings and Recommendations 
March 21, 2023 

 

2 
 

Although all the information developed is not cited in this report, it was very beneficial to 
the Committee to gain an understanding of the history of Pine Crest and how the facility 
and needs for nursing home services have evolved over the past six decades as well as 
past and present Pine Crest operations, successes, and challenges. The committee: 
 

• Conducted personal interviews and discussions with the following individuals: 
➢ Dan Leydet, Lincoln County Finance Director (retired November 2022) 
➢ Samantha Fenske, Lincoln County Finance Director (effective December 2023) 
➢ Gary Olsen, North Central Health Care (NCHC) Managing Director of 

Finance/Administration (appointed as NCHC Executive Director in January 
2023) 

➢ Tim Meehan, Former Lincoln County Administrative Coordinator and Lincoln 
County Director of Pine Crest Nursing Home 

➢ Jarret Nickel, NCHC Managing Director of Nursing Home/Residential 
➢ Ryan Hanson, NCHC Director of Nursing Home Operations Pine Crest 
➢ Patrick Gierl, Lincoln County Maintenance Director 
➢ John Hanson, Lincoln County Maintenance leader for Pine Crest 

• Reviewed agreements, memoranda of understanding, audits, financial reports, and 
budget documents concerning Pine Crest Nursing Home. 

• Toured Pine Crest Nursing Home to gain an understanding of the facility layout, 
operations, maintenance, and material condition. 

• Listened to and considered public input and comments at Committee meetings. 
 

The Committee could not have completed its assignment without the exceptional 
contributions from our ex officio members, other Lincoln County government employees, 
NCHC leaders, Pine Crest employees, and Lincoln County residents who provided 
invaluable insight and information into present and past Pine Crest operations. We extend 
our appreciation and thanks for their objective and constructive advice and support. 
 
Conclusion. The findings and recommendations of the AD HOC Committee on Pine 
Crest are included in the following pages of this report. Appendices are included to 
elaborate on summary information, where appropriate.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Kenneth L. Wickham, Chair                                             Gregory D. Hartwig, Vice Chair 
 
 
 
 
William R. Bialecki                          Marty R. Lemke                        Angela M. Cummings 



Lincoln County 
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest 

Report of Findings and Recommendations 
March 21, 2023 

 

3 
 

Part 1 - Review 

 
Background 
 
Pine Crest Nursing Home has served Lincoln County for nearly 70 years. Initially 
constructed in 1954-1955, Pine Crest operated in the building currently utilized by Lincoln 
County Social Services. Pine Crest gradually transitioned to its current location and 
configuration through several phases of construction that occurred between 1975 and 
2017. 
 
Pine Crest is located at 2100 E. Sixth Street, Merrill, Wisconsin. The Nursing home sits 
on approximately 20 acres of land shared with the Lincoln County Government Services 
Center and the Lincoln County Department of Social Services building. 
 
The Pine Crest facility is a nursing home consisting of approximately 150,000 square feet 
of building space. The main building entrance leads to a central hub which branches out 
in three spokes. The spokes connect to six additional wings/halls. Pine Crest is physically 
connected to the Lincoln County Social Services building via an access-controlled 
corridor. The building has asphalt parking lots that accommodate 273 vehicles. A diagram 
of the current building is included as Appendix C. 
 
Wisconsin Statutes, Section 50.01(3) defines a nursing home as, “A place where 5 or 
more persons who are not related to the operator or administrator reside, receive care or 
treatment and, because of their mental or physical condition, require access to 24-hour 
nursing services, including limited nursing care, intermediate level nursing care and 
skilled nursing services.” The statute further states that, “Nursing home" does not include 
any of the following: 
 
(c) A convent or facility owned or operated exclusively by and for members of a religious 
order that provides reception and care or treatment of an individual. 
50.01(3)(d) 
 
(d) A hospice, as defined in s. 50.90 (1), that directly provides inpatient care. 
 
(e) A residential care apartment complex.” 
 
The Pine Crest facility is owned and maintained by Lincoln County. North Central Health 
Care (NCHC), an organization under joint ownership of Langlade, Lincoln, and Marathon 
Counties, operates Pine Crest Nursing Home. 
 
Pine Crest is currently licensed for 120 beds. The census as of January 2023 was 82 
residents. Nearly four of the eleven halls are currently not utilized for housing Pine Crest 
residents.  

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/50.01(3)(d)


Lincoln County 
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest 

Report of Findings and Recommendations 
March 21, 2023 

 

4 
 

 
Pine Crest Nursing Home received a 4 out of 5 overall rating from the Wisconsin 
Department of Health Services on February 10, 2022.  
 
There are two privately owned nursing homes in Lincoln County, both located near 
Tomahawk. Table 1 below, using information that was current as of January 2023, is 
provided for comparison purposes: 
 

Table 1 – Lincoln County Nursing Homes 

Organization # Bed 
Licenses 

 
Census 

Beds Vacant Rating 
(2022) 

Pine Crest 120 82 38 4 out of 5 

Riverview Health Services 61 45 16 4 out of 5 

Tomahawk Health Services 83 41 42 4 out of 5 

Total 264 168 96  

 
In 2022, Pine Crest provided service to approximately 165 residents between long and 
short term care. Of those 165 residents, 132 (80%) were from the 54452 zip code 
(Merrill), 21 (13%) were from other Lincoln County zip codes and 12 (7%) were from non-
Lincoln County zip codes. The population total of Lincoln County is 28,541. The 54452 zip 
code population comprises approximately 18,920 (66%) of Lincoln County’s population. 
 
Chronology of Original and Current Use 
 
The following is a summary of Pine Crest’s original facility and the transition over the last 
several decades to its current configuration and use: 
 

• 1954-1955 – Pine Crest Nursing Home established in a newly constructed facility 
that currently houses Lincoln County Social Services. 

• 1975 – Phase I, the current Pine Crest main building (presently the area used as 
the central hall and Dietary), was constructed in 1975 to expand the nursing home 
operations that were then provided from the building that Lincoln County Social 
Services now occupies. 
➢ 22,965 square feet plus basement 
➢ Unable to verify number of bed licenses 
➢ Nursing home was managed and operated by Lincoln County 

• 1992/93 – Phase II addition completed. It appears that nursing home operations 
were totally relocated at that time from the building that now houses Lincoln 
County Social Services. 
➢ 50,273 additional square feet 
➢ 73,238 total facility square feet plus basement 
➢ Unable to verify number of bed licenses 
➢ Nursing home managed and operated by Lincoln County 



Lincoln County 
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest 

Report of Findings and Recommendations 
March 21, 2023 

 

5 
 

• 2008 – Phase III addition completed 
➢ 3,400 additional square feet 
➢ 180 bed licenses 
➢ Nursing home managed and operated by Lincoln County 

• 2017 – Phase IV addition completed. 
➢ 30,902 additional square feet 
➢ Approximately 150,000 total facility square feet (including basement) 
➢ 180 bed licenses 
➢ Nursing home managed and operated by Lincoln County 

• 2019 
➢ Approximately 150,000 total facility square feet (including basement) 
➢ Pine Crest Board of Trustees authorized NCHC to serve as as interim 

management for Pine Crest Nursing Home per the Board of Trustees meeting 
minutes from May 13, 2019 (Appendix D) 

➢ Bed licenses reduced to 160 per minutes from the Pine Crest Board of Trustees 
meeting minutes from October 11, 2019 (Appendix E) 

• 2020 
➢ Approximately 150,000 total facility square feet (including basement) 
➢ Nursing home management and operations transferred to NCHC per Lincoln 

County Resolution 2019-08-38 (Appendix F) 
➢ Lincoln County retained ownership of and maintenance responsibility for 

building and grounds 
➢ 160 bed licenses 

• 2022 
➢ Approximately 150,000 total facility square feet 
➢ Nursing home management and operations continued to be the responsibility of 

NCHC 
➢ Bed licenses decreased to 120 per Lincoln County Resolution 2021-11-50 

(Appendix G) 
➢ 92 beds budgeted by NCHC for estimating revenues and expenditures 
➢ Average occupancy 90 

• 2023 
➢ Approximately 150,000 total facility square feet 
➢ Nursing home management and operations continued to be the responsibility of 

NCHC 
➢ 120 bed licenses 
➢ 89 beds budgeted by NCHC for estimating revenues and expenditures 
➢ Average occupancy 85 

 
  



Lincoln County 
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest 

Report of Findings and Recommendations 
March 21, 2023 

 

6 
 

Governing Agreements in Place between Lincoln County and NCHC 
 
Lincoln County and NCHC have entered into the following agreements pertaining to the 
management, operation, and maintenance of Pine Crest Nursing Home: 
 

• Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement Establishing a Multicounty 
Department of Community Programs between Langlade, Lincoln & Marathon 
Counties (Appendix H). The agreement establishes a Multicounty Department of 
Community Programs, which shall be known as North Central Community Services 
Program, for the purposes of administering a community mental health, alcoholism, 
and drug abuse services program pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes 51.42, 59.52(7), 
and 66.0301. 

• Nursing Home Management Agreement (Appendix I). This agreement establishes 
responsibilities, authorities, obligations, and expectations for operating and 
managing the Pine Crest facility. Items of significance include: 
➢ The County designates NCHC as administrator and manager of Lincoln 

County’s Pine Crest Nursing Home facility (paragraph 3). 
➢ The agreement does not transfer ownership of the facility (paragraph 3). 
➢ The County grants to NCHC the sole and exclusive authority to formulate and 

implement necessary policies, programs, and operations necessary with 
respect to the facilities (paragraph 3). 

➢ Paragraph 5 of the agreement mandates that NCHC provide the County with all 
necessary and appropriate services for the management of the facility so that 
the facility will be operated in a manner consistent with industry standards. 

➢ Paragraph 5 of the agreement designates the County Administrator as the 
County representative for consent or approval when the agreement requires 
NCHC to obtain the consent of approval of the County. 

➢ Paragraph 5 of the agreement stipulates that NCHC will provide the facility with 
the services set forth in Exhibit A to the Nursing Home Management 
Agreement. 

➢ Paragraph 9 of the agreement states: “Everything done by NCHC under 
Exhibit A, shall be done on behalf of the County and all related 
obligations incurred shall be at the ultimate expense of the County.” 

➢ Exhibit C to the Nursing Home Management Agreement contains a number of 
performance expectations that the County "shall have" of NCHC in their 
management of Pine Crest. Paragraph 5.a. provides, "Pine Crest's census will 
be managed with an appropriate payer mix to achieve financial viability given 
the County's annual tax levy appropriation." 

➢ NCHC through Exhibit D to the Nursing Home Management Agreement agrees 
to transfer the Maintenance Staff from Pine Crest to the County. The county 
agrees to fund these positions from tax levy funds. This appears to be a new 
additional cost for the County since the positions were previously funded by 
Pine Crest through their revenue stream. 



Lincoln County 
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest 

Report of Findings and Recommendations 
March 21, 2023 

 

7 
 

➢ NCHC through Exhibit D to the Nursing Home Management Agreement agrees 
to create a Nursing Home Operations Committee as a seven-person committee 
under the NCCSP Board to oversee the operations of Pine Crest and Marathon 
County’s nursing home. The board shall be comprised of representatives from 
the NCCSP Board and the general public who are residents of Lincoln and 
Marathon County. Three of the members will be Lincoln County residents with 
not less than one of the three members being a Lincoln County appointee to 
the NCCSP Board. 

➢ Per paragraph 4 of the Nursing Home Management Agreement, if the County 
fails to approve in substance NCHC’s budget request, then negotiation on 
continuation of the Agreement shall commence forthwith. NCHC may 
terminate the Agreement by written notice to the County within sixty (60) 
days following the County’s action on the budget request if negotiations 
are unsuccessful, in which case termination shall be effect at the start of the 
year to which the budget request applies. 

➢ Paragraph 4 of the Nursing Home Management Agreement stipulates that the 
agreement is effective through December 21, 2024 and shall be automatically 
extended for one year additional terms unless either party provides written 
notice to the other prior to 180 days of the end of the term. 

• Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Covering Maintenance and Repair of the 
Pine Crest facility and Durable Medical Equipment (DME) (Appendix J). The MOU 
assigns to Lincoln County general responsibility for: 
➢ Maintenance and repair of the Pine Crest Facility, meaning the real estate and 

building owned by Lincoln County and that are located at 2100 E Sixth Street, 
Merrill, Wisconsin. 

➢ Maintenance and repair of durable medical equipment, meaning equipment that 
primarily serves a medical purpose, is able to withstand repeated use, and is 
appropriate for use in a home type setting. Examples of durable medical 
equipment include, but are not limited to, wheelchairs and hospital beds. 

➢ Establishing emergency maintenance criteria. 
➢ Providing up to four hours per week of County maintenance staff time for 

removal and rearrangement of furniture. 
➢ Absolving County maintenance staff from servicing durable medical equipment 

which has a service agreement in place to avoid performing repairs of 
maintenance that is already contracted for or that could otherwise void any 
warranties. County maintenance staff also may decline to provide maintenance 
or repair work they believe requires specialized knowledge, training, licensing, 
or insurance requirements beyond their capabilities. In those instances, NCHC 
shall contract with an independent third party for that work and charge any cost 
back to the County in accordance with terms set forth in the Nursing Home 
Management Agreement.  

 
  



Lincoln County 
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest 

Report of Findings and Recommendations 
March 21, 2023 

 

8 
 

Recurring Financial Obligations of Lincoln County 
 
Lincoln County has recurring mandatory financial obligations for Pine Crest Nursing 
Home as stipulated in agreements between the County and NCHC. The following is a 
summary of those financial obligations: 
 

• Annual tax levy. A minimum $440,815 annual contribution from the tax levy per 
Exhibit B of the Nursing Home Management Agreement (Appendix I). The amount 
may be amended by Lincoln County during the annual budget process or by 
request from NCHC. Per paragraph 4 of the Nursing Home Management 
Agreement, “…if the County fails to approve in substance NCHC’s budget request 
then negotiation on continuation of the Agreement shall commence forthwith. 
NCHC may terminate this Agreement by written notice to the County within 
sixty (60) days following the County’s action on the budget request if 
negotiations are unsuccessful, in which case termination shall be effective at the 
start of the year to which the budget request applies”  

• Maintenance staffing. Four full-time maintenance staff positions to serve the Pine 
Crest building and grounds and Durable Medical Equipment per Exhibit D of the 
Nursing Home Management Agreement (Appendix I). The salary and fringe costs 
for these positions for Fiscal Year 2023 is estimated at $297,224. 

• Annual debt service. Debt service for the Pine Crest capital improvement project 
constructed in 2017.  
➢ Balance as of 01/01/2023: $8,060,000 principal; $2,048,107 interest 
➢ Debt service payments of approximately $630,000 annually are due through 

calendar year 2038.   

• Maintenance operations costs (non-staffing). Annual maintenance operations costs 
are shown in Table 2. 

• Maintenance of durable medical equipment outside the purview of Lincoln County 
maintenance staff. Per the Nursing Home Management Agreement, the county 
shall cover the costs when NCHC contracts with an independent third party for 
durable medical equipment maintenance that involves specialized knowledge, 
training, licensing, or insurance requirements beyond the capabilities of County 
maintenance staff.  
 

Recurring Reimbursements to Lincoln County from North Central Health Care 
NCHC is required to reimburse Lincoln County for certain costs for Pine Crest Nursing 
Home.  These include: 
 

• Natural Gas. Natural gas usage for the Pine Crest facility. Per paragraph 8 of the 
Nursing Home Management Agreement (Appendix I), NCHC is responsible for all 
contracts, leases, and/or use agreements and other agreements required in the 
ordinary course of business for the operation, maintenance, and service of the 
facility in the name of the County. Prior to 2023, natural gas for Pine Crest is 



Lincoln County 
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest 

Report of Findings and Recommendations 
March 21, 2023 

 

9 
 

provided through the County contract for this service and NCHC reimbursed the 
County for Pine Crest’s metered consumption. Pine Crest will contract directly with 
the vendor for natural gas beginning in 2023. 

• Debt service for Pine Crest. NCHC reimburses Lincoln County for Pine Crest debt 
service in the amount of approximately $630,000 annually. Through Exhibit D of 
the Nursing Home Management Agreement (Appendix I) NCHC agrees to assume 
the long-term liabilities balances as of January 1, 2020 on behalf of the County. 
Lincoln County continues to service all debt related to Pine Crest long-term 
liabilities with reimbursement from NCHC, as payments come due. Appendix K 
provides a debt schedule for Lincoln County, including Pine Crest. 

 
Unprogrammed obligations for which Lincoln County is ultimately liable 

 
There are numerous costs for which Lincoln County is ultimately liable although those 
costs may occur on a non-recurring basis. These include: 
 

• Pine Crest’s operating costs have exceeded revenues since at least 2014. Lincoln 
County bore those excess costs until NCHC assumed operations at Pine Crest in 
2020. NCHC has since covered Pine Crest deficits by utilizing fund balance or 
cash reserves. Unfortunately, these deficits have decreased NCHC’s fund balance 
and cash reserves to the point where they have indicated that they will likely ask 
for an increased allocation from Lincoln County to cover 2022 and possibly future 
deficits. Table 2 shows Pine Crest’s financial challenges since 2014. 

• Lincoln County is fully responsible for all upkeep, maintenance, and repair needs 
for the Pine Crest facility. These include, but are not limited to: 
➢ Four full-time maintenance employees, plus management oversight and 

additional maintenance staff support as necessary. Table 2 reflects the annual 
costs to Lincoln County since 2020 for full time maintenance staff; 

➢ Pine Crest structures, parking lot, and grounds; 
➢ Heating, cooling, and electrical systems; 
➢ Lawncare, landscaping, and snow removal; 
➢ Durable medical equipment (beds, wheel chairs, etc.); and  
➢ Emergency repairs and outages. 

• Lincoln County contracted with EMG Corporation, an independent consultant, to 
conduct a Facility Condition Assessment of the Pine Crest facility in 2019. The 
consultant’s written report is included as Appendix L. In addition to a narrative 
assessment, the report included a listing of material issues, including estimated, 
costs, that should be addressed through the year 2039. 

• The Lincoln County Maintenance Director prepared a Maintenance Summary 
Report for Pine Crest (Appendix M) in January 2023. Included in the report is a 
listing of major repair projects split out over a ten-year time period. The estimated 
costs of those repairs total over $8,000,000 in today’s market. After adding 



Lincoln County 
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest 

Report of Findings and Recommendations 
March 21, 2023 

 

10 
 

$3,000,000 for contingencies, the amount exceeds $11,000,000 without 
accounting for future inflation. 
 

Summary of Pine Crest Nursing Home Revenues, Expenses, and Deficits 
 
Appendix N provides a summary of Pine Crest’s fiscal condition from 1998 through 2019 
during which time the nursing home was managed and operated by Lincoln County. Pine 
Crest had consumed all its unrestricted net assets by 2018 and in 2018 and 2019 applied 
“loans” from the Lincoln County General Fund to balance their accounts.  
 
Table 2 captures the revenues, expenses, and deficits for Pine Crest for the years 2014 
to 2023. Information for 2022 and 2023 is tentative based on data available as of March 
2023. Although the precise figures for 2022 and 2023 are not finalized, it is apparent that 
there will be significant deficits for those years. NCHC has indicated that they have 
exhausted their fund balance/cash reserves for Lincoln County and will be asking for 
Lincoln County to fund the Pine Crest deficit for 2022 (Appendix O).



Lincoln County 
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest 

Report of Findings and Recommendations 
March 21, 2023 

 

11 
 

 

Year

Revenues 
(w/o tax levy 

funds)

Tax Levy 

Funds 

Received 

from Lincoln 

County

Total Revenue 
(with tax levy 

funds)

Pine Crest 

Operating 

Expenses 
(before 

reimbursements 

made to Lincoln 

County)

Debt 

Service 

Reimbursed 

to Lincoln 

County

Maintenance 

Operations 

(Utilities) 

Reimbursed to 

Lincoln County

Total Pine 

Crest 

Expenses 
(including 

reimbursements 

to Lincoln 

County)

Pine Crest 

Deficit 
(total revenues 

minus total 

expenses)

Tax Levy 

Payment to 

Pine Crest

Pine Crest 

Maintenance 

Operations 
(after 

reimbursements 

from NCHC)

Salaries/ 

Fringe for 

Lincoln 

County Pine 

Crest 

Maintenance 

Staff

Additional 

Payment to 

Cover Deficit 

(and for 2019-

Fund Balance 

Transfer)

Total 

Expense to 

Lincoln 

County Tax 

Payers

2014 $11,931,693 $499,000 $12,430,693 $12,514,162 $12,514,162 -$83,469 $499,000 $499,000 

2015 $12,219,752 $568,600 $12,788,352 $12,846,161 $12,846,161 -$57,809 $568,600 $568,600 

2016 $11,691,511 $546,800 $12,238,311 $13,241,871 $13,241,871 -$1,003,560 $546,800 $546,800 

2017 $11,685,879 $632,756 $12,318,635 $13,679,182 $13,679,182 -$1,360,547 $632,756 $632,756 

2018 $13,302,980 $556,942 $13,859,922 $14,709,589 $14,709,589 -$849,667 $556,942 $556,942 

2019 $14,226,597 $440,815 $14,667,412 $15,947,339 $15,947,339 -$1,279,927 $440,815 $440,815 

2020 $14,129,097 $440,815 $14,569,912 $14,289,773 $632,850 $122,847 $15,045,470 -$475,558 $440,815 $113,050 $255,699 $1,952,107 $2,761,671 

2021 $12,189,330 $440,815 $12,630,145 $13,772,742 $632,050 $68,652 $14,473,444 -$1,843,299 $440,815 $140,187 $265,152 $846,154 

2022 $11,774,453 $440,815 $12,215,268 $12,703,847 $631,980 $77,239 $13,413,066 -$1,197,798 $440,815 $86,432 $285,187 $1,126,328 $1,938,762 

2023 $11,949,294 $440,815 $12,390,109 $12,886,803 $632,010 $0 $13,518,813 -$1,128,704 $440,815 $126,500 $297,224 $864,539 

Totals: $125,100,586 $5,008,173 $130,108,759 $136,591,469 $2,528,890 $268,738 $139,389,097 ($9,280,338) $5,008,173 $466,169 $1,103,262 $3,078,435 $9,656,039 

Table 2 - Summary of Pine Crest Nursing Home Revenues, Expenses, Obligations, and Deficits

Pine Crest paid its debt service, maintenance staffing, and maintenance operations costs from its own budget while under operation of Lincoln County.

NCHC covered Pine Crest deficits from their fund balance/cash reserves in 2020 and 2021.

Final figures are not available for 2022 and 2023. NCHC has requested Lincoln County provide $1,126,328 (unaudited) to fund the deficit for 2022.

NCHC began contracting directly with the vendor for utilities in 2023.

Pine Crest Nursing Home Revenues and Expenses Lincoln County Obligations and Expenses for Pine Crest



Lincoln County 
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest 

Report of Findings and Recommendations 
March 21, 2023 

 

12 
 

 
 
Successes and Failures/Challenges Associated with Pine Crest Nursing Home 
 
Pine Crest has experienced immeasurable success throughout its existence. It has been 
a mainstay in community and served to provide solace to the County’s residents by 
assuring them that there was a place for them when they could no longer adequately care 
for themselves, whether it be short or long term.  
 
Pine Crest has not been without challenges, especially over the past several years. The 
emergence of alternatives such as assisted living and home health for those that do not 
require the level of care  provided by nursing homes has enabled those individuals to 
maintain independence for longer periods of time and oftentimes more cheaply. These 
challenges are being experienced by nursing homes throughout the United States and 
aren’t unique to Pine Crest. 
 

Successes associated with Pine Crest Nursing Home 

• Pine Crest has served Lincoln County for nearly 70 years. Care has been provided 
by dedicated health care and facility staff, of whom most are Lincoln County 
residents. 

• Pine Crest currently holds a 4 (out of 5) star rating from the State of Wisconsin 

• Facility appears neat, clean, and well maintained from a sanitary and appearance 
perspective. 

• Pine Crest annual revenues with the Lincoln County tax levy fully supported the 
facility’s operation, payroll, routine maintenance, and debt until approximately 10 to 
15 years ago, with a few exceptions in previous years. 

• Pine Crest has the only skilled nursing home beds in Merrill and one of only three 
skilled nursing facilities in Lincoln County. 

• Pine Crest employs approximately 150 staff, 128 of which are Lincoln residents. 

• The NCHC organization possesses professional expertise across the entire 
spectrum of nursing home care and holds itself to high standards and oversight. 

• It can be assumed that Pine Crest provides a higher level of skilled nursing care 
24/7 because of its higher staffing ratio than that suggested by the Wisconsin 
Director of Nursing (DON) Council standards.  

• Pine Crest staffing as compared to some local for profit nursing homes: 

• Pine Crest: 1:9 Certified Nursing Assistant (CNA), 1:18 nurse ratios 

• Non-profits: 1 nurse, 1 medical technician, 4 CNAs for 38 residents; 1 nurse, 2 
CNAs for 25 residents 

• A recent NCHC survey of Pine Crest staff reflected that NCHC has instituted 
innovation and enrichment conversations within the organization. 

• Newly established increases to reimbursements for Medicaid should positively 
impact NCHC finances. 



Lincoln County 
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest 

Report of Findings and Recommendations 
March 21, 2023 

 

13 
 

• NCHC reimbursements for Pine Crest’s debt service have reduced the expense for 
Lincoln County by over $630,000 per year since 2020. 

• In an effort to reduce costs, Lincoln County reduced the number of bed licenses 
from 180 to 160 in 2019 and from 160 to 120 in 2022. The cost of each bed license 
currently is $170 per month. Although the license reductions did not eliminate 
deficits, they did decrease the overall annual shortfalls. 
 

Failures/challenges associated with Pine Crest Nursing Home 

• Lincoln County is ultimately responsible for Pine Crest operating costs that NCHC 
cannot cover. Lincoln County tax levies currently provide over $800,000 annually 
to fund Pine Crest routine maintenance, maintenance staff, and subsidize nursing 
home operations.  

• Over 75 percent of the Pine Crest facility is 30 years old or older. 

• It appears that Lincoln County had not allocated a maintenance budget or tracked 
maintenance costs for Pine Crest until the last few years. 

• The county does not maintain a replacement reserve fund whereby funds are 
deposited each year to cover predicted costs in the future not classified as 
maintenance or operation. Such costs would be roof replacement, heating and 
cooling replacement, major system failures, parking lot paving, sidewalk 
replacements, etc.). 

• Maintenance projects or updates have not been funded or completed as needed 

• The Pine Crest facility requires significant updates and major system 
replacements. It is conservatively estimated that $8 million for major repair costs 
and updates (Appendix L) is required over the next 5 to 10 years, barring a 
catastrophic failure that would require action more quickly. 

• The implementation and expansion over the past several years of family care, 
home health care, and assisted living concepts have decreased the resident 
population and associated revenues for Pine Crest. 

• Pine Crest’s solvency is highly dependent on government reimbursement 
programs (i.e., Medicare and Medicaid). These reimbursements have not kept up 
with operating costs for the past several years, resulting in Lincoln County 
taxpayers and NCHC fund balances and cash reserves having to cover the 
deficits. In 2022, Medicaid reimbursement rates went up considerably; however, 
the supplement that the State of Wisconsin provides to Pine Crest as a county-
owned nursing home was reduced by a corresponding amount.  

• COVID-19 contributed to a significant reduction in Pine Crest’s census. From 2017 
to 2019 the daily census averaged between 150-160. With the onset of the 
pandemic in early 2020, the average daily census plummeted to 122 and has 
steadily decreased to 92 in 2021 and 86 in 2022.  

• The number of applicants and residents in nursing homes has decreased for the 
past several years. This can be attributed in part to a desire of the elderly for 
greater independence, an upturn of home health care, and increased availability of 
assisted living facilities. 



Lincoln County 
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest 

Report of Findings and Recommendations 
March 21, 2023 

 

14 
 

• The inability to recruit and retain qualified staff is an ongoing challenge. NCHC 
strives to maintain staffing to achieve a 5-star rating. Accordingly, the number of 
residents the facility is able to accommodate is reduced as the number of 
caregivers decreases. 

  



Lincoln County 
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest 

Report of Findings and Recommendations 
March 21, 2023 

 

15 
 

 

Part II – Potential Alternatives  
 
The information in Part I of this report clearly indicates that Pine Crest Nursing Home has 
been in financial peril for a significant number of years. Attempts to address those 
financial challenges have been unsuccessful. It seems that Lincoln County is at a 
crossroads where the County needs to decide whether to retain the Pine Crest facility 
and/or Pine Crest Nursing as County assets and, if retained, how to make and keep them 
solvent. 
 
As tasked by Lincoln County Resolution 2022-06-20, the AD HOC Committee on Pine 
Crest identified several potential alternatives with options and corresponding measures to 
address the overall condition of Pine Crest Nursing Home. The alternatives, options, and 
measures in Table 3 are not listed in order of preference and are not individually 
exclusive. The AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest does not endorse any alternative(s). 
 



Lincoln County 
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest 

Report of Findings and Recommendations 
March 21, 2023 

 

16 
 

 

  

Table 3 – Alternatives, Options, and Measures for Addressing Pine Crest Facility and Nursing Home 

Alternative Option Measures Could Include Comments 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. Lincoln 

County 
continues 
to operate 
Pine Crest 
as a county-
owned 
nursing 
home 

1A. Generate 
additional 
revenues to 
support Pine Crest 
operations 

1A1. Rent rooms in unused wings to 
Pine Crest employees for living 
quarters. 

1A2. Add daycare for Pine Crest 
employees or expand to 
community daycare. 

1A3. Add dialysis/dementia treatment 
capabilities to increase census. 

1A4. Create an assisted living wing. 
1A5. Create a space for foster care 

needs. 
1A6. Ask NCHC to explore additional 

means to increase census (e.g., 
adjusting staffing levels, 
reconsidering previously denied 
placements that were due to 
staffing shortage or other 
correctable issues, etc.).  

1A7. Adjust the annual County tax levy 
to cover the costs of Pine Crest 
debt service as authorized by Wis. 
Stat. 66.0602 (e.g., existing debt 
service and future debt service for 
maintenance and repair of Pine 
Crest facilities). 

1A1: This could enhance 
recruitment and retention of Pine 
Crest employees. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1A6: Appendix P provides an 
example of a potential means of 
increasing census and potentially 
revenue with current staffing 
levels. 
 



Lincoln County 
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest 

Report of Findings and Recommendations 
March 21, 2023 

 

17 
 

  

Table 3 – Alternatives, Options, and Measures for Addressing Pine Crest Facility and Nursing Home (continued) 

Alternative Option Measures Could Include Comments 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. Lincoln 
County 
continues to 
operate Pine 
Crest as a 
county-owned 
nursing home 
(continued) 

1B. Decrease expenses 
for operating and/or 
maintaining Pine 
Crest 

1B1. Ask NCHC to perform a review to 
see if staffing patterns can be 
reduced. 

1B2. Pursue grant funding for Pine Crest 
facility repairs. 

1B3. Establish a replacement reserve 
fund to fund major 
maintenance/repair needs. 

1B4. Sell or lease parts of the Pine Crest 
building for other uses. 

1B5. Downsize the facility permanently 
to reduce maintenance and 
operation costs. 

1B6. Demolish unused wings of the Pine 
Crest facility to decrease 
maintenance and operations costs. 

1B1: Appendix P provides an 
example of a potential means 
of increasing census and 
potentially revenue with 
current staffing levels. 
1B3: Would create a “savings 
account” for future needs. 
 
 
 
1B5: Would limit the nursing 
home operations to a set 
footprint and stop maintaining 
other areas. 

1C. Pursue a new 
management 
arrangement for 
operating Pine Crest 

1C1. Renegotiate Nursing Home 
Management Agreement with 
NCHC. 

1C2. Solicit competitive bids for non-
governmental organizations to 
operate Pine Crest on behalf of 
Lincoln County. 

1C3. Relocate Pine Crest Nursing Home 
to another existing facility (e.g., 
Aspirus Hospital Merrill). 

 



Lincoln County 
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest 

Report of Findings and Recommendations 
March 21, 2023 

 

18 
 

  

Table 3 – Alternatives, Options, and Measures for Addressing Pine Crest Facility and Nursing Home (continued) 

Alternative Option Measures Could Include Comments 

1. Lincoln 
County 
continues to 
operate Pine 
Crest as a 
county-owned 
nursing home 
(continued) 

1D. Demolish existing 
Pine Crest facility 
and build new facility 
of appropriate size 

1D1. Demolish existing Pine Crest 
facility and construct a new, smaller 
facility.  

1D1: Construction of a new 
facility may be less costly than 
making needed repairs and 
upgrades to existing facility. 

 
 
 
 
 
2. Lincoln 
County ceases 
operating Pine 
Crest as a 
county-owned 
nursing home 

2A. Find alternative uses 
for the Pine Crest 
facility 

2A1. Repurpose Pine Crest facility for 
other Lincoln County or external 
governmental or private uses. 

2A2. Rent or lease the Pine Crest facility 
to others. 

2A3. Demolish the Pine Crest building 
and retain the grounds for other 
Lincoln County needs. 

 

2B. Sell the Pine Crest 
facility 

2B1. Sell the Pine Crest Facility with 
stipulations that the property must 
be operated as a nursing home. 

2B2. Sell the Pine Crest facility without 
conditions. 

2B3. Demolish the Pine Crest facility 
and sell the portion of the grounds 
that do not encroach on the Social 
Services building. 

 
The footprint of Pine Crest 
overlaps with lands occupied 
by the Social Services building. 
This would need to be 
considered for measures 2B1, 
2B2, and 2B3. 
 



Lincoln County 
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest 

Report of Findings and Recommendations 
March 21, 2023 

 

19 
 

  

Table 3 – Alternatives, Options, and Measures for Addressing Pine Crest Facility and Nursing Home (continued) 

Alternative Option Measures Could Include Comments 

2. Lincoln 
County ceases 
operating Pine 
Crest as a 
county-owned 
nursing home 
(continued) 

2B. Sell the Pine Crest 
facility (continued) 

2B4. Sell the Pine Crest and Social 
Services facilities.  

 

2B4: This would require the 
County’s leasing back space in 
the Social Services building or 
finding a new location for 
Social Services. 
 

 
 
3. Hold 
referenda to 
allow the voters 
of Lincoln 
County to 
decide whether 
Lincoln County 
should continue 
to operate, 
fund, and/or 
maintain Pine 
Crest Nursing 
Home 

3A. To continue or not to 
continue Pine Crest 
as county-owned 
nursing home 

3A1. Ask if Pine Crest Nursing Home 
should continue to be operated by 
Lincoln County as a county-owned. 

 

If a referenda option is 
pursued, it would be advisable 
to hold a special referendum 
as opposed to waiting for the 
next scheduled election in April 
2024. The estimated cost to 
conduct a special referendum 
is $20,000. However, 
expenses could be reduced if 
the Pine Crest special 
referendum were held in 
conjunction with the 
anticipated Merrill School 
District referendum later this 
year. 
3A1: This would require an 
additional referendum question 
to address funding. 



Lincoln County 
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest 

Report of Findings and Recommendations 
March 21, 2023 

 

20 
 

 

Table 3 – Alternatives, Options, and Measures for Addressing Pine Crest Facility and Nursing Home (continued) 

Alternative Option Measures Could Include Comments 

 
 
3. Hold 
referenda to 
allow the voters 
of Lincoln 
County to 
decide whether 
Lincoln County 
should continue 
to operate, 
fund, and/or 
maintain Pine 
Crest Nursing 
Home 
(continued) 

3B. Funding for Pine 
Crest Nursing Home 

3B1. Ask if Lincoln County should fully 
or partially fund the operations of 
Pine Crest Nursing Home. 

3B2. Ask for authorization for Lincoln 
County to adjust the tax levy 
annually to subsidize and balance 
Pine Crest Nursing Home revenues 
and expenses. The salaries and 
fringe benefits for Lincoln County 
maintenance department staff that 
support Pine Crest could possibly 
be included in expenses. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The additional annual tax levy 
per $100,000 of equalized 
value would be approximately 
$34 for each $1,000,000 to be 
raised for alternatives 3B, 3C, 
and 3D. 
 

3C. Funding for Pine 
Crest facility 
maintenance 

3C1. Ask to increase the tax levy for a 
specified amount and period (e.g., 
$X for # years) to fund Pine Crest 
maintenance and repairs.  

3D. Replace existing 
Pine Crest facility 

3D1. Ask to raise tax levy to fund 
construction of a new Pine Crest 
facility. 



 

 



Ken.Wickham
Text Box
Appendix A



Appendix B 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Minutes from AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest Meetings 

July 27, 2022 through March 14, 2023 



LINCOLN COUNTY 
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest 
Wednesday, July 27, 2022, 1:00 PM 

Room 247/248 Government Services Center 
801 N. Sales St., Merrill WI 54452 

Meeting Minutes 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Ken Wickham (Chair), Supervisors Bill Bialecki, Angela Cummings, 
Greg Hartwig and Marty Lemke, IT Director Travis Spoehr. 
 
MEMBERS EXCUSED:  Administrative Coordinator Cate Wylie 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:  Maintenance Director Patrick Gierl, Corporation Counsel Karry Johnson 
 

1. Call Meeting to Order:  Meeting called to order by Chair Wickham at 1:06 pm 
2. Election of Vice Chair: Bialecki nominated Hartwig, M/S (Motion/Second) 

Bialecki/Lemke, all voting aye. 
Election of Secretary:  Bialecki nominated Cummings, M/S Bialecki/Wickham, all voting 
aye. 

3. Review Resolution to Establish AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest 
1) Review existing financial obligations concerning Pine Crest, review the 

prudence of any future contractual obligations concerning Pine Crest made 
by either signed contract or County Board resolution 

2) Review original and current use of Pine Crest building and grounds 
3) Review Nursing Home Management Agreement and the Memorandum of 

Understanding (repair and maintenance of durable medical equipment and 
removal/rearrangement of furniture) between Lincoln County and North 
Central Health Care such as documents related to the building and bed 
licenses 

4) Provide a report to the Lincoln County Board of Supervisors outlining the 
past and current successes, failures and status of Pine Crest Nursing 
Home 

5) Provide recommendations to the Lincoln County Board of Supervisors for 
consideration, detailing areas of improvement for Lincoln County’s overall 
position concerning Pine Crest Nursing Home. 

6) Monthly updates to be provided to the Lincoln County Board of 
Supervisors 

7) Conclude committee’s business no later than the March 2023 Lincoln 
County Board meeting 

Committee members see the mission as Facility (building and grounds), Finance and 
Operations (how the facility is used. Bed licenses, past vs future demand.) Does NOT include 
day to day operations. 
 



There are two other facilities in Merrill that do have openings for nursing home patients. Both of 
these are private. 
 
Committee Members would like to get a walk-through of the facility with the IT Director Travis 
Spoehr and the Maintenance Director Patrick Gierl. Bialecki will attempt to schedule since the 
Public Property Committee also wants a tour. 
 
Chair Wickham to obtain the following documents for the next meeting: 

1) Profit and Loss Statements, all finances 
2) Contracts 
3) Maintenance agreement, all agreements 
4) IT agreement 
5) Actual signed agreement with North Central Health Care (NCHC) 
6) Future Contractual Obligations 
7) Decision by the Lincoln County Board, approx. 6 years ago, to contract with NCHC 

 
Chair Wickham to request the following to attend the next meeting: Finance Director Dan Leydet 
and Director of Operations at Pine Crest Ryan Hanson. 
 
4. Develop Work Plan and Timeline: This will be ongoing and assigned at each meeting. 
 
5. Establish Meeting Schedule/Set Next Meeting Date: Committee agreed to meet bi-monthly 
to make sure timeline is met. Next Meeting Date:  Thursday, August 18, 2022 at 4:00 pm 
 
6. Adjourn: M/S Cummings/Bialecki, to adjourn at 2:05 pm, all voting aye. 
 
 
 
Minutes prepared by, 
Supervisor Cummings, Secretary 
 



LINCOLN COUNTY
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest

Thursday, August 18, 2022, 4:00 PM
Room 247/248 Government Services Center

801 N. Sales St., Merrill WI 54452
Meeting Minutes

_________________________________________________________________________

MEMBERS PRESENT: Ken Wickham (Chair), Supervisors Bill Bialecki, Angela Cummings,
Greg Hartwig and Marty Lemke.

OTHERS PRESENT:  Lincoln County Finance Director Dan Leydet, North Central Health Care
Finance Director Gary Olsen. Numerous members of the public.

Minutes

1. Call Meeting to Order: Meeting called to order by Chair Wickham at 4:04 pm
2. Public Comment: Kevin Stevenson said he requested this committee be formed. He’s

glad to see it was formed. He said there needs to be drastic changes at Pine Crest.
3. Approval of Minutes from Previous Meeting: M/2nd by Bialecki/Lemke to approve

Minutes from the Wednesday, July 27, 2022 meeting. All Ayes - motion carried.
4. Review/Discuss Financial Relationships, Obligations, and Costs between Lincoln

County and North Central Health Care: Amended and Restated Intergovernmental
Agreement Establishing a Multicounty Department of Community Programs Between
Langlade, Lincoln and Marathon Counties, with Exhibit A through D, a 17 page
document was reviewed and placed on file.

5. Review/Discuss Agreements and Memoranda of Understanding between Lincoln
County and North Central Health Care. Memorandum of Understanding, a 3 page
document was reviewed and placed on file.

6. Develop Work Plan and Timeline: Make Assignments for Next Meeting: Wickham
will set up an information gathering tour at the Pine Crest facility after the next meeting
with Lincoln County Maintenance Director Pat Gierl. Gary Olsen will have Jarret Nichols
ensure Ryan at the Pine Crest location will provide the tour from North Central Health
Care.

7. Set Next Meeting Date: September 14, 2022 at 4:00 pm to start at 801 N. Sales St,
Merrill, WI, and continue at the Pine Crest location, 2100 E 6th St, Merrill, WI.

8. Adjourn: M/2nd Cummings/Hartwig to adjourn at 5:45 pm. All Ayes - motion carried.

Minutes prepared by,
Angela Cummings, Secretary



LINCOLN COUNTY
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest

Wednesday, September 14, 2022, 4:00 PM
Room 247/248 Government Services Center

801 N. Sales St., Merrill WI 54452
Meeting Minutes

_________________________________________________________________________

MEMBERS PRESENT: Ken Wickham (Chair), Supervisors Bill Bialecki, Angela Cummings,
Greg Hartwig and Marty Lemke.

OTHERS PRESENT:  Administrative Coordinator Cate Wylie, Maintenance Director Patrick
Gierl. Numerous members of the public.

Minutes

1. Call Meeting to Order: Meeting called to order by Chair Wickham at 4:00 pm.
2. Public Comment: Two people gave public comment.
3. Approval of Minutes from Previous Meeting: M/2nd by Bialecki/Lemke to approve

Minutes from the Thursday, August 18, 2022, meeting. All Ayes - motion carried.
4. NCHC Funding Request: The finance committee received a verbal request from Gary

Olsen and Mort McBain of NCHC for a $675,000 projected loss for 2022 and a $606,850
projected loss for 2023. They haven’t asked previously but Gary Olsen is doing a
forensic audit. THey will provide an invoice with final numbers in 2023 after year end.
They are maintaining it is contractual and provided page 2 of the three county contract
with the first full paragraph at the top of the page highlighted.

5. Review/Discuss Pine Crest Facility and Maintenance. Maintenance Director Pat Gierl
shared his spreadsheets of building and grounds maintenance. Explained what is
Lincoln County’s responsibility and what is NCHC’s responsibility. 197 windows, 50,000
square feet of buildings. It is a 24/7 maintenance facility. There is shared electricity with
the Social Services building.

6. Review/Discuss Independent Audit of NCHC for years 2021 and 2020: Discussed
the audit. Agreed that committee members will read fully and discuss in more detail at
the next meeting.

7. Develop Work Plan and Timeline: Make Assignments for Next Meeting: Wickham
will attempt to consolidate the financial data/information into one document. Pat Gierl
and John Hanson will create a spreadsheet with categories and finances that will go with
any needed maintenance updates. Cate Wylie will contact Gary Olsen from NCHC and
get budgets from the 2020-2021 years.

8. Set Next Meeting Date: Call of the Chair as there were conflicts with members
calendars.

9. Committee Tour of Pine Crest Nursing Home: Went to the facility and was met by
Ryan Hanson, Director of Nursing Home Operations. Took a tour of the facility.



Approximately 90 total residents. 18 beds on the rehab/LTC unit. 18 beds on south
(LTC). 36 beds on north (LTC). 20 beds on Special Care (dementia/memory care). This
information was taken from a handout provided by Ryan.

10. Adjourn: M/2nd Bialecki/Hartwig to adjourn at 6:55 pm. All Ayes - motion carried.

Minutes prepared by, Supervisor
Angela Cummings, Secretary



LINCOLN COUNTY
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest

Wednesday, October 12, 2022, 4:00 PM
Room 247/248 Government Services Center

801 N. Sales St., Merrill WI 54452
Meeting Minutes

____________________________________________________________________________

MEMBERS PRESENT: Ken Wickham (Chair), Supervisors Bill Bialecki, Angela Cummings, Greg Hartwig
and Marty Lemke.

OTHERS PRESENT: Administrative Coordinator Cate Wylie, Maintenance Director Patrick Gierl.
Members of the Public.

1. Call Meeting to Order: Meeting called to order by Chair Wickham at 4:00 pm
2. Public Comment: One person gave a public comment.
3. Approval of Minutes from September 14, 2022 Meeting: M/2nd by Bialecki/Hartwig to

approve minutes. All Ayes - motion carried.
4. Review/Discuss Independent Audit of NCHC for years 2021 and 2020 and North Central

Community Services Program and Affiliates d/b/a North Central Health Care Combined
Financial Statements and Required Supplementary Combining Information for Years Ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020 also discussed.

5. Work on Summary of Information Gathered Chair Wickham prepared a Working Paper Draft of
information needed regarding facility. Maintenance Director Patrick Gierl wrote some answers to
the Working Paper Draft and his document is titled WORKING DRAFT.

6. Develop Work Plan and Timeline:  Make Assignments for Next Meeting
a) Cate Wylie to find the history of the facility. Meet with Corporation Counsel Karry Johnson

to see how a survey can be implemented to get information from staff and the public.
Attend the Pine Crest business meeting tomorrow.  Will talk to Ryan and report back.

b) Ken Wickham to invite Ryan to the next meeting after speaking with Cate. Committee
would like to know history, challenges and successes from his viewpoint.

c) Angela is getting financial documents from the Finance Department regarding bonding
issues on the debt and repayment schedule of the debt.

d) Pat is to make a map. Details on what is in each section. What each section is named.
How many beds are in each section. Square feet in each section.

e) Greg is to speak to former administrators and directors regarding the history of the facility.
He will determine if they need to attend the next meeting.

7.  Set Next Meeting Date: Call of the Chair
8. Adjourn: M/2nd Lemke/Bialecki to adjourn at 5:42 pm. All Ayes - motion carried.

Minutes prepared by, Supervisor
Angela Cummings, Secretary



LINCOLN COUNTY
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest

Wednesday, November 30, 2022, 4:30 PM
Room 247/248 Government Services Center

801 N. Sales St., Merrill WI 54452
Meeting Minutes

____________________________________________________________________________

MEMBERS PRESENT: Ken Wickham (Chair), Supervisors Bill Bialecki, Angela Cummings, Greg Hartwig
and Marty Lemke (virtual).

OTHERS PRESENT: Acting Administrative Coordinator Renee Krueger, Corporation Counsel Karry
Johnson. North Central Health Care Gary Olsen, Finance Director. Members of the Public.

1. Call Meeting to Order: Meeting called to order by Chair Wickham at 4:30 pm
2. Public Comment: One person gave a public comment.
3. Approval of Minutes from October 12, 2022 Meeting: M/2nd by Bialecki/Hartwig to

approve minutes. All Ayes - motion carried.
4. Pine Crest Past Operations, Successes, and Challenges discussion w/Tim Meehan Tim was

the Accountant, Business Manager and Administrator for Pine Crest. He was also the
Administrative Coordinate for Lincoln County. He provided historical information regarding the
running of Pine Crest during his tenure.

5. Lincoln County Debt for Pine Crest The debt information, dollar amounts and rates were
discussed. Documents were provided by the Finance Department.

6. NCHC Financials September 2022 Gary Olsen also brought the October 2022 financials which
will be included with the minutes.

7. NCHC 2023 Budget-Gary Olsen Gary presented the budget for 2023 and answered questions.
Gary also provided a small survey that was done with employees which will be included with the
minutes.

8. Develop Work Plan and Timeline:  Make Assignments for Next Meeting
a) Gary Olsen: Breakdown of how he budgeted and census. Will invite Jarret Nichols and

Ryan Hanson to the next meeting. Will investigate if there is a grant available for new
windows, roof, heating, etc. Calculate bed license fees. Future contracts-if any.  Will
provide information on unused space.

b) Ken Wickham will solicit input from Ad Hoc Committee Members about questions
regarding successes or challenges that would help assist future meetings.

7.  Set Next Meeting Date: December 12 at 4:45 pm
8. Adjourn: M/2nd Bialecki/Hartwig to adjourn at 6:20 pm. All Ayes - motion carried.

Minutes prepared by, Supervisor
Angela Cummings, Secretary



LINCOLN COUNTY
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest

Monday, December 12, 2022, 4:45 PM
Room 247/248 Government Services Center

801 N. Sales St., Merrill WI 54452
Meeting Minutes

____________________________________________________________________________

MEMBERS PRESENT: Ken Wickham (Chair), Supervisors Bill Bialecki, Angela Cummings, Greg Hartwig
and Marty Lemke (virtual).

OTHERS PRESENT: Acting Administrative Coordinator Renee Krueger, Corporation Counsel Karry
Johnson, Maintenance Director Patrick Gierl, North Central Health Care (NCHC) Ryan Hanson, Director
of Nursing Home Operations Pine Crest, NCHC Jarret Nickel, Managing Director of Nursing
Home/Residential, NCHC Gary Olsen, Finance Director (virtual). Members of the Public.

1. Call Meeting to Order: Meeting called to order by Chair Wickham at 4:45 pm
2. Public Comment: One person gave a public comment.
3. Approval of Minutes from November 30, 2022 Meeting: M/2nd by Bialecki/Hartwig to

approve minutes. All Ayes - motion carried.
4. Pine Crest Finances, Operations,  Successes, Challenges, and Potential - NCHC (Jarret

NIckel, Ryan Hanson, Gary Olsen): Ryan Hanson stated the questions and answers provided
in the December 12, 2022 Memo. Jarret assisted in answering questions with Ryan. Gary Olsen
advised that the State cut the supplemental payments. That news just broke so he doesn’t have a
lot of information but will research and get back to the committee on what that means.This
supplemental payment is only made to county nursing homes by the State. This could mean an
$800,000 loss for Pine Crest.

5. Pine Crest Facility, Maintenance, Repair, and Use: In 2017 a study was done. This resulted in
the EMG Project. The spreadsheet numbers are five years old. Pat Gierl provided answers to the
questions that were asked. Those will be scanned in with the minutes.

6. Develop Work Plan and Timeline:  Make Assignments for Next Meeting: Ken Wickham will
update the Summary of Information Gathered to Date, Working Paper Draft. Pat Gierl and Bill
Bialecki will provide a report on a maintenance overview including risks and vulnerabilities.
Angela Cummings will provide a financial overview of revenue vs expenses, debt and budget.

7. Set Next Meeting Date: Call of the chair.
8. Adjourn: M/2nd Cummings/Hartwig to adjourn at 6:53 pm. All Ayes - motion carried.

Minutes prepared by, Supervisor
Angela Cummings, Secretary



LINCOLN COUNTY
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest

Thursday, January 19, 2023, 3:00 PM
Room 255/257/260 Government Services Center

801 N. Sales St., Merrill WI 54452
Meeting Minutes

____________________________________________________________________________

MEMBERS PRESENT: Ken Wickham (Chair), Supervisors Bill Bialecki, Angela Cummings, Greg Hartwig
and Marty Lemke (virtual).

OTHERS PRESENT: Interim Administrative Coordinator Renee Krueger, Corporation Counsel Karry
Johnson, Maintenance Director Patrick Gierl, Finance Director Samantha Fenske, IT Director Travis
Spoehr (virtual), North Central Health Care (NCHC) Ryan Hanson, Director of Nursing Home Operations
Pine Crest. Members of the Public.

1. Call Meeting to Order: Meeting called to order by Chair Wickham at 3:00 pm
2. Public Comment: None
3. Approval of Minutes from November 30, 2022 Meeting: M/2nd by Bialecki/Lemke to

approve minutes. All Ayes - motion carried.
4. North Central Health Care (NCHC) Pine Crest Budget Update (NCHC Executive Director

Gary Olsen): Ryan Hanson advised that Gary Olsen had a conflicting meeting and couldn’t
attend the Ad Hoc Committee on Pine Crest meeting for Lincoln County. Ryan advised there will
be no definitive changes in the reimbursement rates until June 2023. NCHC is estimating a $1.2
million deficit for 2022 according to the current numbers. Ryan advised that Medicare and
Medicaid reimbursements were increased in 2022; however, the supplemental payments were
decreased by nearly corresponding amounts.

5. Prepare the Draft AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest Report of Review and
Recommendations (Lincoln County Finance Director Samantha Fenske and NCHC
Executive Director Gary Olsen to provide technical assistance): Chair Wickham went
through the document titled “Lincoln County AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest Report of Review
and Recommendations” included in the packet which contains 14 pages.

Suggestions/options from round table discussion:

Increase revenues by:
a) “Renting” wings to employees for living quarters (400/700 wings)-charging rent
b) In-house and/or community daycare wing (400/700 wings)-charging rent
c) Increase staffing to increase census, look at denied placements due to staffing shortages
d) Add dialysis/dementia wings to increase census (higher pay?)
e) Create an assisted living wing
f) Create a space for foster care needs

Decrease expenses by:
a) Perform a review to see if staffing patterns can be reduced

Referendum ideas:
a) Request referendum for cost of 5 year maintenance plan plus operations deficit



1) Fund Maintenance Yes/No
2) Fund Operations Yes/No
3) Build new facility. Yes/No
4) Have a two phased referendum:

Phase 1 Question: Is there support to keep Pine Crest?
Phase 2 Question: If you are supporting, Pine Crest needs to be funded,
increase levy limit?

**Per Finance Director Fenske $100,000 =$32 raise of taxes based on zero
growth and equalized value.**

Debt Service:
a) Use Debt Service for repairs. Not subject to levy limits. But would include a property

tax increase.

Address Facility Needs Only:
a) Request grants for repairs
b) Demo the building
c) Downsize the facility permanently
d) Demo these wings: 400/500/700 and 900(?)

Obtain new management:
a) Put out an RFP for a different administration contract to run operations

Move Pine Crest to new or a different existing facility

Sell Pine Crest:
a) Sell the building which would include Pine Crest and the Social Services Building

with no conditions on sale
b) Sell parts of the building
c) Sell the building with conditions such as “sell as a skilled nursing home”
d) Close the nursing home and repurpose the building for other county business

6. Develop Work Plan and Timeline:  Make Assignments for Next Meeting: Ryan Hanson
NCHC will provide an electronic version of the facility map. Karry Johnson Corp Counsel will
provide copies of Resolution 2019-08-38 (bed reduction 180-160), Resolution 2021-11-50 (bed
reduction 160-120), the 2019 document that placed NCHC in a temporary position and the
questions raised on the management agreement. Sam Fenske Finance Director will verify the
financial number provided from 2014-2019 when the facility was county run, fill in the highlighted
“zeros” on the Draft Report of Review and the anticipated 2023 budget numbers due to changes
in Medicaid and Supplemental payments. Pat Gierl Maintenance Director prepared a document
from his viewpoint which he will provide to the committee.

7. Set Next Meeting Date: 1/31/2023 at 9:00 am tentatively
8. Adjourn: M/2nd Bialecki/Hartwig to adjourn at 5:10 pm. All Ayes - motion carried.

Minutes prepared and respectfully submitted by, Supervisor Angela Cummings, Secretary



LINCOLN COUNTY
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest

Thursday, January 31, 2023, 9:00 AM
Room 255/257/260 Government Services Center

801 N. Sales St., Merrill WI 54452
Meeting Minutes

____________________________________________________________________________

MEMBERS PRESENT: Ken Wickham (Chair), Supervisors Bill Bialecki, Greg Hartwig and Angela
Cummings (virtual).

MEMBERS EXCUSED: Marty Lemke

OTHERS PRESENT: Interim Administrative Coordinator Renee Krueger, Corporation Counsel Karry
Johnson, Maintenance Director Patrick Gierl, Finance Director Samantha Fenske, IT Director Travis
Spoehr (virtual), North Central Health Care (NCHC) Gary Olsen, Executive Director, NCHC Ryan Hanson,
Director of Nursing Home Operations Pine Crest. Members of the Public.

1. Call Meeting to Order: Meeting called to order by Chair Wickham at 9:01 am.
2. Public Comment: One person made a public comment.
3. Approval of Minutes from January 19, 2023 Meeting: M/2nd by Bialecki/Hartwig to

approve minutes. All Ayes - motion carried.
4. North Central Health Care (NCHC) Pine Crest Budget Update (NCHC Executive Director

Gary Olsen): Gary Olsen provided a recap of the funding changes between the Medicaid, the
Supplemental and the CPE. He provided a memo that will be attached to the minutes. There is an
effort to change the funding by contacting and meeting with DHS, legislators, etc. Chair Friske
and Interim Administrative Coordinator Krueger will be invited to the discussions. The auditors will
be there in a month to close out 2022. Executive committee will set the wage schedule at their
next meeting. Then the Finance Director will look at where things stand and make suggestions.

5. Review updated information for Draft AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest Report of Review
and Alternatives (Lincoln County Finance Director Samantha Fenske and NCHC
Representatives included for technical assistance):  Financial Fenske advised that previous
losses for 2018 and 2019 were covered by an interfund of Pine Crests. 2020 an amount from the
general fund was transferred to offset losses: 1.6 million. Fenske provided updated numbers on
pages 10, 11 and 13 of the handout which will be provided with the minutes. Fenske also advised
that the net position did decrease over time but will clarify and make sure there was no double
counting for the next meeting.

Olsen advised that the financials for NCHC put the nursing homes together and implemented a
formula. He is going to have Bobby break out the actual expenses for each location.

Maintenance Gierl provided updated documentation that he will provide electronically to be
included with the minutes. A summary, option to remodel, option to build new, projections on
projects and cost, annual operating budget and summary.

6. Develop Work Plan and Timeline:  Make Assignments for Next Meeting:
Committee agreed that one more meeting is needed before putting information together for the
full County Board.



LINCOLN COUNTY
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest

Thursday, January 19, 2023, 3:00 PM
Room 255/257/260 Government Services Center

801 N. Sales St., Merrill WI 54452
Meeting Minutes

____________________________________________________________________________

MEMBERS PRESENT: Ken Wickham (Chair), Supervisors Bill Bialecki, Angela Cummings, Greg Hartwig
and Marty Lemke (virtual).

OTHERS PRESENT: Interim Administrative Coordinator Renee Krueger, Corporation Counsel Karry
Johnson, Maintenance Director Patrick Gierl, Finance Director Samantha Fenske, IT Director Travis
Spoehr (virtual), North Central Health Care (NCHC) Ryan Hanson, Director of Nursing Home Operations
Pine Crest. Members of the Public.

1. Call Meeting to Order: Meeting called to order by Chair Wickham at 3:00 pm
2. Public Comment: None
3. Approval of Minutes from November 30, 2022 Meeting: M/2nd by Bialecki/Lemke to

approve minutes. All Ayes - motion carried.
4. North Central Health Care (NCHC) Pine Crest Budget Update (NCHC Executive Director

Gary Olsen): Ryan Hanson advised that Gary Olsen had a conflicting meeting and couldn’t
attend the Ad Hoc Committee on Pine Crest meeting for Lincoln County. Ryan advised there will
be no definitive changes in the reimbursement rates until June 2023. NCHC is estimating a $1.2
million deficit for 2022 according to the current numbers. Ryan advised that Medicare and
Medicaid reimbursements were increased in 2022; however, the supplemental payments were
decreased by nearly corresponding amounts.

5. Prepare the Draft AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest Report of Review and
Recommendations (Lincoln County Finance Director Samantha Fenske and NCHC
Executive Director Gary Olsen to provide technical assistance): Chair Wickham went
through the document titled “Lincoln County AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest Report of Review
and Recommendations” included in the packet which contains 14 pages.

Suggestions/options from round table discussion:

Increase revenues by:
a) “Renting” wings to employees for living quarters (400/700 wings)-charging rent
b) In-house and/or community daycare wing (400/700 wings)-charging rent
c) Increase staffing to increase census, look at denied placements due to staffing shortages
d) Add dialysis/dementia wings to increase census (higher pay?)
e) Create an assisted living wing
f) Create a space for foster care needs

Decrease expenses by:
a) Perform a review to see if staffing patterns can be reduced

Referendum ideas:
a) Request referendum for cost of 5 year maintenance plan plus operations deficit



1) Fund Maintenance Yes/No
2) Fund Operations Yes/No
3) Build new facility. Yes/No
4) Have a two phased referendum:

Phase 1 Question: Is there support to keep Pine Crest?
Phase 2 Question: If you are supporting, Pine Crest needs to be funded,
increase levy limit?

**Per Finance Director Fenske $100,000 =$32 raise of taxes based on zero
growth and equalized value.**

Debt Service:
a) Use Debt Service for repairs. Not subject to levy limits. But would include a property

tax increase.

Address Facility Needs Only:
a) Request grants for repairs
b) Demo the building
c) Downsize the facility permanently
d) Demo these wings: 400/500/700 and 900(?)

Obtain new management:
a) Put out an RFP for a different administration contract to run operations

Move Pine Crest to new or a different existing facility

Sell Pine Crest:
a) Sell the building which would include Pine Crest and the Social Services Building

with no conditions on sale
b) Sell parts of the building
c) Sell the building with conditions such as “sell as a skilled nursing home”
d) Close the nursing home and repurpose the building for other county business

6. Develop Work Plan and Timeline:  Make Assignments for Next Meeting: Ryan Hanson
NCHC will provide an electronic version of the facility map. Karry Johnson Corp Counsel will
provide copies of Resolution 2019-08-38 (bed reduction 180-160), Resolution 2021-11-50 (bed
reduction 160-120), the 2019 document that placed NCHC in a temporary position and the
questions raised on the management agreement. Sam Fenske Finance Director will verify the
financial number provided from 2014-2019 when the facility was county run, fill in the highlighted
“zeros” on the Draft Report of Review and the anticipated 2023 budget numbers due to changes
in Medicaid and Supplemental payments. Pat Gierl Maintenance Director prepared a document
from his viewpoint which he will provide to the committee.

7. Set Next Meeting Date: 1/31/2023 at 9:00 am tentatively
8. Adjourn: M/2nd Bialecki/Hartwig to adjourn at 5:10 pm. All Ayes - motion carried.

Minutes prepared and respectfully submitted by, Supervisor Angela Cummings, Secretary



LINCOLN COUNTY
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest

Thursday, January 19, 2023, 3:00 PM
Room 255/257/260 Government Services Center

801 N. Sales St., Merrill WI 54452
Meeting Minutes

____________________________________________________________________________

MEMBERS PRESENT: Ken Wickham (Chair), Supervisors Bill Bialecki, Angela Cummings, Greg Hartwig
and Marty Lemke (virtual).

OTHERS PRESENT: Interim Administrative Coordinator Renee Krueger, Corporation Counsel Karry
Johnson, Maintenance Director Patrick Gierl, Finance Director Samantha Fenske, IT Director Travis
Spoehr (virtual), North Central Health Care (NCHC) Ryan Hanson, Director of Nursing Home Operations
Pine Crest. Members of the Public.

1. Call Meeting to Order: Meeting called to order by Chair Wickham at 3:00 pm
2. Public Comment: None
3. Approval of Minutes from November 30, 2022 Meeting: M/2nd by Bialecki/Lemke to

approve minutes. All Ayes - motion carried.
4. North Central Health Care (NCHC) Pine Crest Budget Update (NCHC Executive Director

Gary Olsen): Ryan Hanson advised that Gary Olsen had a conflicting meeting and couldn’t
attend the Ad Hoc Committee on Pine Crest meeting for Lincoln County. Ryan advised there will
be no definitive changes in the reimbursement rates until June 2023. NCHC is estimating a $1.2
million deficit for 2022 according to the current numbers. Ryan advised that Medicare and
Medicaid reimbursements were increased in 2022; however, the supplemental payments were
decreased by nearly corresponding amounts.

5. Prepare the Draft AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest Report of Review and
Recommendations (Lincoln County Finance Director Samantha Fenske and NCHC
Executive Director Gary Olsen to provide technical assistance): Chair Wickham went
through the document titled “Lincoln County AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest Report of Review
and Recommendations” included in the packet which contains 14 pages.

Suggestions/options from round table discussion:

Increase revenues by:
a) “Renting” wings to employees for living quarters (400/700 wings)-charging rent
b) In-house and/or community daycare wing (400/700 wings)-charging rent
c) Increase staffing to increase census, look at denied placements due to staffing shortages
d) Add dialysis/dementia wings to increase census (higher pay?)
e) Create an assisted living wing
f) Create a space for foster care needs

Decrease expenses by:
a) Perform a review to see if staffing patterns can be reduced

Referendum ideas:
a) Request referendum for cost of 5 year maintenance plan plus operations deficit



1) Fund Maintenance Yes/No
2) Fund Operations Yes/No
3) Build new facility. Yes/No
4) Have a two phased referendum:

Phase 1 Question: Is there support to keep Pine Crest?
Phase 2 Question: If you are supporting, Pine Crest needs to be funded,
increase levy limit?

**Per Finance Director Fenske $100,000 =$32 raise of taxes based on zero
growth and equalized value.**

Debt Service:
a) Use Debt Service for repairs. Not subject to levy limits. But would include a property

tax increase.

Address Facility Needs Only:
a) Request grants for repairs
b) Demo the building
c) Downsize the facility permanently
d) Demo these wings: 400/500/700 and 900(?)

Obtain new management:
a) Put out an RFP for a different administration contract to run operations

Move Pine Crest to new or a different existing facility

Sell Pine Crest:
a) Sell the building which would include Pine Crest and the Social Services Building

with no conditions on sale
b) Sell parts of the building
c) Sell the building with conditions such as “sell as a skilled nursing home”
d) Close the nursing home and repurpose the building for other county business

6. Develop Work Plan and Timeline:  Make Assignments for Next Meeting: Ryan Hanson
NCHC will provide an electronic version of the facility map. Karry Johnson Corp Counsel will
provide copies of Resolution 2019-08-38 (bed reduction 180-160), Resolution 2021-11-50 (bed
reduction 160-120), the 2019 document that placed NCHC in a temporary position and the
questions raised on the management agreement. Sam Fenske Finance Director will verify the
financial number provided from 2014-2019 when the facility was county run, fill in the highlighted
“zeros” on the Draft Report of Review and the anticipated 2023 budget numbers due to changes
in Medicaid and Supplemental payments. Pat Gierl Maintenance Director prepared a document
from his viewpoint which he will provide to the committee.

7. Set Next Meeting Date: 1/31/2023 at 9:00 am tentatively
8. Adjourn: M/2nd Bialecki/Hartwig to adjourn at 5:10 pm. All Ayes - motion carried.

Minutes prepared and respectfully submitted by, Supervisor Angela Cummings, Secretary



LINCOLN COUNTY
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest

Thursday, January 31, 2023, 9:00 AM
Room 255/257/260 Government Services Center

801 N. Sales St., Merrill WI 54452
Meeting Minutes

____________________________________________________________________________

MEMBERS PRESENT: Ken Wickham (Chair), Supervisors Bill Bialecki, Greg Hartwig and Angela
Cummings (virtual).

MEMBERS EXCUSED: Marty Lemke

OTHERS PRESENT: Interim Administrative Coordinator Renee Krueger, Corporation Counsel Karry
Johnson, Maintenance Director Patrick Gierl, Finance Director Samantha Fenske, IT Director Travis
Spoehr (virtual), North Central Health Care (NCHC) Gary Olsen, Executive Director, NCHC Ryan Hanson,
Director of Nursing Home Operations Pine Crest. Members of the Public.

1. Call Meeting to Order: Meeting called to order by Chair Wickham at 9:01 am.
2. Public Comment: One person made a public comment.
3. Approval of Minutes from January 19, 2023 Meeting: M/2nd by Bialecki/Hartwig to

approve minutes. All Ayes - motion carried.
4. North Central Health Care (NCHC) Pine Crest Budget Update (NCHC Executive Director

Gary Olsen): Gary Olsen provided a recap of the funding changes between the Medicaid, the
Supplemental and the CPE. He provided a memo that will be attached to the minutes. There is an
effort to change the funding by contacting and meeting with DHS, legislators, etc. Chair Friske
and Interim Administrative Coordinator Krueger will be invited to the discussions. The auditors will
be there in a month to close out 2022. Executive committee will set the wage schedule at their
next meeting. Then the Finance Director will look at where things stand and make suggestions.

5. Review updated information for Draft AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest Report of Review
and Alternatives (Lincoln County Finance Director Samantha Fenske and NCHC
Representatives included for technical assistance):  Financial Fenske advised that previous
losses for 2018 and 2019 were covered by an interfund of Pine Crests. 2020 an amount from the
general fund was transferred to offset losses: 1.6 million. Fenske provided updated numbers on
pages 10, 11 and 13 of the handout which will be provided with the minutes. Fenske also advised
that the net position did decrease over time but will clarify and make sure there was no double
counting for the next meeting.

Olsen advised that the financials for NCHC put the nursing homes together and implemented a
formula. He is going to have Bobby break out the actual expenses for each location.

Maintenance Gierl provided updated documentation that he will provide electronically to be
included with the minutes. A summary, option to remodel, option to build new, projections on
projects and cost, annual operating budget and summary.

6. Develop Work Plan and Timeline:  Make Assignments for Next Meeting:
Committee agreed that one more meeting is needed before putting information together for the
full County Board.



Hanson and Krueger will reach out to stakeholders and determine what will be affected for
services for the adult population if Pine Crest closes.

Olsen will work on the numbers to see how much of the current loss will have to be covered by
Lincoln County. Olsen will also keep committee updated on funding.

Johnson will research Statutes, get more background information and gather the remainder of
the resolutions that allowed the contract between Lincoln County and NCHC. Johnson’s research
for this meeting will be attached to the minutes which include 7/31/2019 NCHC memo, 2020 Pine
Crest Budget proposal from NCHC, Resolution 2019-08-38, Minutes from the Pine Crest Nursing
Home Board of Trustees 10/11/2019 Meeting and Resolution 2021-11-50.

Krueger and Johnson will identify the process for selling or closing the facility.

Johnson and Cummings will review Wisconsin Statutes, the Administrative Code, any federal
regulations etc regarding county nursing homes.

Hartwig and Fenske will put together the referendum information such as the amount it will cost,
the proposed dollar amount that would need to be requested including maintenance and
operations, time table needed and election dates.

Wickham Updated the draft with pertinent numbers from discussion and include in the packet for
next meeting.

All Committee Members Read the original mission. Read the details on the draft. See if the work
is able to be completed and presented to the full County Board.

7. Set Next Meeting Date: 2/22/2023 at 4:00 pm
8. Adjourn: M/2nd Hartwig/Bialecki to adjourn at 11:09 am. All Ayes - motion carried.

Minutes prepared and respectfully submitted by, Supervisor Angela Cummings, Secretary



LINCOLN COUNTY
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest

Wednesday, February 22, 2023, 4:00 PM
Room 255/257/260 Government Services Center

801 N. Sales St., Merrill WI 54452
Meeting Minutes

____________________________________________________________________________

MEMBERS PRESENT: Ken Wickham (Chair), Supervisors Bill Bialecki, Greg Hartwig, Marty Lemke
(virtual) and Angela Cummings (virtual).

OTHERS PRESENT: Administrative Coordinator Renee Krueger, Corporation Counsel Karry Johnson,
Finance Director Samantha Fenske (virtual), IT Director Travis Spoehr (virtual), North Central Health Care
(NCHC) Executive Director Gary Olsen (virtual), NCHC Director of Nursing Home Operations Pine Crest
Ryan Hanson (virtual), NCHC Managing Director of Nursing Home/Residential Jarret Nickel (virtual),
NCHC Finance Director Jason Hake (via phone). Members of the Public in person and virtual.

1. Call Meeting to Order: Meeting called to order by Chair Wickham at 4:00 pm.
2. Public Comment: Two people made public comments.
3. Approval of Minutes from January 31, 2023 Meeting: M/2nd by Bialecki/Hartwig to

approve minutes. All Ayes - motion carried.
4. North Central Health Care (NCHC) Pine Crest Budget Update (NCHC Representatives):

Gary Olsen provided a recap of the funding changes between the Medicaid, the Supplemental
and the CPE. He advised the funding will not change in the next six months. January ended up
$61,000 profit for Pine Crest. Funding is split into two payments per year. The State’s fiscal year
friends from 7/1 to 6/30. $652,650 was received in December for the previous six months for the
Supplemental Payment. The Executive Committee for NCHC met today. They are looking at the
contracts, will talk to Finance and come to Lincoln County to cover the loss.

5. NCHC Potential Enhancements to Increase Census (NCHC Representatives): Hanson
advised that adding another dementia wing could increase the census. 5 units, 18-20 beds. It was
proposed before and would need a physical change. In 2019 the cost was $10-$15,000 to install
a firewall and/or door at the end of the 300 unit. Hospice was in that section but it didn’t work out
for them.

Nickel advised that if the census was raised from 16 to 18 residents that would equate to a
$183,000/annual increase. There is a word document and a financial document regarding this
idea. It will be forwarded to Olsen & Hake for review. Once reviewed, one of those two will send
the documents on to the committee members.

6. Review Updated Information for Draft AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest Report of Review
and Alternatives (Finance Director Samantha Fenske and NCHC Representatives included
for technical assistance): Went through draft where members suggested changes. Wickham to
meet with Fenske to make sure numbers are correct. Wickham to meet with Krueger to suggest a
better way to capture table information.

Hanson and Krueger will reach out to stakeholders and determine what will be affected for
services for the adult population if Pine Crest closes. They reported there is no clear data on this.
Unit Manager is working on date for Vicky Tylka, NCHC. It’s hard to put a value on this.

Highlight



Krueger and Johnson will identify the process for selling or closing the facility. Krueger and
Johnson wrote a document. Krueger will have a conversation with someone who experienced the
selling or closing of a facility. 60 days notice must be given. All residents have to be placed. It
would run for at least six months.

Johnson will research Statutes, get more background information and gather the remainder of
the resolutions that allowed the contract between Lincoln County and NCHC. These will be
provided to Wickham.

Johnson and Cummings will review Wisconsin Statutes, the Administrative Code, any federal
regulations etc regarding county nursing homes. Johnson advised there is no good language for
county vs private nursing home. Medicare.gov had some negative impacts on the sale but it didn’t
appear they were objective.

Hartwig and Fenske will put together the referendum information such as the amount it will cost,
the proposed dollar amount that would need to be requested including maintenance and
operations, time table needed and election dates. This was done and is included in the Draft.

7. Discuss Presentation for March County Board of Supervisors Meeting Discussion on how to
present information concisely and accurately. Next County Board Meeting is 3/21/2023.

8. Develop Work Plan and Timeline:  Make Assignments for Next Meeting:
Wickham Will prepare final draft for committee review before presenting to the full county board.
Will speak to Chair Friske and ask for direction on how the material should be presented, time
allowed, if it will be a Question and Answer session, etc.

Olsen/Hake will work on providing the actual breakdown for Pine Crest vs the formula that was
used for 2022. They will also work on the exact dollar amount that will be requested of Lincoln
County for the 2022 year based on the deficit.

Hartwig and Fenske will research further if the referendum could ask for up to a certain dollar
amount or if it has to be dollar specific. They will also research if a certain number of years can be
put in the referendum or if it can be unlimited. Johnson will share the WCA document on
referendums.

9. Set Next Meeting Date: Call of the Chair
10. Adjourn: Wickham adjourned meeting at 6:08 pm.

Minutes prepared and respectfully submitted by, Supervisor Angela Cummings, Secretary



LINCOLN COUNTY
AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest

Wednesday, February 22, 2023, 4:00 PM
Room 255/257/260 Government Services Center

801 N. Sales St., Merrill WI 54452
Meeting Minutes

____________________________________________________________________________

MEMBERS PRESENT: Ken Wickham (Chair), Supervisors Bill Bialecki, Greg Hartwig, Marty Lemke
(virtual) and Angela Cummings (virtual).

OTHERS PRESENT: Administrative Coordinator Renee Krueger, Corporation Counsel Karry Johnson,
Finance Director Samantha Fenske (virtual), IT Director Travis Spoehr (virtual), North Central Health Care
(NCHC) Executive Director Gary Olsen (virtual), NCHC Director of Nursing Home Operations Pine Crest
Ryan Hanson (virtual), NCHC Managing Director of Nursing Home/Residential Jarret Nickel (virtual),
NCHC Finance Director Jason Hake (via phone). Members of the Public in person and virtual.

1. Call Meeting to Order: Meeting called to order by Chair Wickham at 4:00 pm.
2. Public Comment: Two people made public comments.
3. Approval of Minutes from January 31, 2023 Meeting: M/2nd by Bialecki/Hartwig to

approve minutes. All Ayes - motion carried.
4. North Central Health Care (NCHC) Pine Crest Budget Update (NCHC Representatives):

Gary Olsen provided a recap of the funding changes between the Medicaid, the Supplemental
and the CPE. He advised the funding will not change in the next six months. January ended up
$61,000 profit for Pine Crest. Funding is split into two payments per year. The State’s fiscal year
runs from 7/1 to 6/30. $652,650 was received in December for the previous six months for the
Supplemental Payment. The Executive Committee for NCHC met today. They are looking at the
contracts, will talk to Finance and come to Lincoln County to cover the loss.

5. NCHC Potential Enhancements to Increase Census (NCHC Representatives): Hanson
advised that adding another dementia wing could increase the census. 5 units, 18-20 beds. It was
proposed before and would need a physical change. In 2019 the cost was $10-$15,000 to install
a firewall and/or door at the end of the 300 unit. Hospice was in that section but it didn’t work out
for them.

Nickel advised that if the census was raised from 16 to 18 residents that would equate to a
$183,000/annual increase. There is a word document and a financial document regarding this
idea. It will be forwarded to Olsen & Hake for review. Once reviewed, one of those two will send
the documents on to the committee members.

6. Review Updated Information for Draft AD HOC Committee on Pine Crest Report of Review
and Alternatives (Finance Director Samantha Fenske and NCHC Representatives included
for technical assistance): Went through draft where members suggested changes. Wickham to
meet with Fenske to make sure numbers are correct. Wickham to meet with Krueger to suggest a
better way to capture table information.

Hanson and Krueger will reach out to stakeholders and determine what will be affected for
services for the adult population if Pine Crest closes. They reported there is no clear data on this.
Unit Manager is working on date for Vicky Tylka, NCHC. It’s hard to put a value on this.



Krueger and Johnson will identify the process for selling or closing the facility. Krueger and
Johnson wrote a document. Krueger will have a conversation with someone who experienced the
selling or closing of a facility. 60 days notice must be given. All residents have to be placed. It
would run for at least six months.

Johnson will research Statutes, get more background information and gather the remainder of
the resolutions that allowed the contract between Lincoln County and NCHC. These will be
provided to Wickham.

Johnson and Cummings will review Wisconsin Statutes, the Administrative Code, any federal
regulations etc regarding county nursing homes. Johnson advised there is no good language for
county vs private nursing home. Medicare.gov had some negative impacts on the sale but it didn’t
appear they were objective.

Hartwig and Fenske will put together the referendum information such as the amount it will cost,
the proposed dollar amount that would need to be requested including maintenance and
operations, time table needed and election dates. This was done and is included in the Draft.

7. Discuss Presentation for March County Board of Supervisors Meeting Discussion on how to
present information concisely and accurately. Next County Board Meeting is 3/21/2023.

8. Develop Work Plan and Timeline:  Make Assignments for Next Meeting:
Wickham Will prepare final draft for committee review before presenting to the full county board.
Will speak to Chair Friske and ask for direction on how the material should be presented, time
allowed, if it will be a Question and Answer session, etc.

Olsen/Hake will work on providing the actual breakdown for shared services for Pine Crest vs the
formula that was used for 2022. They will also work on the exact dollar amount that will be
requested of Lincoln County for the 2022 year based on the deficit. Executive committee was to
set the wage schedule for NCHC. Then the Finance Director was to look at where things stand
and make suggestions. This committee was to be updated with those changes.

Fenske will clarify the net position of Pine Crest and make sure there was no double counting.
She will also provide the actual dollars Lincoln County puts into Pine Crest each year.

Hartwig and Fenske will research further if the referendum could ask for up to a certain dollar
amount or if it has to be dollar specific. They will also research if a certain number of years can be
put in the referendum or if it can be unlimited. Johnson will share the WCA document on
referendums.

9. Set Next Meeting Date: Call of the Chair
10. Adjourn: Wickham adjourned meeting at 6:08 pm.

Minutes prepared and respectfully submitted by, Supervisor Angela Cummings, Secretary



Lincoln County – Pine Crest Nursing Home 
Minutes of Monday, May 13, 2019 Board of Trustees Meeting  

Pine Crest Nursing Home Conference Room  
 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Bob Weaver, Paul Gilk, Patricia Voermans, Ken Neff and Kathy Wulf 
 
VISITORS:  Jason Hake, Lisa Gervais, Ryan Hanson, Gayle Preu, Michael Loy, Brenda 
Glodowski, Kim Gochanour    
 

1. Call Meeting to Order:  Chair Wulf called the meeting to order at 8:05 a.m. 
 

2. Approval of Minutes from 5/02/19 Meeting(s):  Motion by Voermans to approve 
minutes from the 5/02/19 meeting, seconded by Neff. All ayes.  Motion carried.  

 
3. Census Report:  The average Monthly Census for April was 153, which puts the 

occupancy rate at 85%. There were a total of 21 admissions during the month and 26 
permanent discharges.  The report was placed on file.  

 
4. Financial Report: Gervais stated we should be getting our ITP revenue shortly and it 

will be about $2.1 million.  The report was placed on file.   
 

5. 2019 Budget Update**:  Hake stated that he worked with North Central Health Care to 
come up with a more accurate budget for 2019.  That budget reflects a $1.4 million 
deficit if we continue operating as is.  The largest expenses that must be looked at are 
wages and contracted staffing.  Hake stated that now we have the market study 
complete and a more accurate 2019 budget projection we can using that information to 
help assist in making necessary changes to get Pine Crest back to operating at a 
sustainable level.   

 
6. 2020 Budget Creation** 

 
7. Approval to contract with North Central Health Care as Interim Administrator:   

 
Motion by Patricia Voermans to approve North Central Health Care as Interim 
Administrator, to assist in preparing the 2020 budget creation (item #6) and to authorize 
Jason Hake, Administrative Coordinator to sign the Interim Contract, second by Bob 
Weaver.  All Ayes. Motion Carried.  
 

8. Corporate Compliance Policy:  
 

9. Approval of Long Term Care Facilities Standards for MD’s, Physician Assistants, 
and Nurse Practioners:  

 
Motion by Weaver to approve the corporate compliance policy (item #8) and approval 
of long term care facilities standards for MD’s, Physician Assistants, and Nurse 
Practioners (item #9), second by Neff.  All Ayes. Motion Carried.   
 

 

Ken.Wickham
Text Box
Appendix D



Administrative and Legislative Committee 

 
 

10. Pine Crest Update  
a) Staffing Update:  Ryan Hanson gave a verbal update on the staffing as well as the 

possibility to utilize Indeed for a percentage of the annual salary of the position that 
is recruited if the employee stays for 30 days or more.  Under the agreement, if the 
employee does not stay for 30 days, Pine Crest does not have to pay the 
recruitment fee.  General consensus in the room was this was a good idea to utilize 
this service.   
Discussion also took place on the agency staffing and the difficulty to recruit good 
qualified staff for open positions in this area.   

b) Quality/Risk Manager Vacancy Position:  Lisa Gervais explained the opening and 
the recruitment of this position.  This position will also now include Transportation 
monitoring as well.  This will be added to the job description.   

c) Scheduler/HR Position** Ryan Hanson and Lisa Gervais gave a verbal update on 
the offer that was made this morning to a scheduler that has experience in general 
HR.  This is an important role at this time due to Pine Crest not having an HR. Many 
of these HR duties have been completed by Pine Crest staff and administrator.   

d) Leading Choice Network Renewal** Discussion was had on whether Pine Crest is 
getting enough out of this membership and if it is a good use of dollars.  Motion by 
Weaver discontinue Leading Choice Network Renewal, second by Voermans.  All 
Ayes. Motion Carried.  

e) Approval for Out of State Conference for Environmental Director:  Discussion 
was had regarding setting a precedent for future requests.  Motion by Patricia 
Voermans to deny out of state conference for Environmental Director, second by 
Weaver.  All Ayes.  Motion Carried.  
 

11.   Set Next Meeting, Tuesday May 28, 2019** 
  
 

12. Adjourn:  Motion by Voermans, second by Weaver to adjourn the meeting.  All Ayes. 
Motion Carried.  
 

Minutes prepared by Jason Hake, Administrative Coordinator & Lisa Gervais, Pine 

Crest Administrator  



Lincoln County – Pine Crest Nursing Home 
Minutes of Friday, October 11, 2019 Board of Trustees Meeting  

Pine Crest Nursing Home Conference Room  
 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Bob Weaver, Paul Gilk, Kathy Wulf, Ken Neff, Patricia Voermans 
ABSENT:  Ken Neff 
VISITORS: Jason Hake, Kim Gochanour, Ryan Hanson, Gayle Preu, Michael Loy, Zach 
Ziesemer, Jarret Nickel 
 

1. Call Meeting to Order:  Chair Wulf called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. 
 

2. Approval of Minutes from Previous Meeting(s) – 9/16/19: Wulf stated she would like 
to see “finding” in item #4 change to deficiency.   

 
Motion by Gilk to approve the meeting minutes from the 9/16/19 meeting with the 
change of “finding” to deficiency in item #4, second by Voermans.  All ayes. Motion 
carries.  
 
Item #5 was moved up to item #3 in the agenda  
 

3. Wage Comparison of RN & LPN positions to NCHC: Kim Gochanour and Jarret 
Nickel from NCHC reviewed the handout which reviewed the current wages for RN, 
LPN & CNA positions compared to market. The recommendation from NCHC is to 
increase wages to the proposed amount, effective December 1, 2019.  This 
recommendation will have an annual estimated cost of $178,644, which will be funded 
within the current Pine Crest budget. 

 
Jason stated that by approving this it could have an effect on the rest of the county.  
The salary study that was implemented in 2017 placed employees on step 1, with step 
6 being the market rate.  By moving Pine Crest employees up to market rate what 
message does this send to other county departments?   
 
Motion by Weaver to approve the proposed wage increases, effective December 1, 
2019, second by Voermans.  All ayes. Motion carried.  

 
4. Increase in Shift Differential Pay:  Kim Gochanour and Jarret Nickel from NCHC 

reviewed the handout, which reviewed the current shift differential rates and the 
proposal rate, that would align Pine Crest and NCHC’s shift differential rates.  The 
estimated fiscal impact of increase shift differentials is $32,952, which will be funded 
within the current Pine Crest budget.   

 
Motion by Weaver to increase the shift differential pay to the proposed rates, second by 
Voermans.  All ayes. Motion carried.  
 

5. Reduction of Bed Licenses:  Kim Gochanour reviewed the handout.  The average 
census over the last 4 years has decreased from 162.98 to 153.68.  The impacts of 
change if Pine Crest were to reduce bed size was also discussed.  This would include a 
reduction of 1 RN FTE, wing consolidation and an annual bed tax savings of $40,800.   

Ken.Wickham
Text Box
Appendix E



Pine Crest Board of Trustees 
 
 

Motion by Weaver to reduce bed license count from 180 to 160, second by Voermans.  
All ayes. Motion carried.   
 

6. Facility Assessment: Jason Hake gave an overview of the facility tour he took with 
maintenance staff.  The best way to sum up the assessment is much of the 
maintenance equipment is past its useful life and needs to be replaced.  There will be a 
facility assessment completed in November and Pat Gierl will be working on creating a 
plan going forward.  
 

7. Adjournment: Motion by Wulf to adjourn the meeting, second by Gilk.  All ayes.  
Motion carried on a voice vote.  
 

Minutes prepared by Jason Hake, Administrative Coordinator  



  

Motion by: 

Second by: 

  

Dist.| Supervisor | Y | N |Abs   

19 Allen   
6 |Ashbeck   
1 Bialecki   

11 [Breitenmoser   
13 (Callahan   
12 Gilk   
20 \Gorski   
14 \Hafeman   
8 Heller   

  

17 {Koth   
15 {Lee   

16 [Loka   
3 [Mueller   

  21 Nowak 

2 2 Panfil   
10 [Ratliff   
7 Rusch   
5 Saal   

18 {Voermans   
2 |Weaver 
  

4 |Woellner           Totals   

Carried 

Defeated 

Amended 

Voice vote 

Roll call       

STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF LINCOLN ) 

I hereby certify that this 

resolution/ordinance 

is a true and correct copy of a 

resolution/ordinance adopted 
by Lincoln County Board of 

Supervisors on: 

Christopher J. Marlowe 
County Clerk 

Resolution 2019-08-38 

Approval to Contract with North Central Health Care for the Ongoing Management of Pine 

Crest Nursing Home 

WHEREAS, Lincoln County — along with Langlade and Marathon Counties — owns North Central 

Health Care, our AOD/mental health/developmental disability program provider; and 

WHEREAS, North Central Health Care (NCHC), with whom we have an almost 50 year history of 

collaboration, manages Mount View Care Center, a 200 bed skilled nursing facility owned by 

Marathon County; and 

WHEREAS, in May of 2019 when Lisa Gervais retired, to comply with a Wis. Admin rule 

requiring that every nursing home be supervised by a full-time administrator, the Pine Crest 

Board of Trustees approved NCHC as the Interim Administrator of Pine Crest Nursing Home 

(PCNH); and 

WHEREAS, given the timing of this retirement, this appointment included the requirement that 

NCHC develop a budget (for 2020) for PCNH; and 

WHEREAS, the PCNH Trustees have considered budget proposals for 2020 — one that continues 

the management/operations status quo which reflects a projected deficit of $769,470 and one 

under which NCHC manages PCNH and trims the 2020 projected operating deficit to $209,173; 

and 

WHEREAS, in light of a six year history of substantial program (net operating) losses at PCNH, 

in order to secure the viability of our county-owned facility for county residents, it has been 

determined that contracting with NCHC for the ongoing management of PCNH is most 

advantageous to both PCNH residents and Lincoln County; and 

WHEREAS, on 7/22/19, the PCNH Trustees unanimously approved the PCNH 2020 preliminary 

budget which is premised on NCHC assuming the ongoing management of PCNH; and 

WHEREAS, at the same meeting, the PCNH Trustees unanimously voted to proceed with 

planning and approvals to contract with NCHC to manage PCNH going forward; and 

WHEREAS, on 8/5/19, the PCNH Trustees unanimously approved contracting with NCHC for 

the ongoing management of PCNH via a written management agreement; and 

WHEREAS, under this management agreement, NCHC will assume the ongoing management 

responsibility for PCNH, with Lincoln County retaining ownership of the facility and its’ 

capital/fixed assets; and 

WHEREAS, the management agreement will be developed by the Trustees, county 

administration/finance/legal staff (and NCHC management) consistent with County Board 

budget parameters; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that Lincoln County Board of Supervisors does hereby 

authorize a management agreement with NCHC for the ongoing management of PCNH.

Ken.Wickham
Text Box
Appendix F



Dated: August 20, 2019 

Introduced by: Administrative & Legislative Committee; Finance Committee (based on PCNH Trustees action) 

A &L Committee passed (7-0) on 8/7/19 

Finance Committee passed (5-0) on 8/9/19 

Fiscal Impact: The fiscal impact will result in an operating income savings of roughly $500,000 in the first year; annual 

budgets will follow county budgeting protocols/approvals 

Drafted by: Jason Hake, Administrative Coordinator (Consistent with Pine Crest Board of Trustees action)



  

Motion by: 

Second by: 

  

Dist| Supervisor | Y | N |Abs   

19 JAllen   
6 lAshbeck   

| Bialecki   

11 Breitenmoser   

13 Callahan   

9 lriske   

12 (Gilk   

20 |Gorski   

14 [Hafeman   

8 Heller   

17 KKoth   

16 |Loka   

3 |McCrank   

15 Nelson   

22 |Pantil   

> |Peterson   

7 Rusch   

21 |Simon   

18 }Voermans   

Weaver   2 

4 |Wendt     10 JWoller         Totals   

Carried 

Defeated 

Amended 

Voice vote 

Roll call       

STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 

) SS: 

COUNTY OF LINCOLN _ ) 

I hereby certify that this 

resolution/ordinance 

is a true and correct copy of a 

resolution/ordinance adopted 

by Lincoln County Board of 

Supervisors on: 

Christopher J. Marlowe 

County Clerk 

Resolution 2021-11-50 

Reduction in Bed Licenses at Pine Crest Nursing Home 

WHEREAS, Pine Crest Nursing Home, a County owned entity that is currently managed by North 

Central Health Care (NCHC), has been operating at a financial loss for several years. NCHC 

commissioned a study conducted by Clifton, Larson Allen Wealth Advisors (CLA) to understand 

future trends, needs and financial outlook for the nursing home industry; and 

WHEREAS, CLA researched the nursing home market within our region and concluded that the 

ongoing need and viability of nursing homes is in decline. As such, CLA’s recommendation, 

which is supported by NCHC, is to reduce the number of bed licenses at Pine Crest Nursing 

Home; and 

WHEREAS, Pine Crest has been running at approximately 60% capacity since COVID. The 

projected ongoing census for Pine Crest will remain at or below 100 residents. Currently Lincoln 

County owns 160 bed licensing (at $170 per license, per month). NCHC recommends reducing 

the bed licensing to 120 at this time, based on the CLA findings. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, Lincoln County, on the recommendation of NCHC and the 

CLA report, shall immediately reduce the bed licensing from 160 to 120 to provide some off-set 

to current financial loss and align with reported trends for nursing homes within the Lincoln 

County surveyed region. 

Dated: November 9, 2021 

Introduced by: Cate Wylie in collaboration with NCHC 

Endorsed by: A&L Committee 

Date Passed: 11/3/2021 Committee Vote: unanimous vote 

Fiscal Impact: $81,600 annually for NCHC 

Drafted by: Cate Wylie, Administrative Coordinator

Ken.Wickham
Text Box
Appendix G



Ken.Wickham
Text Box
Appendix H

















































Ken.Wickham
Text Box
Appendix I





































Ken.Wickham
Text Box
Appendix J









LINCOLN COUNTY 

DEBT SCHEDULE 

FOR THE YEAR 2023

BALANCE BALANCE 2029 2034

ISSUE 1/1/23 PAYMENTS ADDITIONS DEFEASED  12/31/23 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2033 2038 TOTAL

G.O. REFUNDING BONDS 12/1/16

30015658.531081 P 5,990,000.00 895,000.00 5,095,000.00 935,000.00 975,000.00 1,015,000.00 1,060,000.00 1,110,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,095,000.00

30015658.531080 I 374,300.00 110,850.00 263,450.00 92,550.00 73,450.00 53,550.00 32,800.00 11,100.00 0.00 0.00 263,450.00

TOTAL  PRINC 5,990,000.00 895,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,095,000.00 935,000.00 975,000.00 1,015,000.00 1,060,000.00 1,110,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,095,000.00

TOTAL INT 374,300.00 110,850.00 0.00 0.00 263,450.00 92,550.00 73,450.00 53,550.00 32,800.00 11,100.00 0.00 0.00 263,450.00

TOTAL 6,364,300.00 1,005,850.00 0.00 0.00 5,358,450.00 1,027,550.00 1,048,450.00 1,068,550.00 1,092,800.00 1,121,100.00 0.00 0.00 5,358,450.00

FUNDED THROUGH REIMBURSEMENTS

GO REFUNDING BONDS 12/1/21

61000000.223000 P 2,515,000.00 80,000.00 2,435,000.00 80,000.00 80,000.00 80,000.00 85,000.00 90,000.00 475,000.00 1,545,000.00 2,435,000.00

61000000.224000 I 597,370.00 50,510.00 546,860.00 49,990.00 49,470.00 48,950.00 46,550.00 44,000.00 184,300.00 123,600.00 546,860.00

GO REFUNDING BONDS 2/14/17

61000000.223000 P 5,545,000.00 325,000.00 5,220,000.00 335,000.00 345,000.00 355,000.00 365,000.00 375,000.00 2,050,000.00 1,395,000.00 5,220,000.00

61000000.224000 I 1,450,737.00 176,500.00 1,274,237.00 166,750.00 156,700.00 146,350.00 135,700.00 124,750.00 445,287.00 98,700.00 1,274,237.00

PINE CREST PRINCIPAL P 8,060,000.00 405,000.00 0.00 0.00 7,655,000.00 415,000.00 425,000.00 435,000.00 450,000.00 465,000.00 2,525,000.00 2,940,000.00 7,655,000.00

PINE CREST INTEREST I 2,048,107.00 227,010.00 0.00 0.00 1,821,097.00 216,740.00 206,170.00 195,300.00 182,250.00 168,750.00 629,587.00 222,300.00 1,821,097.00

TOTAL PINE CREST PAYMENTS 10,108,107.00 632,010.00 0.00 0.00 9,476,097.00

TOTAL COUNTY PRINCIPAL 14,050,000.00 1,300,000.00 0.00 0.00 12,750,000.00 1,350,000.00 1,400,000.00 1,450,000.00 1,510,000.00 1,575,000.00 2,525,000.00 2,940,000.00 12,750,000.00

TOTAL COUNTY INTEREST 2,422,407.00 337,860.00 0.00 0.00 2,084,547.00 309,290.00 279,620.00 248,850.00 215,050.00 179,850.00 629,587.00 222,300.00 2,084,547.00

Ken.Wickham
Text Box
Appendix K - Lincoln County Debt Schedule 2023-2038



Prepared for: 

Lincoln County 
801 North Sales Street 
Merrill, Wisconsin 54452 

FACILITY CONDITION ASSESSMENT 

Lincoln County 
801 North Sales Street 
Merrill, Wisconsin 54452 

PREPARED BY: EMG CONTACT: 

EMG Brian Vickers 
10461 Mill Run Circle, Suite 1100 Senior Engineering Consultant 

Owings Mills, Maryland 21117 800.733.0660 x6243 

800.733.0660 Brian.Vickers@bvna.com 

www.EMGcorp.com 

EMG Project Number:     Date of Report:          On Site Date: 

141484.19R000-001.322     January 8, 2020          December 4-6, 2019 

FACILITY CONDITION ASSESSMENT 

http://www.emgcorp.com/
Ken.Wickham
Text Box
Appendix L



����������	�
�����	�
��������������������� �� ����������
��� ������������ ���������������� ��!��������	�
����"���������#$%&�'(&)*�+,()$%-�'&%*&(�.�#$%&�'(&)*�+,()$%-�'&%*&(/0012345$)*($6,*$7%�#,89:�;&<*$%-�=<*&(:�>?�*7�>2�;#:�@&9A<B& / CD E/F:0??G??E/F:0?? H�IJK��#$%&�'(&)*�+,()$%-�'&%*&(�.�#$%&�'(&)*�+,()$%-�'&%*&(/00122F5$)*($6,*$7%�#,89:�;&<*$%-�=<*&(:�F�;#:�@&9A<B& / CD E2:/??G?? E2:/?? HLJ�������������	�
�����M�� H�NJO��P�Q7B<*$7%�R<B*7(�$%BA,S&S�$%�*7*<A)G
 



����������	
�������
�����	���������������� ��������� ��������	���� �� ���	
�������	���  �������!"� # "$�� �� %���	�	&���	 ���	
���	
' ���	�	�� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���( ���) ���* ���+ ���, ���- ���� ��(� ��(� ��(� ��(( ��() ��(* ��(+ ��(, ��(- ��(� ���������&������"�	���	�./01
23145
6734/08
210513 9:;<< <=>?@AABC513/D3
EFGGH
I57JJDH
<K:
I5D3/14H
L1MGFJ1 N; ?@ < O?;; IP Q:;R;; Q<=OH;;; 
Q<=OH;;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S�+-T���./01
23145
6734/08
210513 9:;<< <=>?@A:BC513/D3
EFGGH
F0U
.F/051V
I73WFJ1H
<K:
I5D3/14H
.31M
X
.F/05 <; O : :O;;; IP QAR;; QO?H;;; 
 
 QO?H;;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
QO?H;;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S�+-T���./01
23145
6734/08
210513 9:;:< <=>?@?NE/0VDYH
ZG7[/07[
\D7]G1K̂GF_1V
:?
IPH
<K:
I5D3/14H
L1MGFJ1 A; :; <; A;; BZ Q@N;R;; Q:ONH;;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q:ONH;;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S�-*T���./01
23145
6734/08
210513 9:;:A <=>?@?@I5D31W3D05H
̀15FGKP3F[1V
Aa
C
>a
IY/08/08
\DD3
b0GUH
L1MGFJ1 A; :> A ? BZ Q<HA;;R;; QNH:;; 
 
 
 QNH:;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S*T���./01
23145
6734/08
210513 9:;A: <=>NNOABC513/D3
\DD3H
I511G
P3F[1
L1MGFJ1[105H
L1MGFJ1 ?; AO : <; BZ Q=;;R;; Q=H;;; 
 
 Q=H;;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S+T���./01
23145
6734/08
210513 9:;A: <=>?@N;BC513/D3
\DD3H
I511GH
L1MGFJ1 ?; :> <A A; BZ Q=;;R;; Q<OH;;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q<OH;;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S�-T���./01
23145
6734/08
210513 9:;A? <=>?>>;bc13d1FV
\DD3H
L14/V105/FG
̂F3F81
N=
IPH
L1MGFJ1 A; <N <N < BZ Q@N;R;; Q@N; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q@N; 
 
 
 
 
 S�*�./01
23145
6734/08
210513 9A;<< <=>?@:>LDDWH
97/G5KeMH
L1MGFJ1 :N :? < :;;;; IP Q<?R;; Q:O;H;;; 
Q:O;H;;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S�-�T���./01
23145
6734/08
210513 9A;<< <=>?@:OLDDWH
Z4MdFG5
Id/08G1
A;Kf1F3H
L1MGFJ1 A; :> A =;;;; IP QNRN; QAA;H;;; 
 
 
 QAA;H;;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S((�T���./01
23145
6734/08
210513 9A;<< <=>?@:@LDDWH
I/08G1K.GU
g.bh.i2
̀1[]3F01H
L1MGFJ1 :; > <A <<;;; IP Q<>R;; Q<O>H;;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q<O>H;;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S�-,T���./01
23145
6734/08
210513 2<;AA <=>N:OAjDJk134H
I511G
9Fk1V
B0F[1GH
<:l
E
C
<Nl
\
C
>:l
mH
L1MGFJ1 :; <; <; :: BZ QN;;R;; Q<<H;;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q<<H;;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S��T���./01
23145
6734/08
210513 2A;<: <=>N:@An0513/D3
EFGG
P/0/4dH
F0U
473WFJ1H
.31M
X
.F/05 <; N N :A:;;; IP Q<RN; QA?OH;;; 
 
 
 
 
 QA?OH;;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 QA?OH;;; 
 
 
 
 
 S+�+T���./01
23145
6734/08
210513 2A;:< <=>N:=?n0513/D3
PGDD3
P/0/4dH
F0U
473WFJ1
Yh
BMDCU
2DF5/08H
.31M
X
.F/05 <; N N <=; IP Q<:R;; Q<H@:; 
 
 
 
 
 Q<H@:; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q<H@:; 
 
 
 
 
 S(T-)�./01
23145
6734/08
210513 2A;:? <=>N:O;n0513/D3
PGDD3
P/0/4dH
j/0DG17[H
L1MGFJ1 <N O > <<O? IP QARN; Q?H<?? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q?H<?? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S)T�))./01
23145
6734/08
210513 2A;:? <=>N:>>n0513/D3
PGDD3
P/0/4dH
i/0UG
g/G1
oi2gpH
L1MGFJ1 <N O > <<>= IP QNR;; QNHOO; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 QNHOO; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S*T--�./01
23145
6734/08
210513 2A;:N <=>N:>@n0513/D3
PGDD3
P/0/4dH
2F3M15
2D[[13J/FG
I5F0VF3VH
L1MGFJ1 <; N N <;A: IP Q>RN; Q>H>?; 
 
 
 
 
 Q>H>?; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q>H>?; 
 
 
 
 
 S�*T)-�./01
23145
6734/08
210513 2A;A: <=>N:=On0513/D3
21/G/08
P/0/4dH
I74M10V1V
ZJD745/JFG
g/G1
oZ2gpH
L1MGFJ1 :N <N <; A;O IP QARN; Q<H;>O 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q<H;>O 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S�T�,-./01
23145
6734/08
210513 2A;A: <=>N:>On0513/D3
21/G/08
P/0/4dH
I74M10V1V
ZJD745/JFG
g/G1
oZ2gpH
L1MGFJ1 :N <; <N AA@: IP QARN; Q<<HO>: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q<<HO>: 
 
 
 
 
 S��T-,�./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \<;<< <==O:A=BG1cF5D3
2D053DG4H
Z75D[F5/JH
<
2F3H
310DcF51 :; <O : < BZ QNH;;;R;; QNH;;; 
 
 QNH;;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S*T���./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \<;<< <=>?=>OBG1cF5D3
2D053DG4H
Z75D[F5/JH
<
2F3H
310DcF51 :; <N N < BZ QNH;;;R;; QNH;;; 
 
 
 
 
 QNH;;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S*T���./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \<;<< <=>?>A;BG1cF5D3H
mUV3F7G/JH
A;;;
5D
?;;;
j9H
:
PGDD34H
L10DcF51 A; <N <N < BZ Q=;H;;;R;; Q=;H;;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q=;H;;; 
 
 
 
 
 S+�T���./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \<;<< <=>?>??BG1cF5D3H
mUV3F7G/JH
A;;;
5D
?;;;
j9H
:
PGDD34H
L10DcF51 A; <N <N < BZ Q=;H;;;R;; Q=;H;;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q=;H;;; 
 
 
 
 
 S+�T���./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \:;<< <=>N:O?gD/G15H
2D[[13J/FG
EF513
2GD415H
L1MGFJ1 A; <N <N ? BZ Q<HA;;R;; QNH:;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 QNH:;; 
 
 
 
 
 S*T���./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \:;<? <==>@N@2D[[13J/FG
q/5Jd10
I/0kH
I5F/0G144
I511GH
AK9DYGH
L1MGFJ1 A; :; <; < BZ Q:HN;;R;; Q:HN;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q:HN;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S�T*��./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \:;<? <==>@=N2D[[13J/FG
q/5Jd10
I/0kH
I5F/0G144
I511GH
AK9DYGH
L1MGFJ1 A; :; <; < BZ Q:HN;;R;; Q:HN;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q:HN;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S�T*��./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \:;<? <=>N:ONI/0khjFcF5D3UH
EFGGKm708H
i/531D74
2d/0FH
L1MGFJ1 A; <N <N ? BZ Q<HN;;R;; Q=H;;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q=H;;; 
 
 
 
 
 S+T���./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \:;<O <=>?>?;\3/0k/08
PD705F/0H
n0513/D3H
L1MGFJ1 <N <; N < BZ Q<H@;;R;; Q<H@;; 
 
 
 
 
 Q<H@;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q<H@;; S(T-��./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \:;:< <==>@==9FJkWGDY
.31c10513H
\D[145/JH
;R>NlH
L1MGFJ1 A; <N <N < BZ Q<H<;;R;; Q<H<;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q<H<;; 
 
 
 
 
 S�T���./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \:;@< <=>?>AAZ/3
2D[M3144D3H
;R>N
m.H
L1MGFJ1 :; <O : < BZ QNH<N;R;; QNH<N; 
 
 QNH<N; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S*T�*�./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \:;@< <=>?>A@Z/3
2D[M3144D3H
:
m.H
L1MGFJ1 :; <N N < BZ Q>H:>;R;; Q>H:>; 
 
 
 
 
 Q>H:>; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S,T�,�./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \:;@< <=>?>AOZ/3
2D[M3144D3H
:
m.H
L1MGFJ1 :; <; <; < BZ Q>H:>;R;; Q>H:>; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q>H:>; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S,T�,�./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \A;A: <=>?>@O2D0V104/08
e0/5hm1F5
.7[MH
IMG/5
IU451[H
O
5D
<;
gD0H
L1MGFJ1 <N <A : < BZ Q<>H:;;R;; Q<>H:;; 
 
 Q<>H:;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q<>H:;; 
 
 
 S()T)��./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \A;A: <=>?O?A2D0V104/08
e0/5hm1F5
.7[MH
IMG/5
IU451[H
<A
5D
<N
gD0H
L1MGFJ1 <N <A : < BZ Q:NHA;;R;; Q:NHA;; 
 
 Q:NHA;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q:NHA;; 
 
 
 S*�T+��./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \A;A: <==>@>N2D0V104/08
e0/5hm1F5
.7[MH
IMG/5
IU451[H
O
5D
<;
gD0H
L1MGFJ1 <N <A : < BZ Q<>H:;;R;; Q<>H:;; 
 
 Q<>H:;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q<>H:;; 
 
 
 S()T)��./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \A;A: <=>?O;:2D0V104/08
e0/5hm1F5
.7[MH
IMG/5
IU451[H
<<
5D
<:RN
gD0H
L1MGFJ1 <N <A : < BZ Q:<H:;;R;; Q:<H:;; 
 
 Q:<H:;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q:<H:;; 
 
 
 S)�T)��./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \A;A: <=>?O?;2D0V104/08
e0/5hm1F5
.7[MH
IMG/5
IU451[H
O
5D
<;
gD0H
L1MGFJ1 <N <A : < BZ Q<>H:;;R;; Q<>H:;; 
 
 Q<>H:;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q<>H:;; 
 
 
 S()T)��./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \A;A: <=>?>@:2D0V104/08
e0/5hm1F5
.7[MH
IMG/5
IU451[H
<A
5D
<N
gD0H
L1MGFJ1 <N <A : < BZ Q:NHA;;R;; Q:NHA;; 
 
 Q:NHA;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q:NHA;; 
 
 
 S*�T+��./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \A;A: <=>?>OO2D0V104/08
e0/5hm1F5
.7[MH
IMG/5
IU451[H
<A
5D
<N
gD0H
L1MGFJ1 <N <A : < BZ Q:NHA;;R;; Q:NHA;; 
 
 Q:NHA;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q:NHA;; 
 
 
 S*�T+��./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \A;A: <=>?>@<2D0V104/08
e0/5hm1F5
.7[MH
IMG/5
IU451[H
O
5D
<;
gD0H
L1MGFJ1 <N <A : < BZ Q<>H:;;R;; Q<>H:;; 
 
 Q<>H:;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q<>H:;; 
 
 
 S()T)��./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \A;A: <=>?OA@2D0V104/08
e0/5hm1F5
.7[MH
IMG/5
IU451[H
<<
5D
<:RN
gD0H
L1MGFJ1 <N <A : < BZ Q:<H:;;R;; Q:<H:;; 
 
 Q:<H:;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q:<H:;; 
 
 
 S)�T)��./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \A;A: <=>?O?:2D0V104/08
e0/5hm1F5
.7[MH
IMG/5
IU451[H
<A
5D
<N
gD0H
L1MGFJ1 <N <A : < BZ Q:NHA;;R;; Q:NHA;; 
 
 Q:NHA;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q:NHA;; 
 
 
 S*�T+��./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \A;A: <=>?>@=2D0V104/08
e0/5hm1F5
.7[MH
IMG/5
IU451[H
O
5D
<;
gD0H
L1MGFJ1 <N <A : < BZ Q<>H:;;R;; Q<>H:;; 
 
 Q<>H:;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q<>H:;; 
 
 
 S()T)��./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \A;A: <=>?O?<2D0V104/08
e0/5hm1F5
.7[MH
IMG/5
IU451[H
<<
5D
<:RN
gD0H
L1MGFJ1 <N <A : < BZ Q:<H:;;R;; Q:<H:;; 
 
 Q:<H:;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q:<H:;; 
 
 
 S)�T)��./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \A;A: <=>?>@>2D0V104/08
e0/5hm1F5
.7[MH
IMG/5
IU451[H
O
5D
<;
gD0H
L1MGFJ1 <N <A : < BZ Q<>H:;;R;; Q<>H:;; 
 
 Q<>H:;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q<>H:;; 
 
 
 S()T)��./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \A;A: <==>@@;2D0V104/08
e0/5hm1F5
.7[MH
IMG/5
IU451[H
N
gD0H
L1MGFJ1 <N <: A < BZ Q>H<;;R;; Q>H<;; 
 
 
 Q>H<;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q>H<;; 
 
 S�)T���./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \A;A: <==>@@<2D0V104/08
e0/5hm1F5
.7[MH
IMG/5
IU451[H
ARN
gD0H
L1MGFJ1 <N << ? < BZ Q?H=;;R;; Q?H=;; 
 
 
 
 Q?H=;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q?H=;; 
 S�T���./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \A;A: <=>?>ON2D0V104/08
e0/5hm1F5
.7[MH
IMG/5
IU451[H
<A
5D
<N
gD0H
L1MGFJ1 <N ? << < BZ Q:NHA;;R;; Q:NHA;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Q:NHA;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S�*T(��./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \A;A: <=>?O<:2D0V104/08
e0/5hm1F5
.7[MH
IMG/5
IU451[H
A<
5D
N;
gD0H
L1MGFJ1 <N : <A < BZ Q=;H;;;R;; Q=;H;;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q=;H;;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S+�T���./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \A;A: <=>?O<N2D0V104/08
e0/5hm1F5
.7[MH
IMG/5
IU451[H
A<
5D
N;
gD0H
L1MGFJ1 <N : <A < BZ Q=;H;;;R;; Q=;H;;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Q=;H;;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S+�T���./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \A;?< <=>?>A?Z/3
mF0VG13
oZmepH
n0513/D3H
<;H;;<
5D
<NH;;;
2P̀ H
L1MGFJ1 A; :> A < BZ Q>;H;;;R;; Q>;H;;; 
 
 
 Q>;H;;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S,�T���./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \A;?< <=>?>ANZ/3
mF0VG13
oZmepH
n0513/D3H
<;H;;<
5D
<NH;;;
2P̀ H
L1MGFJ1 A; :> A < BZ Q>;H;;;R;; Q>;H;;; 
 
 
 Q>;H;;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S,�T���./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \A;?< <==>@>:Z/3
mF0VG13
oZmepH
BC513/D3H
OH;;<
5D
<;H;;;
2P̀ H
L1MGFJ1 :; N <N < BZ QNOHO;;R;; QNOHO;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 QNOHO;; 
 
 
 
 
 S*-T-��./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \A;?: <==>@>@BCdF745
PF0H
LDDW
D3
EFGG
̀D7051VH
N;
5D
N;;
2P̀ H
L1MGFJ1 :; <N N < BZ Q<H:;;R;; Q<H:;; 
 
 
 
 
 Q<H:;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S�T���./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \A;?: <=>?>?<BCdF745
PF0H
21053/W78FGH
<;;
5D
<H;;;
2P̀ 
o<:l
\F[M13pH
L1MGFJ1 :N :; N < BZ Q<H?;;R;; Q<H?;; 
 
 
 
 
 Q<H?;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S�T)��./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \A;?: <==>@>?BCdF745
PF0H
LDDW
D3
EFGG
̀D7051VH
N;
5D
N;;
2P̀ H
L1MGFJ1 :; <N N < BZ Q<H:;;R;; Q<H:;; 
 
 
 
 
 Q<H:;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S�T���./01
23145
6734/08
210513 \A;?: <==>@>ABCdF745
PF0H
LDDW
D3
EFGG
̀D7051VH
N;
5D
N;;
2P̀ H
L1MGFJ1 :; <N N < BZ Q<H:;;R;; Q<H:;; 
 
 
 
 
 Q<H:;; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 S�T���

 



�������� ��	
���� ���
�������� �� ��������������� ��
���������� ���� ��� ������� ���� ����������! ��	����� "#$% "#"# "#"$ "#"" "#"& "#"' "#"( "#") "#"* "#"+ "#"% "#&# "#&$ "#&" "#&& "#&' "#&( "#&) "#&* "#&+ "#&% ��
������ �������������,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 789:; <==>?>=@ABC523�DC.E�FGGH�G1�ICJJ�KG5.3/LE�;E99<�3G�ME999�0DKE�F/NJCO/ ;9 <9 <9 < @P Q8E999R99 Q8E999 � � � � � � � � � � Q8E999 � � � � � � � � � � S&T###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 789:; <=>:>=U@ABC523�DC.E�0/.31-H56CJE�<99�3G�<E999�0DK�V<;W�7CXN/1YE�F/NJCO/ ;M <M <9 < @P Q<E:99R99 Q<E:99 � � � � � � � � � � Q<E:99 � � � � � � � � � � S$T'##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 789:; <==>?U>@ABC523�DC.E�FGGH�G1�ICJJ�KG5.3/LE�M9�3G�M99�0DKE�F/NJCO/ ;9 <9 <9 ; @P Q<E;99R99 Q;E:99 � � � � � � � � � � Q;E:99 � � � � � � � � � � S"T'##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 789:; <=>:>=>@ABC523�DC.E�0/.31-H56CJE�<99�3G�<E999�0DK�V<;W�7CXN/1YE�F/NJCO/ ;M <M <9 < @P Q<E:99R99 Q<E:99 � � � � � � � � � � Q<E:99 � � � � � � � � � � S$T'##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 789M< <=>:>><Z.-3�[/C3/1E�[\L1G.-OE�<8�3G�8=�K][E�F/NJCO/ ;9 <M M < @P Q<E>99R99 Q<E>99 � � � � � Q<E>99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � S$T*##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 789M; <==>?>>,CÔC6/L�Z.-3�VF_ZYE�<=�3G�;9�_G.E�F/NJCO/ ;9 <U ; < @P Q:9E999R99 Q:9E999 � � Q:9E999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � S'#T###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 789M; <==>?>U,CÔC6/L�Z.-3�VF_ZYE�;=�3G�M9�_G.E�F/NJCO/ ;9 ? << < @P Q>ME999R99 Q>ME999 � � � � � � � � � � �Q>ME999 � � � � � � � � � S*(T###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 789=U <=>M;??]P̀ a[bP0�0G.31GJ2E�@A3/.2-c/aFGd523�]K̀ �G1�̀XC13�]5-JL-.6�̀\23/XE�F/NJCO/ <M <8 ; <;M999 D̀ Q=R99 Q>M9E999 � � Q>M9E999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � Q>M9E999 � � � S$T(##T###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 789?: <==>?>9P-1�0513C-.E�<E999�0DKE�F/NJCO/ ;9 ? << < @P Q<EU99R99 Q<EU99 � � � � � � � � � � � Q<EU99 � � � � � � � � � S$T+##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 7:9<? <=>M89; Ǹ1-.̂J/1�[/CL2�VN/1�̀DYE�F/NJCO/ ;M <M <9 <;M999 D̀ Q<RM9 Q<U>EM99 � � � � � � � � � � Q<U>EM99 � � � � � � � � � � S$+*T(##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 7:9<? <=>:>8>D-1/�F-2/1E�F/NJCO/ :9 ;9 ;9 8 @P Q;EM99R99 Q>EM99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � Q>EM99 S*T(##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 7:9<? <=>M;?= Ǹ1-.̂J/1�̀\23/XE�D5JJ�F/31GH-3E�[-6B�7/.2-3\a0GXNJ/A-3\E�F/.GcC3/ :9 ;9 ;9 <;M999 D̀ Q>R99 QU>ME999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � QU>ME999 S+*(T###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 7:9<? <==>?=?D-1/�F-2/1E�F/NJCO/ :9 ;9 ;9 < @P Q;EM99R99 Q;EM99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � Q;EM99 S"T(##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 7:98< <=>M89:D-1/�@A3-.65-2B/1E�_\N/�P]0E�5N�3G�;9�e]E�F/NJCO/ <9 M M M9 @P Q<M9R99 Q>EM99 � � � � � Q>EM99 � � � � � � � � � Q>EM99 � � � � � S$(T###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 7:9?< <==>?=9D-1/�̀5NN1/22-G.�̀\23/XE�0GXX/1O-CJ�f-3OB/.�VN/1�eD�GH�[GGLYE�F/NJCO/ ;9 <9 <9 U eD Q:99R99 Q8E;99 � � � � � � � � � � Q8E;99 � � � � � � � � � � S&T"##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 7M9<; <==>?U= /̀OG.LC1\�_1C.2HG1X/1E�71\E�>M�̂bPE�F/NJCO/ 89 <M <M < @P Q<9E999R99 Q<9E999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � Q<9E999 � � � � � S$#T###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 7M9<; <=>:>8; /̀OG.LC1\�_1C.2HG1X/1E�71\E�89�̂bPE�F/NJCO/ 89 <M <M < @P Q=E>99R99 Q=E>99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � Q=E>99 � � � � � S)T*##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 7M9<; <=>:>8< /̀OG.LC1\�_1C.2HG1X/1E�71\E�>M�̂bPE�F/NJCO/ 89 <M <M < @P Q<9E999R99 Q<9E999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � Q<9E999 � � � � � S$#T###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 7M9<? <=>M;?>D5JJ�@J/O31-OCJ�̀\23/X�ZN61CL/E�K/L-5X�7/.2-3\a0GXNJ/A-3\E�F/NJCO/ :9 ;9 ;9 <;M999 D̀ Q<UR99Q;E;M9E999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �Q;E;M9E999 S"T"(#T###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 7M9;? <=>M;?Ue-6B3-.6�̀\23/XE�g.3/1-G1E�K/L-5X�7/.2-3\�h�̀3C.LC1L�D-A351/2E�F/NJCO/ ;9 <9 <9 <;M999 D̀ QUR99Q<E999E999 � � � � � � � � � �Q<E999E999 � � � � � � � � � � S$T###T###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 7M98> <=>M899D-1/�PJC1X�̀\23/XE�̀3C.LC1L�PLL1/22CdJ/E�g.23CJJ ;9 M <M <;M999 D̀ Q:R99 QM99E999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � QM99E999 � � � � � S(##T###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 7M98U <=>M89< /̀O51-3\à51c/-JJC.O/�̀\23/XE�0CX/1C2�C.L�00_bE�g.23CJJ <M <9 M <MM999 D̀ QMR99 Q>>ME999 � � � � � Q>>ME999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � Q>>ME999 S$T((#T###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 @<9;> <=>:>:= -̀.̂E�eCdG1C3G1\E�̀3C-.J/22�̀3//J�ia�71C-.dGC1LE�F/NJCO/ 89 <M <M < @P Q;E:M9R99 Q;E:M9 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � Q;E:M9 � � � � � S"T'(#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 @<9;U <=>:><?7/H-d1-JJC3G1�VP@7YE�0Cd-./3�KG5.3/LE�F/NJCO/ <9 M M < @P Q<EM99R99 Q<EM99 � � � � � Q<EM99 � � � � � � � � � Q<EM99 � � � � � S&T###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 @<9;U <=>M;?;,C3-/.3�]/LE�D5JJ\�P53GXC3-Oa@J/O31-O�I-3B�̀/OG.LC1\�0G.31GJ2E�F/NJCO/ <9 M M <=9 @P Q:E8;=RU> Q=?;E;?? � � � � � Q=?;E;?? � � � � � � � � � Q=?;E;?? � � � � � S$T&+'T(%+,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 @<98< <=>:>>8jC1C6/�7GG1�kN/./1E�]/J3�71-c/E�9RM�[,E�F/NJCO/ <M <9 M < @P QM>9R99 QM>9 � � � � � QM>9 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � QM>9 S$T$'#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 @<9?8 <==>UU;0GXX/1O-CJ�f-3OB/.E�]JC23�0B-JJ/1aD1//l/1E�F/NJCO/ <9 M M < @P Q<8E899R99 Q<8E899 � � � � � Q<8E899 � � � � � � � � � Q<8E899 � � � � � S")T)##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 @<9?8 <==>?M=0GXX/1O-CJ�f-3OB/.E�FC.6/akc/.E�Um]51./1E�F/NJCO/ <M <9 M < @P Q>E:99R99 Q>E:99 � � � � � Q>E:99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � Q>E:99 S$'T+##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 @<9?8 <==>?=:0GXX/1O-CJ�f-3OB/.E�7-2BiC2B/1E�F/NJCO/ <9 M M < @P Q;<EM99R99 Q;<EM99 � � � � � Q;<EM99 � � � � � � � � � Q;<EM99 � � � � � S'&T###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 @<9?8 <==>?MU0GXX/1O-CJ�f-3OB/.E�7C-1\�0GGJ/1aI/JJ2E�F/NJCO/ <M <9 M < @P Q8E=99R99 Q8E=99 � � � � � Q8E=99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � Q8E=99 S*T"##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 @<9?8 <==>?M:0GXX/1O-CJ�f-3OB/.E�@ABC523�[GGLE�U�3G�<9�eDE�F/NJCO/ <M <9 M < @P Q:EM99R99 Q:EM99 � � � � � Q:EM99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � Q:EM99 S%T###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 @<9?8 <==>?M>0GXX/1O-CJ�f-3OB/.E�0G.c/O3-G.�kc/.E�̀-.6J/E�F/NJCO/ <9 M M < @P QME=99R99 QME=99 � � � � � QME=99 � � � � � � � � � QME=99 � � � � � S$$T"##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 @<9?8 <==>??U0GXX/1O-CJ�f-3OB/.E�DGGL�IC1X/1E�F/NJCO/ <M U > < @P Q<E>99R99 Q<E>99 � � � � � � � Q<E>99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � S$T*##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 @<9?8 <==>?8;0GXX/1O-CJ�f-3OB/.E�j1-LLJ/E�F/NJCO/ <M U > < @P Q>E999R99 Q>E999 � � � � � � � Q>E999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � S*T###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 @<9?8 <==>?880GXX/1O-CJ�f-3OB/.E�̀3/CX/1E�D1//23C.L-.6E�F/NJCO/ <9 8 > < @P Q<9EM99R99 Q<9EM99 � � � � � � �Q<9EM99 � � � � � � � � � Q<9EM99 � � � S"$T###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 @<9?8 <==>?=80GXX/1O-CJ�f-3OB/.E�0GHH//�KCOB-./E�F/NJCO/ <9 8 > < @P Q;E999R99 Q;E999 � � � � � � � Q;E999 � � � � � � � � � Q;E999 � � � S'T###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 @<9?8 <=>:>;90GXX/1O-CJ�f-3OB/.E�F/H1-6/1C3G1E�;m7GG1�F/COBmg.E�F/NJCO/ <M U > < @P Q:E=99R99 Q:E=99 � � � � � � � Q:E=99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � S'T)##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 @<9?8 <==>?=<0GXX/1O-CJ�f-3OB/.E�F/H1-6/1C3G1E�:m7GG1�F/COBmg.E�F/NJCO/ <M U > < @P Q>E899R99 Q>E899 � � � � � � � Q>E899 � � � � � � � � � � � � � S*T&##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 @<9?8 <==>???0GXX/1O-CJ�f-3OB/.E�7C-1\�0GGJ/1aI/JJ2E�F/NJCO/ <M U > < @P Q8E=99R99 Q8E=99 � � � � � � � Q8E=99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � S&T)##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 @<9?8 <==>?=;0GXX/1O-CJ�f-3OB/.E�F/H1-6/1C3G1E�:m7GG1�F/COBmg.E�F/NJCO/ <M U > < @P Q>E899R99 Q>E899 � � � � � � � Q>E899 � � � � � � � � � � � � � S*T&##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 @<9?8 <==>?=>0GXX/1O-CJ�f-3OB/.E�ICĴmg.�D1//l/1E�F/NJCO/ ;9 <9 <9 < @P Q;ME999R99 Q;ME999 � � � � � � � � � � Q;ME999 � � � � � � � � � � S"(T###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 @<9?8 <==>?8<0GXX/1O-CJ�f-3OB/.E�K-A/1E�D1//23C.L-.6E�F/NJCO/ ;M <M <9 < @P Q<:E999R99 Q<:E999 � � � � � � � � � � Q<:E999 � � � � � � � � � � S$'T###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 @<9?8 <==>??:0GXX/1O-CJ�f-3OB/.E�F/H1-6/1C3G1E�;m7GG1�F/COBmg.E�F/NJCO/ <M M <9 < @P Q:E=99R99 Q:E=99 � � � � � � � � � � Q:E=99 � � � � � � � � � � S'T)##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 @<9?8 <==>?MM0GXX/1O-CJ�f-3OB/.E�K-A/1E�_CdJ/3GNE�F/NJCO/ ;9 <9 <9 < @P Q8E:99R99 Q8E:99 � � � � � � � � � � Q8E:99 � � � � � � � � � � S&T'##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 @<9?8 <==>?><0GXX/1O-CJ�f-3OB/.E�ICĴmg.�F/H1-6/1C3G1E�F/NJCO/ ;9 <9 <9 < @P Q<ME999R99 Q<ME999 � � � � � � � � � � Q<ME999 � � � � � � � � � � S$(T###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 @<9?8 <==>?=U0GXX/1O-CJ�f-3OB/.E�ICĴmg.�F/H1-6/1C3G1E�F/NJCO/ ;9 <9 <9 < @P Q<ME999R99 Q<ME999 � � � � � � � � � � Q<ME999 � � � � � � � � � � S$(T###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 @<9?8 <==>UU80GXX/1O-CJ�f-3OB/.E�gO/XĈ/1E�D1//23C.L-.6E�F/NJCO/ <M M <9 < @P Q=E>99R99 Q=E>99 � � � � � � � � � � Q=E>99 � � � � � � � � � � S)T*##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 j;9;; <=>:U=:,C1̂-.6�eG32E�P2NBCJ3�,Cc/X/.3E�̀/CJ�h�̀31-N/ M : < <99999 D̀ Q9R:M Q:ME999 �Q:ME999 � � � �Q:ME999 � � � �Q:ME999 � � � �Q:ME999 � � � � S$+#T###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 j;9;; <=>:U=8,C1̂-.6�eG32E�P2NBCJ3�,Cc/X/.3E�K-JJ�h�kc/1JC\ ;M ;: < <99999 D̀ Q8RM9 Q8M9E999 �Q8M9E999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � S&(#T###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 j;9:: <=>:?<< -̀6.C6/E�,1GN/13\E�KG.5X/.3a,\JG.E�F/NJCO/ ;9 M <M < @P Q?EM99R99 Q?EM99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � Q?EM99 � � � � � S%T(##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1 j:9;< <=>:?9? -̀3/�,GJ/�e-6B3E�;9n�[-6BE�:99�I�Ve@7�eCXN�F/NJCO/X/.3YE�F/NJCO/ ;9 ; <U <U @P Q:E999R99 Q>;E999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �Q>;E999 � � S*"T###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17M9<; <=>:>;;]5-JL-.6aKC-.�̀i-3OBdGC1LE�;>>a:U9�bE�<E=99�PXNE�F/NJCO/ :9 ;> <8 < @P Q>ME999R99 Q>ME999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � Q>ME999 � � � � � � � S*(T###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17M9<; <=>:>:> /̀OG.LC1\�_1C.2HG1X/1E�71\E�<M9�̂bPE�F/NJCO/ 89 <M <M < @P Q;9E999R99 Q;9E999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � Q;9E999 � � � � � S"#T###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17M9<; <=>:>:? /̀OG.LC1\�_1C.2HG1X/1E�71\E�89�̂bPE�F/NJCO/ 89 <M <M < @P Q=E>99R99 Q=E>99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � Q=E>99 � � � � � S)T*##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1089;: <=>M<==g.3/1-G1�DJGG1�D-.-2BE�b-.\J�_-J/�Vb0_YE�F/NJCO/ <M <9 M 8M:9 D̀ QMR99 Q<>E>99 � � � � � Q<>E>99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � Q<>E>99 S&(T'##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1089;: <=>M<>9g.3/1-G1�DJGG1�D-.-2BE�e-.GJ/5XE�F/NJCO/ <M <9 M :?; D̀ Q8RM9 Q<E>;; � � � � � Q<E>;; � � � � � � � � � � � � � � Q<E>;; S&T''',-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1089;: <=>M<=Ug.3/1-G1�DJGG1�D-.-2BE�eCX-.C3/�DC5A�IGGLE�F/NJCO/ <M ; <8 8=9 D̀ Q>R99 Q;EM;9 � � � � � � � � � � � � � Q;EM;9 � � � � � � � S"T("#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1089;: <=>M<=?g.3/1-G1�DJGG1�D-.-2BE�b-.\J�_-J/�Vb0_YE�F/NJCO/ <M ; <8 <9:9 D̀ QMR99 QME;99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � QME;99 � � � � � � � S(T"##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10898; <=>M<=>g.3/1-G1�0/-J-.6�D-.-2BE�̀52N/.L/L�POG523-OCJ�_-J/�VP0_YE�F/NJCO/ ;M ;9 M M:8; D̀ Q8RM9 Q<?E9<; � � � � � Q<?E9<; � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � S$%T#$",-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17;9<< <=>M<><_G-J/3E�0GXX/1O-CJ�IC3/1�0JG2/3E�F/NJCO/ 89 ;> 8 <: @P Q<E899R99 Q<UE;99 � � � Q<UE;99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � S$+T"##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17;9<: <=>M<>; -̀.̂aeCcC3G1\E�ICJJm[5.6E�b-31/G52�0B-.CE�F/NJCO/ 89 ;> 8 <: @P Q<EM99R99 Q;<E999 � � � Q;<E999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � S"$T###

 



�������� ��	
���� ���
�������� �� ��������������� ��
���������� ���� ��� ������� ���� ����������! ��	����� "#$% "#"# "#"$ "#"" "#"& "#"' "#"( "#") "#"* "#"+ "#"% "#&# "#&$ "#&" "#&& "#&' "#&( "#&) "#&* "#&+ "#&% ��
������ �������������,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1789:; :<<;88:71-.=-.6�>?5.3@-.A�B.3/1-?1A�C/DE@F/ :G :9 G : HI J:AK99L99 J:AK99 � � � � � J:AK99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � J:AK99 M&N+##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17O9P: :<<;8:;I-1�Q@.RE/1�SIQTUA�B.3/1-?1A�PA99:�3?�<A999�0>VA�C/DE@F/ O9 8G G : HI JO:A999L99 JO:A999 � � � � � JO:A999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M&$N###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17O9<; :<<;888WIXYQZI0�0?.31?E2A�H[3/.2-\/YC?]523�WVX�?1�X̂ @13�W5-ER-.6�X_23/̂ A�C/DE@F/ :G :O 8 ;999 X> J<L99 JP;A999 � � JP;A999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � JP;A999 � � � M%)N###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10O98P :<̀G998B.3/1-?1�>E??1�>-.-2aA�Z-._E�b-E/�SZ0bUA�C/DE@F/ :G 8 :O 8<G< X> JGL99 J:OA8;9 � � � � � � � � � � � � � J:OA8;9 � � � � � � � M$&N"+#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1789K: :<<;998I-1�0?̂ D1/22?1A�8�Q,A�C/DE@F/ 89 :: K : HI J̀A8̀9L99 J̀A8̀9 � � � � � � � � � J̀A8̀9 � � � � � � � � � � � M*N"*#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17O98: :<<;99:W?-E/1A�c@2A�:8<�3?�8G9�VWQA�C/DE@F/ O9 :: :K : HI J:GA;99L99 J:GA;99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �J:GA;99 � M$(N+##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17O9G: :<<;:GK>51.@F/A�c@2A�G:�3?�:99�VWQA�C/DE@F/ 89 :: K : HI JPA899L99 JPA899 � � � � � � � � � JPA899 � � � � � � � � � � � M'N"##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17O9G: :<<;:<9>51.@F/A�c@2A�G:�3?�:99�VWQA�C/DE@F/ 89 :: K : HI JPA899L99 JPA899 � � � � � � � � � JPA899 � � � � � � � � � � � M'N"##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10O98P :<̀G8:;B.3/1-?1�>E??1�>-.-2aA�Z-._E�b-E/�SZ0bUA�C/DE@F/ :G :9 G PG;9 X> JGL99 J88AK99 � � � � � J88AK99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � J88AK99 M'(N+##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10O98P :<̀G8O:B.3/1-?1�>E??1�>-.-2aA�d-.?E/5̂ A�C/DE@F/ :G :9 G <P; X> JOLG9 J8A8<; � � � � � J8A8<; � � � � � � � � � � � � � � J8A8<; M'N(&),-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10O98P :<̀G889B.3/1-?1�>E??1�>-.-2aA�Z-._E�b-E/�SZ0bUA�C/DE@F/ :G 8 :O :899 X> JGL99 J<A999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � J<A999 � � � � � � � M)N###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10O9O8 :<̀G8:KB.3/1-?1�0/-E-.6�>-.-2aA�X52D/.R/R�IF?523-F@E�b-E/�SI0bUA�C/DE@F/ 8G :9 :G <O8; X> JOLG9 J88A:P; � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � J88A:P; � � � � � M""N$'+,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1789:: :<̀G8O8b?-E/3A�0?̂ /̂1F-@E�e@3/1�0E?2/3A�C/DE@F/ O9 89 :9 :G HI J:AO99L99 J:KAG99 � � � � � � � � � � J:KAG99 � � � � � � � � � � M$%N(##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1789:P :<̀P8;PX/1\-F/�X-.=A�d@5.R1_A�C/DE@F/ O9 8G G : HI JK99L99 JK99 � � � � � JK99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M%##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1789:P :<̀G8OOX-.=Yd@\@3?1_A�e@EEfQ5.6A�Z-31/?52�0a-.@A�C/DE@F/ O9 89 :9 :G HI J:AG99L99 J88AG99 � � � � � � � � � � J88AG99 � � � � � � � � � � M""N(##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17O9P: :<̀P8;;I-1�Q@.RE/1�SIQTUA�B.3/1-?1A�PA99:�3?�<A999�0>VA�C/DE@F/ O9 8̀ O : HI JO:A999L99 JO:A999 � � � JO:A999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M&$N###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17O9P: :<̀P8;<HE/F31-F�Q/@3/1A�75F3A�:�3?�8�=eA�C/DE@F/ 89 :G G : HI J:A:P9L99 J:A:P9 � � � � � J:A:P9 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M$N$'#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17O9<; :<̀P8;̀ WIXYQZI0�0?.31?E2A�H[3/.2-\/YC?]523�WVX�?1�X̂ @13�W5-ER-.6�X_23/̂ A�C/DE@F/ :G :O 8 ;G99 X> J<L99 JG:A999 � � JG:A999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � JG:A999 � � � M$#"N###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10O98P :<̀G:;:B.3/1-?1�>E??1�>-.-2aA�Z-._E�b-E/�SZ0bUA�C/DE@F/ :G :9 G :̀;; X> JGL99 J;AKP9 � � � � � J;AKP9 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � J;AKP9 M$*N++#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10O98P :<̀G:;GB.3/1-?1�>E??1�>-.-2aA�Z-._E�b-E/�SZ0bUA�C/DE@F/ :G 8 :O G<9 X> JGL99 J8A;99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � J8A;99 � � � � � � � M"N+##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10O98P :<̀G:;PB.3/1-?1�>E??1�>-.-2aA�0/1@̂ -F�b-E/A�C/DE@F/ P9 8̀ :O :99 X> J:;L99 J:A;99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � J:A;99 � � � � � � � M$N+##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10O9O8 :<̀G:;OB.3/1-?1�0/-E-.6�>-.-2aA�X52D/.R/R�IF?523-F@E�b-E/�SI0bUA�C/DE@F/ 8G 89 G :̀8; X> JOLG9 J<A9P; � � � � � J<A9P; � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M)N#'+,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1789:: :<̀G:;<b?-E/3A�0?̂ /̂1F-@E�e@3/1�0E?2/3A�C/DE@F/ O9 8G G P HI J:AO99L99 JGA899 � � � � � JGA899 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M(N"##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1789:P :<̀G:;̀ X-.=Yd@\@3?1_A�e@EEfQ5.6A�Z-31/?52�0a-.@A�C/DE@F/ O9 8G G P HI J:AG99L99 J<A999 � � � � � J<A999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M)N###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1789:; :<<;88K71-.=-.6�>?5.3@-.A�B.3/1-?1A�C/DE@F/ :G :9 G : HI J:AK99L99 J:AK99 � � � � � J:AK99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � J:AK99 M&N+##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17O9P: :<<;8O:I-1�Q@.RE/1�SIQTUA�B.3/1-?1A�PA99:�3?�<A999�0>VA�C/DE@F/ O9 8G G : HI JO:A999L99 JO:A999 � � � � � JO:A999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M&$N###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17O9<; :<<;88̀ WIXYQZI0�0?.31?E2A�H[3/.2-\/YC?]523�WVX�?1�X̂ @13�W5-ER-.6�X_23/̂ A�C/DE@F/ :G :O 8 P8G9 X> J<L99 J8GAG99 � � J8GAG99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � J8GAG99 � � � M($N###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17G9:K :<<;88O>5EE�HE/F31-F@E�X_23/̂ �TD61@R/A�Q-6a�7/.2-3_Y0?̂ DE/[-3_A�C/DE@F/ P9 OG G P8G9 X> J8;L99 J::KA999 � � � � � J::KA999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M$$%N###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17O9P: :<̀P̀<<I-1�Q@.RE/1�SIQTUA�B.3/1-?1A�PA99:�3?�<A999�0>VA�C/DE@F/ O9 8̀ O : HI JO:A999L99 JO:A999 � � � JO:A999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M&$N###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17O9P: :<̀P̀<GI-1�Q@.RE/1�SIQTUA�B.3/1-?1A�PA99:�3?�<A999�0>VA�C/DE@F/ O9 8̀ O : HI JO:A999L99 JO:A999 � � � JO:A999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M&$N###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17O9P: :<̀P̀<8I-1�Q@.RE/1�SIQTUA�B.3/1-?1A�PA99:�3?�<A999�0>VA�C/DE@F/ O9 8̀ O : HI JO:A999L99 JO:A999 � � � JO:A999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M&$N###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17O9P8 :<̀P̀<OH[a@523�>@.A�0/.31-g56@EA�8A99:�3?�GA999�0>V�S8Ph�7@̂ D/1UA�C/DE@F/ 8G 89 G : HI JOA999L99 JOA999 � � � � � JOA999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M&N###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10O98P :<̀G8̀<B.3/1-?1�>E??1�>-.-2aA�d@̂ -.@3/�>@5[�e??RA�C/DE@F/ :G 8 :O :G99 X> J̀L99 J:9AG99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � J:9AG99 � � � � � � � M$#N(##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10O9O: :<̀G8̀GB.3/1-?1�0/-E-.6�>-.-2aA�c_D25̂ �W?@1RY,E@23/1A�C/DE@F/ G9 O9 89 :G99 X> J;L99 J:8A999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � J:8A999 M$"N###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1789:; :<<;8OK71-.=-.6�>?5.3@-.A�B.3/1-?1A�C/DE@F/ :G :9 G : HI J:AK99L99 J:AK99 � � � � � J:AK99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � J:AK99 M&N+##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10O98P :<̀G8G̀ B.3/1-?1�>E??1�>-.-2aA�Z-._E�b-E/�SZ0bUA�C/DE@F/ :G :9 G O:89 X> JGL99 J:GA<99 � � � � � J:GA<99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � J:GA<99 M&$N"##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10O98P :<̀G8<:B.3/1-?1�>E??1�>-.-2aA�d-.?E/5̂ A�C/DE@F/ :G :9 G P89 X> JOLG9 J:AP̀9 � � � � � J:AP̀9 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � J:AP̀9 M"N%'#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10O98P :<̀G8GKB.3/1-?1�>E??1�>-.-2aA�Z-._E�b-E/�SZ0bUA�C/DE@F/ :G 8 :O :899 X> JGL99 J<A999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � J<A999 � � � � � � � M)N###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10O98G :<̀G8<9B.3/1-?1�>E??1�>-.-2aA�0@1D/3�0?̂ /̂1F-@E�X3@.R@1RA�C/DE@F/ :9 G G :99 X> J̀LG9 J̀G9 � � � � � J̀G9 � � � � � � � � � J̀G9 � � � � � M$N(##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10O9O8 :<̀G8G;B.3/1-?1�0/-E-.6�>-.-2aA�X52D/.R/R�IF?523-F@E�b-E/�SI0bUA�C/DE@F/ 8G :G :9 P;P9 X> JOLG9 J:<AKP9 � � � � � � � � � � J:<AKP9 � � � � � � � � � � M$)N%'#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1789:: :<̀G8<8b?-E/3A�0?̂ /̂1F-@E�e@3/1�0E?2/3A�C/DE@F/ O9 :G :G :8 HI J:AO99L99 J:GA<99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � J:GA<99 � � � � � M$(N)##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1789:P :<̀G8<OX-.=Yd@\@3?1_A�e@EEfQ5.6A�Z-31/?52�0a-.@A�C/DE@F/ O9 :G :G :8 HI J:AG99L99 J:;A999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � J:;A999 � � � � � M$+N###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17O9P: :<̀P<K<I-1�Q@.RE/1�SIQTUA�B.3/1-?1A�PA99:�3?�<A999�0>VA�C/DE@F/ O9 8̀ O : HI JO:A999L99 JO:A999 � � � JO:A999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M&$N###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17O9P: :<̀P<KKI-1�Q@.RE/1�SIQTUA�B.3/1-?1A�PA99:�3?�<A999�0>VA�C/DE@F/ O9 8̀ O : HI JO:A999L99 JO:A999 � � � JO:A999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M&$N###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17O9P: :<̀P<K;I-1�Q@.RE/1�SIQTUA�B.3/1-?1A�PA99:�3?�<A999�0>VA�C/DE@F/ O9 8̀ O : HI JO:A999L99 JO:A999 � � � JO:A999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M&$N###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17O9P: :<̀P̀8̀ I-1�Q@.RE/1�SIQTUA�B.3/1-?1A�PA99:�3?�<A999�0>VA�C/DE@F/ O9 :9 89 : HI JO:A999L99 JO:A999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � JO:A999 M&$N###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17G9:8 :<̀P̀8Gb1@.2g/1�Xi-3FaA�I53?̂ @3-F�SIbXUA�899�Î DA�C/DE@F/ 8G :G :9 : HI J:8A999L99 J:8A999 � � � � � � � � � � J:8A999 � � � � � � � � � � M$"N###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17G9:8 :<̀P̀8PX/F?.R@1_�b1@.2g?1̂/1A�71_A�̀G�=ZIA�C/DE@F/ O9 :G :G : HI J:9A999L99 J:9A999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � J:9A999 � � � � � M$#N###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17G9:8 :<̀P̀8OX/F?.R@1_�b1@.2g?1̂/1A�71_A�:G9�=ZIA�C/DE@F/ O9 :G :G : HI J89A999L99 J89A999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � J89A999 � � � � � M"#N###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17G9K8 :<̀P̀8<c/./1@3?1A�7-/2/EA�:O9�3?�O99�=eA�C/DE@F/ 8G :9 :G : HI J;<A999L99 J;<A999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � J;<A999 � � � � � M+)N###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10O98P :<̀G8̀8B.3/1-?1�>E??1�>-.-2aA�d@̂ -.@3/�>@5[�e??RA�C/DE@F/ :G 8 :O :88P X> J̀L99 J;AG<; � � � � � � � � � � � � � J;AG<; � � � � � � � M+N()+,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10O9O: :<̀G8̀:B.3/1-?1�0/-E-.6�>-.-2aA�c_D25̂ �W?@1RY,E@23/1A�C/DE@F/ G9 O9 89 :88P X> J;L99 JKÀK8 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � JKÀK8 M%N*%",-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17898: :<<̀;OKW@F=gE?i�,1/\/.3/1A�7?̂ /23-FA�:hA�C/DE@F/ O9 :G :G : HI J:AP99L99 J:AP99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � J:AP99 � � � � � M$N'##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17898O :<<̀;O;e@3/1�Q/@3/1A�c@2A�0?̂ /̂1F-@EA�:99�cId�S899�VWQUA�C/DE@F/ 89 :P < : HI J:<A<99L99 J:<A<99 � � � � � �J:<A<99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M$)N)##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17898O :<<̀;Ò 0-1F5E@3-?.�,5̂ DA�:�Q,A�C/DE@F/ :G 8 :O : HI JOAO99L99 JOAO99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � JOAO99 � � � � � � � M&N&##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17898O :<<̀;O80-1F5E@3-?.�,5̂ DA�:�Q,A�C/DE@F/ :G 8 :O : HI JOAO99L99 JOAO99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � JOAO99 � � � � � � � M&N&##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1789K: :<<̀;O90?̂ D1/22/R�I-1�71_/1A�:99�0>VA�C/DE@F/ 89 :; 8 : HI JGA<99L99 JGA<99 � � JGA<99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M(N)##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1789K: :<<̀GG:I-1�0?̂ D1/22?1A�:G�Q,A�C/DE@F/ 89 :G G : HI J:̀AO99L99 J:̀AO99 � � � � � J:̀AO99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M$*N&##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17O9:: :<<̀;̀`>5/E�X3?1@6/�b@.=A�:9:�3?�8̀G�cIdA�C/DE@F/ 8G 89 G : HI J8A<99L99 J8A<99 � � � � � J8A<99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M"N)##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17O98: :<<̀;O<W?-E/1A�c@2A�8AG9:�3?�GA999�VWQA�C/DE@F/ O9 8; 8 : HI J:OGA999L99 J:OGA999 � � J:OGA999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M$&(N###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17O98: :<<̀GP̀ W?-E/1A�c@2A�8AG9:�3?�GA999�VWQA�C/DE@F/ O9 8̀ O : HI J:OGA999L99 J:OGA999 � � � J:OGA999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M$&(N###

 



�������� ��	
���� ���
�������� �� ��������������� ��
���������� ���� ��� ������� ���� ����������! ��	����� "#$% "#"# "#"$ "#"" "#"& "#"' "#"( "#") "#"* "#"+ "#"% "#&# "#&$ "#&" "#&& "#&' "#&( "#&) "#&* "#&+ "#&% ��
������ �������������,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1789:; ;<<=>?<@A-B/1C�DE2C�:C>9;�3A�>C999�F@GC�H/IBEJ/ 89 := 8 ; KL M;8>C999N99 M;8>C999 � � � M;8>C999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O$&(P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1789:; ;<<=Q8;@A-B/1C�DE2C�G-6R�KSS-J-/.JT�0A.U/.2-.6�V3TB/C�=>;�3A�:C999�F@GC�H/IBEJ/ ;> : ;8 ; KL MQ=C<99N99 MQ=C<99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � MQ=C<99 � � � � � � � O+*P)##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1789?? ;<<=>?W7-231-X53-A.�,5YIC�G/E3-.6�ZE3/1C�:9�3A�:>�G,C�H/IBEJ/ :> :> 9 ; KL M;8C<99N99 M;8C<99M;8C<99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O$&P)##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1789?? ;<<=>>87-231-X53-A.�,5YIC�G/E3-.6�ZE3/1C�8�G,C�H/IBEJ/ ;> ;> 9 ; KL M>C;99N99 M>C;99 M>C;99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M>C;99 � � � � � O$#P"##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1789?? ;<<=Q:=7-231-X53-A.�,5YIC�G/E3-.6�ZE3/1C�8�G,C�H/IBEJ/ ;> ;8 : ; KL M>C;99N99 M>C;99 � � M>C;99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M>C;99 � � � O$#P"##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1789?? ;<<=Q:<7-231-X53-A.�,5YIC�G/E3-.6�ZE3/1C�8�G,C�H/IBEJ/ ;> ;8 : ; KL M>C;99N99 M>C;99 � � M>C;99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M>C;99 � � � O$#P"##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1789?? ;<<=>?Q7-231-X53-A.�,5YIC�G/E3-.6�ZE3/1C�:9�3A�:>�G,C�H/IBEJ/ :> :8 : ; KL M;8C<99N99 M;8C<99 � � M;8C<99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O$&P)##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1789?? ;<<=Q=>7-231-X53-A.�,5YIC�G/E3-.6�ZE3/1C�;9�G,C�H/IBEJ/ :> :8 : ; KL M<CQ99N99 M<CQ99 � � M<CQ99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O)P+##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1789?? ;<<=Q=<7-231-X53-A.�,5YIC�G/E3-.6�ZE3/1C�;9�G,C�H/IBEJ/ :> :8 : ; KL M<CQ99N99 M<CQ99 � � M<CQ99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O)P+##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1789?? ;<<=>>:7-231-X53-A.�,5YIC�G/E3-.6�ZE3/1C�8�G,C�H/IBEJ/ ;> ;8 : ; KL M>C;99N99 M>C;99 � � M>C;99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M>C;99 � � � O$#P"##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1789>; ;<<=Q:W[.-3�G/E3/1C�GTU1A.-JC�8=�3A�Q>�F@GC�H/IBEJ/ :9 ;> > ; KL M:C;99N99 M:C;99 � � � � � M:C;99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O"P$##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1789>; ;<<=Q8>[.-3�G/E3/1C�GTU1A.-JC�8=�3A�Q>�F@GC�H/IBEJ/ :9 ;> > ; KL M:C;99N99 M:C;99 � � � � � M:C;99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O"P$##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1789>; ;<<=>>9[.-3�G/E3/1C�GTU1A.-JC�8=�3A�Q>�F@GC�H/IBEJ/ :9 ;> > ; KL M:C;99N99 M:C;99 � � � � � M:C;99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O"P$##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17>9;: ;<<=Q:QV/JA.UE1T�\1E.2SA1Y/1C�71TC�::>�]̂LC�H/IBEJ/ 89 :> > ; KL M:>C999N99 M:>C999 � � � � � M:>C999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O"(P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1089:? ;<=>:>;_.3/1-A1�̀BAA1�̀-.-2RC�̂-.TB�\-B/�â0\bC�H/IBEJ/ ;> ;9 > ;;=9 V̀ M>N99 M>CQ>9 � � � � � M>CQ>9 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M>CQ>9 O$$P*##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1089:? ;<=>:>?_.3/1-A1�̀BAA1�̀-.-2RC�0/1EY-J�\-B/C�H/IBEJ/ ?9 89 ;9 ;99 V̀ M;QN99 M;CQ99 � � � � � � � � � � M;CQ99 � � � � � � � � � � O$P+##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1089:? ;<=>:>8_.3/1-A1�̀BAA1�̀-.-2RC�̂-.TB�\-B/�â0\bC�H/IBEJ/ ;> : ;8 ?Q9 V̀ M>N99 M:C?99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � M:C?99 � � � � � � � O"P'##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10898: ;<=>:>:_.3/1-A1�0/-B-.6�̀-.-2RC�V52I/.U/U�LJA523-JEB�\-B/�aL0\bC�H/IBEJ/ :> ;> ;9 ;<>9 V̀ M8N>9 M>C==> � � � � � � � � � � M>C==> � � � � � � � � � � O(P**(,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17:9;; ;<=>:>>\A-B/3C�0AYY/1J-EB�ZE3/1�0BA2/3C�H/IBEJ/ 89 ;> ;> ? KL M;C899N99 M>C:99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M>C:99 � � � � � O(P"##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17:9;? ;<=>:><V-.]cdEeE3A1TC�ZEBBfG5.6C�̂-31/A52�0R-.EC�H/IBEJ/ 89 ;> ;> ? KL M;C>99N99 M<C999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M<C999 � � � � � O)P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17:9;Q ;<=?<W>71-.]-.6�̀A5.3E-.C�_.3/1-A1C�H/IBEJ/ ;> ;9 > ; KL M;CW99N99 M;CW99 � � � � � M;CW99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M;CW99 O&P+##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1089:? ;<=>:=?_.3/1-A1�̀BAA1�̀-.-2RC�dEY-.E3/�̀E5g�ZAAUC�H/IBEJ/ ;> : ;8 ;<99 V̀ M=N99 M;;C:99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � M;;C:99 � � � � � � � O$$P"##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10898; ;<=>:=8_.3/1-A1�0/-B-.6�̀-.-2RC�DTI25Y�@AE1Uc,BE23/1C�H/IBEJ/ >9 89 :9 ;<99 V̀ MQN99 M;:CQ99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M;:CQ99 O$"P+##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1K;9:Q ;<<Q:8Q7/S-X1-BBE3A1�aLK7bC�0EX-./3�FA5.3/UC�H/IBEJ/ ;9 > > ; KL M;C>99N99 M;C>99 � � � � � M;C>99 � � � � � � � � � M;C>99 � � � � � O&P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1089:? ;<=>:QW_.3/1-A1�̀BAA1�̀-.-2RC�d-.AB/5YC�H/IBEJ/ ;> ;9 > ;?? V̀ M8N>9 M>9? � � � � � M>9? � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M>9? O$P##+,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1089:? ;<=>:Q=_.3/1-A1�̀BAA1�̀-.-2RC�̂-.TB�\-B/�â0\bC�H/IBEJ/ ;> ;9 > ;W;Q V̀ M>N99 MWC>W9 � � � � � MWC>W9 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � MWC>W9 O$%P$+#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1089:> ;<=>:QQ_.3/1-A1�̀BAA1�̀-.-2RC�0E1I/3�0AYY/1J-EB�V3E.UE1UC�H/IBEJ/ ;9 : Q ;9<? V̀ M=N>9 M=CWQ9 � � � � � � � � M=CWQ9 � � � � � � � � � M=CWQ9 � � O$(P%)#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17:9;; ;<=>:W9\A-B/3C�0AYY/1J-EB�ZE3/1�0BA2/3C�H/IBEJ/ 89 ;9 :9 8 KL M;C899N99 M8CW99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M8CW99 O&P%##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17:9;? ;<=>:W;V-.]cdEeE3A1TC�ZEBBfG5.6C�̂-31/A52�0R-.EC�H/IBEJ/ 89 ;9 :9 ; KL M;C>99N99 M;C>99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M;C>99 O$P(##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17:9;Q ;<=?=Q;71-.]-.6�̀A5.3E-.C�_.3/1-A1C�H/IBEJ/ ;> : ;8 ; KL M;CW99N99 M;CW99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � M;CW99 � � � � � � � O$P%##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1089:? ;<=>:8W_.3/1-A1�̀BAA1�̀-.-2RC�dEY-.E3/�̀E5g�ZAAUC�H/IBEJ/ ;> : ;8 8:8: V̀ M=N99 M::C<:? � � � � � � � � � � � � � M::C<:? � � � � � � � O""P)"',-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1089:? ;<=>:?9_.3/1-A1�̀BAA1�̀-.-2RC�d-.AB/5YC�H/IBEJ/ ;> : ;8 ;8Q? V̀ M8N>9 M?CQ?? � � � � � � � � � � � � � M?CQ?? � � � � � � � O'P+'',-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1089:? ;<=>:8<_.3/1-A1�̀BAA1�̀-.-2RC�̂-.TB�\-B/�â0\bC�H/IBEJ/ ;> : ;8 ;=W: V̀ M>N99 MQCW<9 � � � � � � � � � � � � � MQCW<9 � � � � � � � O+P%)#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1089:> ;<=>:8Q_.3/1-A1�̀BAA1�̀-.-2RC�0E1I/3�0AYY/1J-EB�V3E.UE1UC�H/IBEJ/ ;9 : Q :;< V̀ M=N>9 M;C<:9 � � � � � � � � M;C<:9 � � � � � � � � � M;C<:9 � � O&P"'#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1K;9W8 ;<=?>8;0AYY/1J-EB�h-3JR/.C�0ASS//�FEJR-./C�H/IBEJ/ ;9 : Q ; KL M:C999N99 M:C999 � � � � � � � � M:C999 � � � � � � � � � M:C999 � � O'P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1K;9W8 ;<=?>8:0AYY/1J-EB�h-3JR/.C�_J/YE]/1C�\EXB/3AIC�H/IBEJ/ ;9 : Q ; KL M:C>99N99 M:C>99 � � � � � � � � M:C>99 � � � � � � � � � M:C>99 � � O(P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1K;9W? ;<=?>89H/2-U/.3-EB�LIIB-E.J/2C�7-2RiE2R/1C�H/IBEJ/ ;9 : Q ; KL M=99N99 M=99 � � � � � � � � M=99 � � � � � � � � � M=99 � � O$P'##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1089:; ;<=>99W_.3/1-A1�̀BAA1�̀-.-2RC�E.T�251SEJ/�ic�KIAgT�0AE3-.6C�,1/I�j�,E-.3 ;9 : Q ;999 V̀ M;:N99 M;:C999 � � � � � � � �M;:C999 � � � � � � � � �M;:C999 � � O"'P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1089:? ;<=>;;;_.3/1-A1�̀BAA1�̀-.-2RC�d-.AB/5YC�H/IBEJ/ ;> : ;8 ?9Q V̀ M8N>9 M;C?:Q � � � � � � � � � � � � � M;C?:Q � � � � � � � O$P'"+,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1089:? ;<=>9;8_.3/1-A1�̀BAA1�̀-.-2RC�̂-.TB�\-B/�â0\bC�H/IBEJ/ ;> : ;8 :>;Q V̀ M>N99 M;:C>W9 � � � � � � � � � � � � � M;:C>W9 � � � � � � � O$"P(%#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1089:? ;<=>9;?_.3/1-A1�̀BAA1�̀-.-2RC�dEY-.E3/�̀E5g�ZAAUC�H/IBEJ/ ;> : ;8 >8?? V̀ M=N99 M8=C?9Q � � � � � � � � � � � � � M8=C?9Q � � � � � � � O&*P'#+,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1089:> ;<=>;9W_.3/1-A1�̀BAA1�̀-.-2RC�0E1I/3�0AYY/1J-EB�V3E.UE1UC�H/IBEJ/ ;9 : Q :98: V̀ M=N>9 M;>C:?9 � � � � � � � �M;>C:?9 � � � � � � � � �M;>C:?9 � � O&#P'+#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17:98? ;<<Q;=>D1/E2/�\1EIc_.3/1J/I3A1C�[.U/161A5.UC�H/IBEJ/ :9 : ;Q ; KL M;:C999N99 M;:C999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �M;:C999 � � O$"P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17?9W; ;<<Q;=8 -̀1/�V5II1/22-A.�VT23/YC�0AYY/1J-EB�h-3JR/.�aI/1�d̀�AS�GAAUbC�H/IBEJ/ :9 : ;Q ? d̀ M?99N99 M;C<99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M;C<99 � � O$P)##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17>98: ;<<Q;W94512/�0EBB�VT23/YC�C�_.23EBB :9 : ;Q ;>999 V̀ M:N>9 M8=C>99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �M8=C>99 � � O&*P(##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17>98= ;<<Q;QW -̀1/�LBE1Y�0A.31AB�,E./BC�LUU1/22EXB/C�H/IBEJ/ ;> : ;8 ; KL M;>C999N99 M;>C999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � M;>C999 � � � � � � � O$(P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1K;9:Q ;<=>99>7/S-X1-BBE3A1�aLK7bC�0EX-./3�FA5.3/UC�H/IBEJ/ ;9 : Q ; KL M;C>99N99 M;C>99 � � � � � � � � M;C>99 � � � � � � � � � M;C>99 � � O&P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1K;9W8 ;<<Q;=<0AYY/1J-EB�h-3JR/.C�V3/EY/1C�\EXB/3AIC�H/IBEJ/ ;9 : Q ; KL M=C999N99 M=C999 � � � � � � � � M=C999 � � � � � � � � � M=C999 � � O$'P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1K;9W8 ;<<Q;Q:0AYY/1J-EB�h-3JR/.C�0ASS//�FEJR-./C�H/IBEJ/ ;9 : Q ; KL M:C999N99 M:C999 � � � � � � � � M:C999 � � � � � � � � � M:C999 � � O'P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1K;9W8 ;<<Q;Q80AYY/1J-EB�h-3JR/.C�_J/YE]/1C�\EXB/3AIC�H/IBEJ/ ;9 : Q ; KL M:C>99N99 M:C>99 � � � � � � � � M:C>99 � � � � � � � � � M:C>99 � � O(P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1K;9W8 ;<<Q;=:0AYY/1J-EB�h-3JR/.C�KgRE523�GAAUC�8�3A�<�d̀C�H/IBEJ/ ;> : ;8 ; KL M8C899N99 M8C899 � � � � � � � � � � � � � M8C899 � � � � � � � O&P&##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1K;9W8 ;<<Q;=?0AYY/1J-EB�h-3JR/.C�HE.6/cke/.C�?f@51./1�ic�D1-UUB/C�H/IBEJ/ ;> : ;8 ; KL M<C=99N99 M<C=99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � M<C=99 � � � � � � � O)P*##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1K;9W8 ;<<Q;Q;0AYY/1J-EB�h-3JR/.C�7E-1T�0AAB/1cZ/BB2C�H/IBEJ/ ;> : ;8 ; KL M8C<99N99 M8C<99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � M8C<99 � � � � � � � O&P)##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1K;9W8 ;<<Q;Q90AYY/1J-EB�h-3JR/.C�H/S1-6/1E3A1C�?f7AA1�H/EJRf_.C�H/IBEJ/ ;> : ;8 ; KL M=C899N99 M=C899 � � � � � � � � � � � � � M=C899 � � � � � � � O*P&##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1K;9W8 ;<<Q;=;0AYY/1J-EB�h-3JR/.C�VEBEUcVE.Ui-JR�,1/IE1E3-A.�\EXB/C�H/IBEJ/ :9 : ;Q ; KL M?C;99N99 M?C;99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M?C;99 � � O'P$##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1K;9W? ;<<Q;=WH/2-U/.3-EB�LIIB-E.J/2C�7-2RiE2R/1C�H/IBEJ/ ;9 : Q ; KL M=99N99 M=99 � � � � � � � � M=99 � � � � � � � � � M=99 � � O$P'##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1K;9W? ;<<Q;QQH/2-U/.3-EB�LIIB-E.J/2C�0BA3R/2�71T/1C�H/IBEJ/ ;> : ;8 : KL M<>9N99 M;C899 � � � � � � � � � � � � � M;C899 � � � � � � � O$P&##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1K;9W? ;<<Q;Q=H/2-U/.3-EB�LIIB-E.J/2C�0BA3R/2�ZE2R/1C�H/IBEJ/ ;> : ;8 : KL MQ>9N99 M;C=99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � M;C=99 � � � � � � � O$P*##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17:9:8 ;<<Q;<?ZE3/1�G/E3/1C�DE2C�0AYY/1J-EBC�;99�DLd�a?99�F@GbC�H/IBEJ/ :9 : ;Q ; KL M::C999N99 M::C999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �M::C999 � � O""P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17:9:8 ;<<Q;<>ZE3/1�G/E3/1C�DE2C�0AYY/1J-EBC�;99�DLd�a?99�F@GbC�H/IBEJ/ :9 : ;Q ; KL M::C999N99 M::C999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �M::C999 � � O""P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1789>; ;<<Q;<<[.-3�G/E3/1C�GTU1A.-JC�;8�3A�8<�F@GC�H/IBEJ/ :9 : ;Q ; KL M;C=99N99 M;C=99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M;C=99 � � O$P*##

 



�������� ��	
���� ���
�������� �� ��������������� ��
���������� ���� ��� ������� ���� ����������! ��	����� "#$% "#"# "#"$ "#"" "#"& "#"' "#"( "#") "#"* "#"+ "#"% "#&# "#&$ "#&" "#&& "#&' "#&( "#&) "#&* "#&+ "#&% ��
������ �������������,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10789: ;<=>9:?@.3/1-A1�BCAA1�B-.-2DE�F-.AC/5GE�H/ICJK/ ;> ;8 > ;8?8 LB M7N>8 M7E=?8 � � � � � M7E=?8 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M7E=?8 O*P()#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10789: ;<=>9::@.3/1-A1�BCAA1�B-.-2DE�Q-.RC�S-C/�TQ0SUE�H/ICJK/ ;> ;8 > ;<V< LB M>N88 M?E:?8 � � � � � M?E:?8 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M?E:?8 O$)P%)#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10789: ;<=>9:<@.3/1-A1�BCAA1�B-.-2DE�Q-.RC�S-C/�TQ0SUE�H/ICJK/ ;> 9 ;7 ;9?8 LB M>N88 M<E:88 � � � � � � � � � � � � � M<E:88 � � � � � � � O)P'##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10789: ;<=>9:=@.3/1-A1�BCAA1�B-.-2DE�FJG-.J3/�BJ5W�XAAYE�H/ICJK/ ;> 9 ;7 7<8 LB M=N88 M9E>98 � � � � � � � � � � � � � M9E>98 � � � � � � � O"P("#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/107879 ;<=>9:>@.3/1-A1�0/-C-.6�B-.-2DE�L52I/.Y/Y�ZKA523-KJC�S-C/�TZ0SUE�H/ICJK/ 9> ;8 ;> ::;< LB M7N>8 M;>E:>< � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M;>E:>< � � � � � O$(P'(),-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[98;; ;<=>9:VSA-C/3E�0AGG/1K-JC�XJ3/1�0CA2/3E�H/ICJK/ 78 9> > ;9 \Z M;E788N88 M;>E<88 � � � � � M;>E<88 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O$(P)##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[98;: ;<=>9>8L-.]̂FJ_J3A1RE�XJCC̀a5.6E�Q-31/A52�0D-.JE�H/ICJK/ 78 9> > ;9 \Z M;E>88N88 M;?E888 � � � � � M;?E888 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O$+P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[98;? ;<=:<=V[1-.]-.6�BA5.3J-.E�@.3/1-A1E�H/ICJK/ ;> ;8 > ; \Z M;EV88N88 M;EV88 � � � � � M;EV88 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M;EV88 O&P+##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[78:; ;<=:<V:Z-1�aJ.YC/1�TZabUE�@.3/1-A1E�:E88;�3A�<E888�0BcE�H/ICJK/ 78 9= 7 ; \Z M7;E888N88 M7;E888 � � � M7;E888 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O&$P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[78<? ;<=:<?8dZL̂aQZ0�0A.31AC2E�\W3/.2-_/̂HAe523�dcL�A1�LGJ13�d5-CY-.6�LR23/GE�H/ICJK/ ;> ;7 9 V888 LB M<N88 M>:E888 � � M>:E888 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M>:E888 � � � O$#+P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[>87= ;<=:<=<B-1/�ZCJ1G�0A.31AC�,J./CE�ZYY1/22JeC/E�H/ICJK/ ;> 9 ;7 ; \Z M;>E888N88 M;>E888 � � � � � � � � � � � � � M;>E888 � � � � � � � O$(P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[98V; ;<=:=;;Z-1�0AGI1/22A1E�>�a,E�H/ICJK/ 98 9 ;? ; \Z M;8E<88N88 M;8E<88 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �M;8E<88 � � O$#P)##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[78:; ;<=:=87Z-1�aJ.YC/1�TZabUE�@.3/1-A1E�:E88;�3A�<E888�0BcE�H/ICJK/ 78 9= 7 ; \Z M7;E888N88 M7;E888 � � � M7;E888 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O&$P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[78:; ;<=:=;:Z-1�aJ.YC/1�TZabUE�@.3/1-A1E�:E88;�3A�<E888�0BcE�H/ICJK/ 78 9= 7 ; \Z M7;E888N88 M7;E888 � � � M7;E888 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O&$P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[78:; ;<=:=89Z-1�aJ.YC/1�TZabUE�@.3/1-A1E�:E88;�3A�<E888�0BcE�H/ICJK/ 78 9= 7 ; \Z M7;E888N88 M7;E888 � � � M7;E888 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O&$P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[78:; ;<=:=;7Z-1�aJ.YC/1�TZabUE�@.3/1-A1E�:E88;�3A�<E888�0BcE�H/ICJK/ 78 9= 7 ; \Z M7;E888N88 M7;E888 � � � M7;E888 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O&$P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[>8;9 ;<=:=;>L/KA.YJ1R�S1J.2fA1G/1E�[1RE�=>�]QZE�H/ICJK/ 78 ;> ;> ; \Z M;8E888N88 M;8E888 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M;8E888 � � � � � O$#P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[>87= ;<=:=;9B-1/�ZCJ1G�0A.31AC�,J./CE�ZYY1/22JeC/E�H/ICJK/ ;> 9 ;7 ; \Z M;>E888N88 M;>E888 � � � � � � � � � � � � � M;>E888 � � � � � � � O$(P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10789: ;<=>;V>@.3/1-A1�BCAA1�B-.-2DE�Q-.RC�S-C/�TQ0SUE�H/ICJK/ ;> ;8 > 77=9 LB M>N88 M;<E?<8 � � � � � M;<E?<8 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M;<E?<8 O&&P*"#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10789: ;<=>988@.3/1-A1�BCAA1�B-.-2DE�F-.AC/5GE�H/ICJK/ ;> > ;8 >V: LB M7N>8 M9E8=V � � � � � � � � � � M9E8=V � � � � � � � � � � O"P#*%,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10789: ;<=>;VV@.3/1-A1�BCAA1�B-.-2DE�Q-.RC�S-C/�TQ0SUE�H/ICJK/ ;> 9 ;7 ;::8 LB M>N88 M=E988 � � � � � � � � � � � � � M=E988 � � � � � � � O*P"##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/107879 ;<=>;V?@.3/1-A1�0/-C-.6�B-.-2DE�L52I/.Y/Y�ZKA523-KJC�S-C/�TZ0SUE�H/ICJK/ 9> 98 > :7<< LB M7N>8 M;>E9?; � � � � � M;>E9?; � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O$(P"+$,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[98;; ;<=>98;SA-C/3E�0AGG/1K-JC�XJ3/1�0CA2/3E�H/ICJK/ 78 9> > ;8 \Z M;E788N88 M;7E888 � � � � � M;7E888 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O$&P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[98;: ;<=>989L-.]̂FJ_J3A1RE�XJCC̀a5.6E�Q-31/A52�0D-.JE�H/ICJK/ 78 9> > ;8 \Z M;E>88N88 M;>E888 � � � � � M;>E888 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O$(P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[98;? ;<<?978[1-.]-.6�BA5.3J-.E�@.3/1-A1E�H/ICJK/ ;> ;8 > ; \Z M;EV88N88 M;EV88 � � � � � M;EV88 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M;EV88 O&P+##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[78:; ;<<?979Z-1�aJ.YC/1�TZabUE�@.3/1-A1E�:E88;�3A�<E888�0BcE�H/ICJK/ 78 9= 7 ; \Z M7;E888N88 M7;E888 � � � M7;E888 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O&$P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[78<? ;<<?977dZL̂aQZ0�0A.31AC2E�\W3/.2-_/̂HAe523�dcL�A1�LGJ13�d5-CY-.6�LR23/GE�H/ICJK/ ;> ;7 9 ?888 LB M<N88 M:?E888 � � M:?E888 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M:?E888 � � � O%)P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[>8;V ;<<?97:B5CC�\C/K31-KJC�LR23/G�bI61JY/E�a-6D�[/.2-3R̂0AGIC/W-3RE�H/ICJK/ :8 9= ;7 ?888 LB M9?N88 M99:E888 � � � � � � � � � � � � � M99:E888 � � � � � � � O""'P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10789: ;<=>;==@.3/1-A1�BCAA1�B-.-2DE�F-.AC/5GE�H/ICJK/ ;> ;8 > =9 LB M7N>8 M9>9 � � � � � M9>9 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M9>9 O(#',-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10789: ;<=>;=<@.3/1-A1�BCAA1�B-.-2DE�FJG-.J3/�BJ5W�XAAYE�H/ICJK/ ;> 9 ;7 =?: LB M=N88 M>E:?? � � � � � � � � � � � � � M>E:?? � � � � � � � O(P'++,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10789: ;<=>;=7@.3/1-A1�BCAA1�B-.-2DE�Q-.RC�S-C/�TQ0SUE�H/ICJK/ ;> 9 ;7 V< LB M>N88 M:?8 � � � � � � � � � � � � � M:?8 � � � � � � � O'+#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10789> ;<=>;=>@.3/1-A1�BCAA1�B-.-2DE�0J1I/3�0AGG/1K-JC�L3J.YJ1YE�H/ICJK/ ;8 9 ? 78? LB M=N>8 M9E7;8 � � � � � � � � M9E7;8 � � � � � � � � � M9E7;8 � � O'P)"#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/107879 ;<=>;=:@.3/1-A1�0/-C-.6�B-.-2DE�L52I/.Y/Y�ZKA523-KJC�S-C/�TZ0SUE�H/ICJK/ 9> 98 > ;9<8 LB M7N>8 M:E:;8 � � � � � M:E:;8 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O'P'$#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[98;; ;<=>;=?SA-C/3E�0AGG/1K-JC�XJ3/1�0CA2/3E�H/ICJK/ 78 9= 7 9 \Z M;E788N88 M9E<88 � � � M9E<88 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O"P)##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[98;: ;<=>;=VL-.]̂FJ_J3A1RE�XJCC̀a5.6E�Q-31/A52�0D-.JE�H/ICJK/ 78 9= 7 9 \Z M;E>88N88 M7E888 � � � M7E888 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O&P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10789: ;<=>9;9@.3/1-A1�BCAA1�B-.-2DE�Q-.RC�S-C/�TQ0SUE�H/ICJK/ ;> ;8 > ;7:: LB M>N88 M<E=98 � � � � � M<E=98 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M<E=98 O$&P''#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10789: ;<=>9;>@.3/1-A1�BCAA1�B-.-2DE�0/1JG-K�S-C/E�H/ICJK/ :8 78 ;8 ;88 LB M;?N88 M;E?88 � � � � � � � � � � M;E?88 � � � � � � � � � � O$P+##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10789: ;<=>9;;@.3/1-A1�BCAA1�B-.-2DE�Q-.RC�S-C/�TQ0SUE�H/ICJK/ ;> 9 ;7 <:8 LB M>N88 M7E988 � � � � � � � � � � � � � M7E988 � � � � � � � O&P"##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10787; ;<=>9;7@.3/1-A1�0/-C-.6�B-.-2DE�gRI25G�dAJ1Ŷ,CJ23/1E�H/ICJK/ >8 78 98 ;88 LB M?N88 M?88 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M?88 O+##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[98;; ;<=>9;<SA-C/3E�0AGG/1K-JC�XJ3/1�0CA2/3E�H/ICJK/ 78 9> > : \Z M;E788N88 M>E988 � � � � � M>E988 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O(P"##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[98;: ;<=>9;=L-.]̂FJ_J3A1RE�XJCC̀a5.6E�Q-31/A52�0D-.JE�H/ICJK/ 78 9> > : \Z M;E>88N88 M<E888 � � � � � M<E888 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O)P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[98;? ;<=:9?;[1-.]-.6�BA5.3J-.E�@.3/1-A1E�H/ICJK/ ;> ;8 > ; \Z M;EV88N88 M;EV88 � � � � � M;EV88 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M;EV88 O&P+##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[9897 ;<=:9=?XJ3/1�a/J3/1E�gJ2E�0AGG/1K-JCE�=>�gZF�T;9>�cdaUE�H/ICJK/ 98 ;? 9 ; \Z M;9E:88N88 M;9E:88 � � M;9E:88 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O$"P'##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[9897 ;<=:9=VXJ3/1�a/J3/1E�gJ2E�0AGG/1K-JCE�=>�gZF�T;9>�cdaUE�H/ICJK/ 98 ;? 9 ; \Z M;9E:88N88 M;9E:88 � � M;9E:88 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O$"P'##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[78>; ;<=:9?8b.-3�a/J3/1E�aRY1A.-KE�;7�3A�7<�cdaE�H/ICJK/ 98 ;> > ; \Z M;E=88N88 M;E=88 � � � � � M;E=88 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O$P*##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1\;8V7 ;<=:9?90AGG/1K-JC�h-3KD/.E�@K/GJ]/1E�SJeC/3AIE�H/ICJK/ ;8 9 ? ; \Z M9E>88N88 M9E>88 � � � � � � � � M9E>88 � � � � � � � � � M9E>88 � � O(P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10789: ;<=>9?;@.3/1-A1�BCAA1�B-.-2DE�Q-.RC�S-C/�TQ0SUE�H/ICJK/ ;> ;8 > ;<8 LB M>N88 M?88 � � � � � M?88 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M?88 O$P)##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/107879 ;<=>9?9@.3/1-A1�0/-C-.6�B-.-2DE�L52I/.Y/Y�ZKA523-KJC�S-C/�TZ0SUE�H/ICJK/ 9> ;> ;8 ;<8 LB M7N>8 M><8 � � � � � � � � � � M><8 � � � � � � � � � � O()#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10789: ;<=>987@.3/1-A1�BCAA1�B-.-2DE�Q-.RC�S-C/�TQ0SUE�H/ICJK/ ;> ;8 > ;=9? LB M>N88 M?E<:8 � � � � � M?E<:8 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M?E<:8 O$*P"+#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10789: ;<=>98?@.3/1-A1�BCAA1�B-.-2DE�F-.AC/5GE�H/ICJK/ ;> > ;8 <8 LB M7N>8 M9;8 � � � � � � � � � � M9;8 � � � � � � � � � � O"$#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10789: ;<=>98<@.3/1-A1�BCAA1�B-.-2DE�Q-.RC�S-C/�TQ0SUE�H/ICJK/ ;> 9 ;7 ?88 LB M>N88 M:E888 � � � � � � � � � � � � � M:E888 � � � � � � � O'P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10789: ;<=>98=@.3/1-A1�BCAA1�B-.-2DE�0/1JG-K�S-C/E�H/ICJK/ :8 98 98 ;88 LB M;?N88 M;E?88 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M;E?88 O$P+##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10787; ;<=>98:@.3/1-A1�0/-C-.6�B-.-2DE�gRI25G�dAJ1Ŷ,CJ23/1E�H/ICJK/ >8 :: < ;<8 LB M?N88 M;E9?8 � � � � � � M;E9?8 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O$P"+#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/107879 ;<=>98>@.3/1-A1�0/-C-.6�B-.-2DE�L52I/.Y/Y�ZKA523-KJC�S-C/�TZ0SUE�H/ICJK/ 9> ;8 ;> 9>9? LB M7N>8 M?E?:? � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M?E?:? � � � � � O+P+'+,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[98;; ;<=>98VSA-C/3E�0AGG/1K-JC�XJ3/1�0CA2/3E�H/ICJK/ 78 9> > > \Z M;E788N88 M<E>88 � � � � � M<E>88 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O)P(##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[98;: ;<=>9;8L-.]̂FJ_J3A1RE�XJCC̀a5.6E�Q-31/A52�0D-.JE�H/ICJK/ 78 9> > > \Z M;E>88N88 M=E>88 � � � � � M=E>88 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O*P(##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[98;? ;<<?97=[1-.]-.6�BA5.3J-.E�@.3/1-A1E�H/ICJK/ ;> ;8 > ; \Z M;EV88N88 M;EV88 � � � � � M;EV88 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M;EV88 O&P+##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[78<? ;<<?99>dZL̂aQZ0�0A.31AC2E�\W3/.2-_/̂HAe523�dcL�A1�LGJ13�d5-CY-.6�LR23/GE�H/ICJK/ ;> ;7 9 :9>8 LB M<N88 M9>E>88 � � M9>E>88 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M9>E>88 � � � O($P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[>8;V ;<<?99:B5CC�\C/K31-KJC�LR23/G�bI61JY/E�a-6D�[/.2-3R̂0AGIC/W-3RE�H/ICJK/ :8 7> > :9>8 LB M9?N88 M;;VE888 � � � � � M;;VE888 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O$$%P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[9897 ;<=:<=9XJ3/1�a/J3/1E�gJ2E�0AGG/1K-JCE�;88�gZF�T988�cdaUE�H/ICJK/ 98 9 ;? ; \Z M;<E<88N88 M;<E<88 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �M;<E<88 � � O$)P)##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1[9897 ;<=:<=7XJ3/1�a/J3/1E�gJ2E�0AGG/1K-JCE�;88�gZF�T988�cdaUE�H/ICJK/ 98 9 ;? ; \Z M;<E<88N88 M;<E<88 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �M;<E<88 � � O$)P)##

 



�������� ��	
���� ���
�������� �� ��������������� ��
���������� ���� ��� ������� ���� ����������! ��	����� "#$% "#"# "#"$ "#"" "#"& "#"' "#"( "#") "#"* "#"+ "#"% "#&# "#&$ "#&" "#&& "#&' "#&( "#&) "#&* "#&+ "#&% ��
������ �������������,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1789:; ;<=>?@>A-1�0BCD1/22B1E�8�F,E�G/DHIJ/ 89 8 ;K ; LA M=E8=9N99 M=E8=9 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M=E8=9 � � O*P"*#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17?9@8 ;<=>?8K4512/�0IHH�QR23/CE�E�S.23IHH 89 8 ;K ;?999 QT M8N?9 M@=E?99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �M@=E?99 � � O&*P(##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17?9@= ;<=>8K:T-1/�AHI1C�0B.31BH�,I./HE�AUU1/22IVH/E�G/DHIJ/ ;? 8 ;@ ; LA M;?E999N99 M;?E999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � M;?E999 � � � � � � � O$(P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/10@98> ;<=?8=9S.3/1-B1�THBB1�T-.-2WE�X-.RH�Y-H/�ZX0Y[E�G/DHIJ/ ;? 8 ;@ ?<99 QT M?N99 M8KE999 � � � � � � � � � � � � � M8KE999 � � � � � � � O"+P###,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1\89@> ;<=>==K]̂ /1W/IU_7BJ̀�7BB1E�AH5C-.5C�;>>�QTE�G/DHIJ/ @9 ;? ;? ; LA M>E>99N99 M>E>99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M>E>99 � � � � � O'P'##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1\89@> ;<=>=;<]̂ /1W/IU�7BB1E�G/2-U/.3-IH�aI1I6/�?<�QTE�G/DHIJ/ @9 ;? ;? ; LA M:?9N99 M:?9 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � M:?9 � � � � � O%(#,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17@9>8 ;<=>=;KLbWI523�TI.E�0/.31-c56IHE�;E99;�3B�8E999�0Td�Z;<e�7ICD/1[E�G/DHIJ/ 8? ;? ;9 ; LA M8E>99N99 M8E>99 � � � � � � � � � � M8E>99 � � � � � � � � � � O"P'##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17@9?; ;<=>=K9f.-3�F/I3/1E�FRU1B.-JE�;@�3B�@<�d\FE�G/DHIJ/ 89 ;? ? ; LA M;E=99N99 M;E=99 � � � � � M;E=99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O$P*##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/17@9?; ;<=>=;=f.-3�F/I3/1E�FRU1B.-JE�;@�3B�@<�d\FE�G/DHIJ/ 89 ;? ? ; LA M;E=99N99 M;E=99 � � � � � M;E=99 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � O$P*##,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1,-./�01/23�4512-.6�0/.3/1L;9@; ;<=>==:aI1I6/�7BB1�]D/./1E�\/H3�71-̂/E�9N?�F,E�G/DHIJ/ ;? ? ;9 ; LA M?=9N99 M?=9 � � � � � � � � � � M?=9 � � � � � � � � � � O(*#g�����P������������ O$+P*##O+'&P###O$P)$+P#(#O$P"##P$## O'P)##O"P()'P%$)O)"P++#O('P#"'O)#P((#O$(P)*#O$P)*+P#+"O$'*P$## O+'P###O$P#$%P'$# O#O"P#%%P%+&O'(P###O$P"%*P+##O&"%P$"#O"#P'##O'P$'+P+&+O$*P&$"P""&g�����P������������&h#i���
������P������������������� � O$+P*##O+)+P"%#O$P*$)P(+%O$P&$$P&+" O(P$**O"P%*&P''$O*(P#+"O))P''&O*)P*#&O"#P'')O"P"((P"#"O"#&P)"$O$$%P*)'O$P'%*P#&+ O#O&P"*$P*#(O*"P"$"O"P$'(P#))O()#P&#(O&(P**"O*P'%&P")&O"'P*+)P$%%

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

  
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
1. Executive Summary ............................................................................................................................. 1 

1.1. Property Information and General Physical Condition ................................................................ 1 
1.2. Facility Condition Index (FCI) ...................................................................................................... 2 
1.3. Special Issues and Follow-Up Recommendations ...................................................................... 3 
1.4. Opinions of Probable Cost .......................................................................................................... 3 
1.4.1. Methodology ................................................................................................................................ 4 
1.4.2. Immediate Repairs ...................................................................................................................... 4 
1.4.3. Replacement Reserves ............................................................................................................... 4 

2. Purpose and Scope .............................................................................................................................. 5 
2.1. Purpose ....................................................................................................................................... 5 
2.2. Scope .......................................................................................................................................... 6 
2.3. Personnel Interviewed ................................................................................................................. 7 
2.4. Documentation Reviewed ........................................................................................................... 7 
2.5. Pre-Survey Questionnaire ........................................................................................................... 7 
2.6. Weather Conditions ..................................................................................................................... 7 

3. Accessibility and Property Research ................................................................................................. 8 
3.1. ADA Accessibility......................................................................................................................... 8 

4. Existing Building Assessment ............................................................................................................ 9 
4.1. Unit or Space Types .................................................................................................................... 9 
4.2. Inaccessible Areas or Key Spaces Not Observed ...................................................................... 9 

5. Site Improvements ............................................................................................................................. 10 
5.1. Utilities ....................................................................................................................................... 10 
5.2. Parking, Paving, and Sidewalks ................................................................................................ 10 
5.3. Drainage Systems and Erosion Control .................................................................................... 11 
5.4. Topography and Landscaping ................................................................................................... 12 
5.5. General Site Improvements ....................................................................................................... 12 

6. Building Architectural and Structural Systems ............................................................................... 14 
6.1. Foundations ............................................................................................................................... 14 
6.2. Superstructure ........................................................................................................................... 14 
6.3. Roofing ...................................................................................................................................... 15 
6.4. Exterior Walls ............................................................................................................................ 17 
6.5. Exterior and Interior Stairs ......................................................................................................... 17 
6.6. Exterior Windows and Doors ..................................................................................................... 18 
6.7. Patio, Terrace, and Balcony ...................................................................................................... 18 

7. Building Mechanical and Plumbing Systems .................................................................................. 19 
7.1. Building Heating, Ventilating, and Air Conditioning (HVAC) ..................................................... 19 
7.2. Building Plumbing and Domestic Hot Water ............................................................................. 21 
7.3. Building Gas Distribution ........................................................................................................... 22 
7.4. Building Electrical ...................................................................................................................... 23 
7.5. Building Elevators and Conveying Systems .............................................................................. 23 
7.6. Fire Protection and Security Systems ....................................................................................... 25 

8. Interior Spaces .................................................................................................................................... 26 
8.1. Interior Finishes ......................................................................................................................... 26 
8.2. Commercial Kitchen and Laundry Equipment ........................................................................... 27 

9. Other Structures ................................................................................................................................. 29 
10. Certification ......................................................................................................................................... 30 
11. Appendices ......................................................................................................................................... 31 
 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY  EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

1 

1 .  Ex ec u t i v e  S um m a ry

1.1. Property Information and General Physical Condition  

The property information is summarized in the table below.  More detailed descriptions may be found in the various sections of the report 
and in the Appendices. 

Property Information 

Address: 2100 East Sixth Street, Merrill, Wisconsin 5542 

Year Constructed/Renovated: 

1975 Phase I 

1992 Phase II 

2008 Phase III 

2017 Phase IV 

Current Occupants: Lincoln County 

Percent Utilization: 100% 

Management Point of Contact: 
Lincoln County, Patrick Gierl, Maintenance Director 

715.218.6756 phone 

Property Type: Healthcare Rehabilitation 

Site Area: 20.00 acres 

Building Area: 155,000 SF 

Number of Buildings: One 

Number of Stories: Two 

Parking Type and Number of 
Spaces: 273 spaces in open lots 

Building Construction: Masonry bearing walls and steel-framed roofs. 

Roof Construction: 
Hip roofs with asphalt shingles. 

Flat roofs with built-up membrane. 

Exterior Finishes: Brick Veneer 

Heating, Ventilation & Air 
Conditioning: 

Central system with boilers and air handlers feeding VAV and hydronic 
underfloor radiant. 

Individual package and split-system units. 

Supplemental components: suspended unit heaters 

Fire and Life/Safety: Fire sprinklers, hydrants, smoke detectors, alarms, strobes, 
extinguishers, pull stations, alarm panel, exit signs. 

Dates of Visit: December 4-6, 2019 

On-Site Point of Contact (POC): John Hanson 

Assessment and Report 
Prepared by: David Harrell 

Reviewed by: 

Daniel White, 

Technical Report Reviewer for 

Brian Vickers 

Program Manager 

Brian.Vickers@bvna.com 

800.733.0660 x 6243 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

2 

   

Systemic Condition Summary 

Site Fair HVAC Fair 

Structure Good Plumbing Fair 

Roof Fair Electrical Fair 

Vertical Envelope Fair Elevators Fair 

Interiors Fair Fire Good 

 

The following bullet points highlight the most significant short term recommendations: 

▪ Full replacement of asphalt parking areas 

▪ Repair of exterior stucco 

▪ Roof repairs and replacements 

▪ HVAC equipment upgrades 

▪ BAS upgrades 

 

Generally, the property appears to have been constructed within industry standards in force at the time of construction.  The property 
appears to have been well maintained in recent years and is in good overall condition. 

According to property management personnel, the property has had an active capital improvement expenditure program over the past 
three years, primarily consisting of two new additions Unit A and Unit B in 2017 and some HVAC improvements. 

1.2. Facility Condit ion Index (FCI ) 

 
One of the major goals of the FCA is to calculate the FCI, which gives an indication of a building’s overall condition. Two FCI ratios are 
calculated and presented, the Current Year and Ten-Year. The Current Year FCI is the ratio of Immediate Repair Costs to the building’s 
Current Replacement Value.  Similarly, the Ten-Year FCI is the ratio of anticipated Capital Reserve Needs over the next ten years to the 
Current Replacement Value. 

 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

3 

   

FCI Condition 
Rating 

Definition 
Percentage 

Value 

Good 
In new or well-maintained condition, with no visual evidence of 
wear, soiling or other deficiencies. 0% to 5% 

Fair 
Subjected to wear and soiling but is still in a serviceable and 
functioning condition. 

> than 5% to 10% 

Poor 
Subjected to hard or long-term wear. Nearing the end of its 
useful or serviceable life. 

> than 10% to 60% 

Very Poor 
Has reached the end of its useful or serviceable life. Renewal 
is now necessary. 

> than 60% 

 

The graphs above and tables below represent summary-level findings for the FCA. The deficiencies identified in this assessment can be 
combined with potential new construction requirements to develop an overall strategy that can serve as the basis for a portfolio-wide 
capital improvement funding strategy. Key findings from the assessment include: 

 

Key Finding Metric 

 Current Year Facility Condition Index (FCI)    FCI = (IR)/(CRV) 0.1% Good 

10-Year Facility Condition Index (FCI)          FCI = (RR)/(CRV) 36.7% Poor 

Current Replacement Value (CRV) 155,000 SF * 164.88 / SF = $25,556,400 

Year 1 (Current Year) - Immediate Repairs (IR) $18,700 

Years 1-10 – Replacement Reserves (RR) $9.387,400 

 

The major issues contributing to the Immediate Repair Costs and the Current Year FCI ratio are summarized below: 

▪ Heating Water Distribution Pumps Replacements, 20-25 HP  

▪ Heating Water Distribution Pumps Replacements, 20-25 HP 

 

Further detail on the specific costs that make up the Immediate Repair Costs can be found in the cost tables at the beginning of this 
report. 

1.3. Special Issues and Follow-Up Recommendations 

As part of the FCA, a limited assessment of accessible areas of the building(s) was performed to determine the presence of fungal growth, 
conditions conducive to fungal growth, and/or evidence of moisture.  Property personnel were interviewed concerning any known or 
suspected fungal growth, elevated relative humidity, water intrusion, or mildew-like odors.  Sampling is not a part of this assessment. 

There are no visual indications of the presence of fungal growth, conditions conducive to fungal growth, or evidence of moisture in 
representative readily accessible areas of the property. 

1.4. Opinions of Probable Cost  

Cost estimates are attached at the front of this report (following the cover page). 

These estimates are based on Invoice or Bid Document/s provided either by the Owner/facility and construction costs developed by 
construction resources such as R.S. Means and Marshall & Swift, EMG’s experience with past costs for similar properties, city cost 
indexes, and assumptions regarding future economic conditions. 

Opinions of probable costs should only be construed as preliminary, order of magnitude budgets. Actual costs most probably wi ll vary 
from the consultant’s opinions of probable costs depending on such matters as type and design of suggested remedy, quality of materials 
and installation, manufacturer and type of equipment or system selected, field conditions, whether a physical deficiency is repaired or 
replaced in whole, phasing of the work (if applicable), quality of contractor, quality of project management exercised, market conditions, 
and whether competitive pricing is solicited, etc. ASTM E2018-08 recognizes that certain opinions of probable costs cannot be developed 
within the scope of this guide without further study. Opinions of probable cost for further study should be included in the FCA. 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

4 

   

1.4.1. Methodology 

Based upon site observations, research, and judgment, along with referencing Expected Useful Life (EUL) tables from various industry 
sources, EMG opines as to when a system or component will most probably necessitate replacement.  Accurate historical replacement 
records, if provided, are typically the best source of information.  Exposure to the elements, initial quality and installation, extent of use, 
the quality and amount of preventive maintenance exercised, etc., are all factors that impact the effective age of a system or component.  
As a result, a system or component may have an effective age that is greater or less than its actual chronological age.  The Remaining 
Useful Life (RUL) of a component or system equals the EUL less its effective age.  Projections of Remaining Useful Life (RUL) are based 
on continued use of the Property similar to the reported past use.  Significant changes in occupants and/or usage may affect the service 

life of some systems or components. 

Where quantities could not be derived from an actual take-off, lump sum costs or allowances are used.  Estimated costs are based on 
professional judgment and the probable or actual extent of the observed defect, inclusive of the cost to design, procure, construct and 

manage the corrections. 

1.4.2. Immediate Repairs  

Immediate repairs are opinions of probable costs that require immediate action as a result of: (1) material existing or potential unsafe 
conditions, (2) material building or fire code violations, or (3) conditions that, if not addressed, have the potential to result in, or contribute 
to, critical element or system failure within one year or will most probably result in a significant escalation of its remedial cost. 

1.4.3. Replacement Reserves 

Replacement Reserves are for recurring probable expenditures, which are not classified as operation or maintenance expenses.  The 
replacement reserves should be budgeted for in advance on an annual basis. Replacement Reserves are reasonably predictable both in 
terms of frequency and cost.  However, Replacement Reserves may also include components or systems that have an indeterminable 
life but, nonetheless, have a potential for failure within an estimated time period. 

Replacement Reserves exclude systems or components that are estimated to expire after the reserve term and are not considered 
material to the structural and mechanical integrity of the subject property.  Furthermore, systems and components that are not deemed 
to have a material effect on the use of the Property are also excluded.  Costs that are caused by acts of God, accidents, or other 

occurrences that are typically covered by insurance, rather than reserved for, are also excluded. 

Replacement costs are solicited from ownership/property management, EMG’s discussions with service companies, manufacturers' 
representatives, and previous experience in preparing such schedules for other similar facilities.  Costs for work performed by the 

ownership’s or property management’s maintenance staff are also considered. 

EMG’s reserve methodology involves identification and quantification of those systems or components requiring capital reserve funds 
within the assessment period.  The assessment period is defined as the effective age plus the reserve term.  Additional information 
concerning system’s or component’s respective replacement costs (in today's dollars), typical expected useful lives, and rema ining useful 
lives were estimated so that a funding schedule could be prepared.  The Replacement Reserves Schedule presupposes that all required 
remedial work has been performed or that monies for remediation have been budgeted for items defined in the Immediate Repair Cost 
Estimate. 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

5 

   

2 .  P u rp os e  an d  Sc op e  

2.1. Purpose 

EMG was retained by the client to render an opinion as to the Property’s current general physical condition on the day of the site visit. 

Based on the observations, interviews and document review outlined below, this report identifies significant deferred maintenance issues, 
existing deficiencies, and material code violations of record at municipal offices, which affect the Property’s use.  Opinions are rendered 
as to its structural integrity, building system condition and the Property’s overall condition.  The report also notes building systems or 
components that have realized or exceeded their typical expected useful lives. 

CONDITIONS: 

The physical condition of building systems and related components are typically defined as being in one of five conditions:  Excellent, 
Good, Fair, Poor, Failed or a combination thereof.  For the purposes of this report, the following definitions are used: 

Excellent = New or very close to new; component or system typically has been installed within the past year, sound and 
performing its function. Eventual repair or replacement will be required when the component or system either 
reaches the end of its useful life or fails in service. 

Good = Satisfactory as-is.  Component or system is sound and performing its function, typically within the first third of 
its lifecycle. However, it may show minor signs of normal wear and tear. Repair or replacement will be required 
when the component or system either reaches the end of its useful life or fails in service. 

Fair = Showing signs of wear and use but still satisfactory as-is, typically near the median of its estimated useful life.  
Component or system is performing adequately at this time but may exhibit some signs of wear, deferred 
maintenance, or evidence of previous repairs.  Repair or replacement will be required due to the component 
or system’s condition and/or its estimated remaining useful life. 

Poor = Component or system is significantly aged, flawed, functioning intermittently or unreliably; displays obvious 
signs of deferred maintenance; shows evidence of previous repair or workmanship not in compliance with 
commonly accepted standards; has become obsolete; or exhibits an inherent deficiency.  The present 
condition could contribute to or cause the deterioration of contiguous elements or systems.  Either full 
component replacement is needed or repairs are required to restore to good condition, prevent premature 
failure, and/or prolong useful life. 

Failed 

 

= Component or system has ceased functioning or performing as intended.  Replacement, repair, or other 
significant corrective action is recommended or required. 

Not Applicable 

 
 

= Assigning a condition does not apply or make logical sense, most commonly due to the item in question not 
being present. 

 
FORMAT OF THE BODY OF THE REPORT: 

Throughout sections 5 through 9 of this report, each report section will typically contain three subsections organized in the following 
sequence: 

▪ A descriptive table (and/or narrative), which identifies the components assessed, their condition, and other key data points.  

▪ A simple bulleted list of Anticipated Lifecycle Replacements, which lists components and assets typically in Excellent, Good, or Fair 
condition at the time of the assessment but that will require replacement or some other attention once aged past their estimated useful 
life.  These listed components are typically included in the associated inventory database with costs identified and budgeted beyond 
the first several years. 

▪ A bulleted cluster of Actions/Comments, which include more detailed narratives describing deficiencies, recommended repairs, and 
short term replacements.  The assets and components associated with these bullets are/were typically problematic and in Poor or 
Failed condition at the time of the assessment, with corresponding costs included within the first few years.      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

6 

   

PLAN TYPES: 

Each line item in the cost database is assigned a Plan Type, which is the primary reason or rationale for the recommended replacement, 
repair, or other corrective action.  This is the “why” part of the equation.  A cost or line item may commonly have more than one applicable 
Plan Type; however, only one Plan Type will be assigned based on the “best” fit, typically the one with the greatest significance.  The 
following Plan Types are listed in general weighted order of importance: 

Safety = An observed or reported unsafe condition that if left unaddressed could result in an injury; a system or 

component that presents a potential liability risk. 

Performance/Integrity = Component or system has failed, is almost failing, performs unreliably, does not perform as intended, 
and/or poses a risk to overall system stability. 

Accessibility = Does not meet ADA, UFAS, and/or other handicap accessibility requirements. 

Environmental = Improvements to air or water quality, including removal of hazardous materials from the building or site. 

Modernization/Adaptation 

 

= Conditions, systems, or spaces that need to be upgraded in appearance or function to meet current 
standards, facility usage, or client/occupant needs. 

Lifecycle/Renewal 

 

= Any component or system in which future repair or replacement is anticipated beyond the next several 
years and/or is of minimal substantial early-term consequence. 

2.2. Scope 

The standard scope of the Facility Condition Assessment includes the following: 

▪ Visit the Property to evaluate the general condition of the building and site improvements, review available construction documents in 
order to familiarize ourselves with, and be able to comment on, the in-place construction systems, life safety, mechanical, electrical, 
and plumbing systems, and the general built environment. 

▪ Identify those components that are exhibiting deferred maintenance issues and provide cost estimates for Immediate Costs and 
Replacement Reserves based on observed conditions, maintenance history and industry standard useful life estimates.  This will 
include the review of documented capital improvements completed within the last five-year period and work currently contracted for, if 
applicable. 

▪ Provide a full description of the Property with descriptions of in-place systems and commentary on observed conditions. 

▪ Provide a general statement of the subject Property’s compliance to Title III of the Americans with Disabilities Act.  This will not constitute 
a full ADA survey, but will help identify exposure to issues and the need for further review. 

▪ Perform a limited assessment of accessible areas of the building(s) for the presence of fungal growth, conditions conducive to fungal 
growth, and/or evidence of moisture. EMG will also interview Project personnel regarding the presence of any known or suspected 
fungal growth, elevated relative humidity, water intrusion, or mildew-like odors.  Potentially affected areas will be photographed.  
Sampling will not be considered in routine assessments. 

▪ List the current utility service providers. 

▪ Review maintenance records and procedures with the in-place maintenance personnel. 

▪ Observe a representative sample of the interior spaces/units, including vacant spaces/units, in order to gain a clear understanding of 
the property’s overall condition.  Other areas to be observed include the exterior of the property, the roofs, interior common areas, and 
the significant mechanical, electrical and elevator equipment rooms. 

▪ Provide recommendations for additional studies, if required, with related budgetary information. 

▪ Provide an Executive Summary at the beginning of this report.  

▪ Prepare a mechanical equipment inventory list. 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

7 

   

2.3. Personnel Interviewed 

The management and maintenance staff were interviewed for specific information relating to the physical property, available maintenance 
procedures, historical performance of key building systems and components, available drawings and other documentation.  The following 
personnel from the facility were interviewed in the process of conducting the FCA: 

 

Name and Title Organization Phone Number 

Pat Gierl 
Director of Facilities 
Lincoln County 

Lincoln County 715.218.6756 

John Hanson 
Director of Maintenance 
Pine Crest Nursing Home 

Lincoln County 715.539.2537 

 

The FCA was performed with the assistance of the onsite Point of Contact (POC), who was cooperative and provided information that 
appeared to be accurate based upon subsequent site observations.  The onsite contact is completely knowledgeable about the subject 
property and answered most questions posed during the interview process.  The POC’s management involvement at the property has 
been for the past 30 years. 

2.4. Documentation Reviewed 

Prior to the FCA, relevant documentation was requested that could aid in the knowledge of the subject property’s physical improvements, 
extent and type of use, and/or assist in identifying material discrepancies between reported information and observed conditions.  The 
review of submitted documents does not include comment on the accuracy of such documents or their preparation, methodology, or 
protocol.  The Documentation Request Form is provided in Appendix E. 

Although Appendix E provides a summary of the documents requested or obtained, the following list provides more specific details about 
some of the documents that were reviewed or obtained during the site visit. 

▪ None  

2.5. Pre-Survey Questionnaire  

A Pre-Survey Questionnaire was sent to the POC prior to the site visit.  The questionnaire is included in Appendix E.  Information obtained 
from the questionnaire has been used in preparation of this report. 

2.6. Weather Conditions 

Dec 4, 2019:  Cloudy, with temperatures in the 30s (°F) and light winds. There was approximately 5 inches of snow on the ground at the 
time of the site visit. 

Dec 5, 2019:  Cloudy, with temperatures in the 30s (°F) and light winds. There was approximately 5 inches of snow on the ground at the 
time of the site visit. 

Dec 6, 2019:  Cloudy, with temperatures in the 20s (°F) and light winds. There was approximately 5 inches of snow on the ground at the 
time of the site visit. 

 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

8 

   

3 .  Ac c es s ib i l i t y  an d  P r op e r t y  R es ea rc h  

3.1. ADA Accessibi l ity  

Generally, Title III of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) prohibits discrimination by entities to access and use of “areas of public 
accommodations” and “commercial facilities” on the basis of disability.  Regardless of its age, these areas and facilities must be 

maintained and operated to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines (ADAAG). 

Buildings completed and occupied after January 26, 1992 are required to comply fully with the ADAAG.  Existing facilities constructed 
prior to this date are held to the lesser standard of compliance to the extent allowed by structural feasibility and the financial resources 

available.  As an alternative, a reasonable accommodation pertaining to the deficiency must be made. 

During the FCA, a limited visual observation for ADA accessibility compliance was conducted.  The scope of the visual observation was 
limited to those areas set forth in EMG’s Abbreviated Accessibility Checklist provided in Appendix D of this report.  It is understood by the 
Client that the limited observations described herein does not comprise a full ADA Compliance Survey, and that such a survey is beyond 
the scope of EMG’s undertaking.  Only a representative sample of areas was observed and, other than as shown on the Abbreviated 
Accessibility Checklist, actual measurements were not taken to verify compliance.   

The facility generally appears to be accessible as stated within the defined priorities of Title III of the Americans with Disabilities Act. 

A full ADA Compliance Survey may reveal some aspects of the property that are not in compliance. 

 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

9 

   

4 .  Ex i s t i n g  B u i l d i n g  As s es s m en t  

4.1. Unit or Space Types 

All 155,000 square feet of the building are occupied by a single occupant, Pine Crest Nursing Home.  The spaces are mostly a combination 
of rehab rooms, therapy, laboratory spaces, activity space, chapel space, dining space and supporting restrooms, administrative offices, 

mechanical and other utility spaces. 

4.2. Inaccessible Areas or Key Spaces Not Observed 

A representative sample of the interior spaces were observed in order to gain a clear understanding of the property’s overall condition.  
Other areas accessed included the site within the property boundaries, exterior of the property and the roof. All areas of the property were 

available for observation during the site visit.   

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

10 

   

5 .  S i t e  I m p rov em e n t s  

5.1. Uti l it ies 

The following table identifies the utility suppliers and the condition and adequacy of the services. 

Site Utilities 

Utility Supplier Condition and Adequacy 

Sanitary sewer City of Merrill Good 

Storm sewer City of Merrill Good 

Domestic water City of Merrill Good 

Electric service Wisconsin Public Service Good 

Natural gas service Wisconsin Public Service Good 

Actions/Comments: 

▪ According to the POC, the utilities provided are adequate for the property.  There are no unique, onsite utility systems such as septic 
systems, water or waste water treatment plants, or propane gas tanks. 

5.2. Parking, Paving, and Sidewalks  

Item Description 

Main Ingress and Egress East Sixth Street 

Access from South 

Additional Entrances North Sales Street 

Additional Access from West 

 

Paving and Flatwork 

Item Material Last Work Done Condition 

Entrance Driveway Apron Concrete 2 Good 

Parking Lot Asphalt 15+ Poor 

Drive Aisles Asphalt 15+ Poor 

Service Aisles Asphalt 15+ Poor 

Sidewalks Concrete 10 Fair 

Curbs Concrete 10 Fair 

Site Stairs Cast-in-place concrete 15+ Good 

Pedestrian Ramps None -- -- 

 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

11 

   

Parking Count 

Open Lot Carport Private Garage 
Subterranean 

Garage 
Freestanding Parking 

Structure 

273 -- -- -- -- 

Total Number of ADA Compliant Spaces 25 

Number of ADA Compliant Spaces for Vans 10 

Total Parking Spaces 273 

Parking Ratio (Spaces/1000 sf) 1.8 

Method of Obtaining Parking Count Physical count 

 

Exterior Stairs 

Location Material Handrails Condition 

Front Entrance Concrete stairs Metal Good 

Anticipated Lifecycle Replacements: 

▪ Asphalt seal coating 

▪ Asphalt pavement 

Actions/Comments: 

▪ The asphalt pavement exhibits significant areas of failure and deterioration, such as alligator cracking, transverse cracking, extensive 
raveling, and localized depressions.  Complete milling and overlay of the entire lot is recommended.   

5.3. Drainage Systems and Erosion Control  

Drainage System and Erosion Control 

System Exists at Site Condition 

Surface Flow ☒ Good 

Inlets ☐ -- 

Swales ☒ Good 

Detention pond ☒ Good 

Lagoons ☐ -- 

Ponds ☐ -- 

Underground Piping ☒ Good 

Pits ☐ -- 

Municipal System ☒ Good 

Dry Well ☐ -- 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

12 

   

Anticipated Lifecycle Replacements: 

▪ No components of significance  

Actions/Comments: 

▪ There is no evidence of storm water runoff from adjacent properties.  The storm water system appears to provide adequate runoff 
capacity.  There is no evidence of major ponding or erosion. 

5.4. Topography and Landscaping  

Item Description 

Site Topography 
Slopes gently down from the west side of the property to the east property 
line. 

Landscaping 
Trees Grass 

Flower 
Beds 

Planters 
Drought 
Tolerant 
Plants 

Decorative 
Stone 

None 

☒ ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Landscaping 
Condition 

Fair 

Irrigation 

Automatic 
Underground 

Drip Hand Watering None 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

Irrigation Condition -- 

 

Retaining Walls 

Type Location Condition 

None -- -- 

Anticipated Lifecycle Replacements: 

▪ No components of significance  

Actions/Comments: 

▪ The topography and adjacent uses do not appear to present conditions detrimental to the property.  There are no significant areas of 
erosion. 

5.5. General Site Improvements 

Property Signage 

Property Signage Post mounted wood 

Street Address Displayed? No 

 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

13 

   

Site and Building Lighting 

Site Lighting 

None Pole Mounted Bollard Lights 
Ground 

Mounted 
Parking Lot 
Pole Type 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

Good 

Building Lighting 

None Wall Mounted Recessed Soffit 

☒ ☐ ☐ 

-- 

 

Site Fencing 

Type Location Condition 

None -- -- 

 

Refuse Disposal 

Refuse Disposal Common area dumpsters 

Dumpster Locations Mounting Enclosure Contracted? Condition 

Dock 
Asphalt 
paving 

None Yes Fair 

 

Other Site Amenities 

 Description Location Condition 

Playground Equipment None -- -- 

Tennis Courts None -- -- 

Basketball Court None -- -- 

Swimming Pool None -- -- 

Anticipated Lifecycle Replacements: 

▪ Signage 

▪ Exterior lighting 

Actions/Comments: 

▪ No significant actions are identified at the present time.  On-going periodic maintenance is highly recommended.  Future lifecycle 
replacements of the components listed above will be required.   

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

14 

   

6 .  B u i l d i ng  A rc h i t e c t u ra l  an d  S t ru c t u ra l  Sy s t em s  

6.1. Foundations 

Building Foundation 

Item Description Condition 

Foundation Slab on grade with integral footings Good 

Basement and Crawl Space Concrete slab and masonry walls Fair 

Anticipated Lifecycle Replacements: 

▪ No components of significance 

Actions/Comments: 

▪ Isolated areas of the foundation systems are exposed, which allows for limited observation.  There are no significant signs of settlement, 
deflection, or movement.  The basement walls appear intact and structurally sound.  There is no evidence of movement or water 
infiltration. 

6.2. Superstructure 

Building Superstructure 

Item Description Condition 

Framing / Load-Bearing Walls Masonry walls Good 

Ground Floor Concrete slab Good 

Upper Floor Framing Concrete beams Good 

Upper Floor Decking Concrete, precast planks Good 

Roof Framing Open-web steel joists Good 

Roof Decking Metal decking Good 

Anticipated Lifecycle Replacements: 

▪ No components of significance 

Actions/Comments: 

▪ The superstructure is exposed in some locations, which allows for limited observation.  Walls and floors appear to be plumb, level, and 
stable.  There are no significant signs of deflection or movement.  

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

15 

   

6.3. Roofing 

Primary Roof (Central Hall) 

Type / Geometry Flat Finish Built-up membrane 

Maintenance In-house Staff Roof Age 45 Years 

Flashing Built-up base and Edge flashing Warranties None 

Parapet Copings None Roof Drains Internal drains 

Fascia None Insulation Rigid Board 

Soffits None Skylights No 

Attics Truss Joists Ponding No 

Ventilation Source-1 NA – Flat roof Leaks Observed No 

Ventilation Source-2 -- Roof Condition Poor 

 
The primary roof is located at Central Hall. 
 

Secondary Roof (Sloped) 

Type / Geometry Hip Roof Finish Asphalt shingles 

Maintenance In-house Staff Roof Age 28 Years 

Flashing Sheet metal Warranties None 

Parapet Copings None Roof Drains Gutters and downspouts 

Fascia Metal Panel Insulation Fiberglass batts 

Soffits Concealed Soffits Skylights No 

Attics Truss Joists Ponding No 

Ventilation Source-1 Soffit Vents Leaks Observed No 

Ventilation Source-2 -- Roof Condition Fair 

 
The secondary roof is located at sloped roofs. 
 

Tertiary Roof (Flat) 

Type / Geometry Flat Finish Single-ply membrane 

Maintenance In-house Staff Roof Age 7 Years 

Flashing Membrane  Warranties Yes 

Parapet Copings None Roof Drains Internal drains 

Fascia None Insulation Rigid Board 

Soffits None Skylights No 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

16 

   

Tertiary Roof (Flat) 

Attics Truss Joists Ponding No 

Ventilation Source-1 NA – Flat roof Leaks Observed No 

Ventilation Source-2 -- Roof Condition Fair 

 
The tertiary roof is located at the flat portions of roof. 
 

Quaternary Roof (2017 additions) 

Type / Geometry Hip Roof Finish Asphalt shingles 

Maintenance In-house Staff Roof Age 2 Years 

Flashing Sheet metal Warranties Yes 

Parapet Copings None Roof Drains Gutters and downspouts 

Fascia Metal Panel Insulation Fiberglass batts 

Soffits Concealed Soffits Skylights No 

Attics Truss Joists Ponding No 

Ventilation Source-1 Soffit Vents Leaks Observed No 

Ventilation Source-2 -- Roof Condition Good 

 
The quaternary roof is located at the new additions A and B buildings. 

Anticipated Lifecycle Replacements: 

▪ Asphalt shingles 

▪ Roof membrane 

▪ Roof flashings (included as part of overall membrane replacement) 

Actions/Comments: 

▪ The roof finishes vary in age.  Information regarding roof warranties or bonds was not available. The roofs are maintained by the in-
house maintenance staff. 

▪ Roof drainage appears to be adequate.  Clearing and minor repair of drain system components should be performed regularly as part 
of the property management’s routine maintenance and operations program 

▪ Roof leaks have been reported by the POC and continue to occur on the primary portion of the flat roof.  The leaks occur along central 
hall.  All active leaks must be repaired pending total recommended replacement.   

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

17 

   

6.4. Exterior Walls 

Building Exterior Walls 

Type Location Condition 

Primary Finish Brick veneer Fair 

Secondary Finish Cement board siding Good 

Accented with Stucco Poor 

Soffits Concealed  Fair 

 

Building sealants (caulking) are located between dissimilar materials, at joints, and around window and door openings. 

Anticipated Lifecycle Replacements: 

▪ Exterior paint 

▪ Stucco 

Actions/Comments: 

▪ The stucco has significant areas of damage mostly along the bottom 3-feet of exterior wall.  The damaged stucco must be  replaced.      

6.5. Exterior and Interior Stairs  

Building Exterior and Interior Stairs 

Type Description Riser Handrail Balusters Condition 

Building Exterior Stairs None -- -- -- -- 

Building Interior Stairs Concrete stairs Closed Metal None Fair 

Anticipated Lifecycle Replacements: 

▪ No components of significance 

Actions/Comments: 

▪ No significant actions are identified at the present time.  On-going periodic maintenance is highly recommended. 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

18 

   

6.6. Exterior Windows and Doors  

Building Windows 

Window Framing Glazing Location 
Window 
Screen 

Condition 

Aluminum framed, operable Double glaze 1992 Sections ☒ Fair 

Vinyl framed, operable Double glaze New Additions ☒ Good 

 

Building Doors 

Main Entrance Doors 
Door Type Condition 

Fully glazed, metal framed Fair 

Secondary Entrance Doors Metal, insulated Fair 

Service Doors Metal, insulated Fair 

Overhead Doors Aluminium Fair 

Anticipated Lifecycle Replacements: 

▪ Windows 

▪ Exterior doors 

Actions/Comments: 

▪ No significant actions are identified at the present time.  On-going periodic maintenance is highly recommended.  Future lifecycle 
replacements of the components listed above will be required.   

▪ There are a significant number of rust damaged exterior door frames, typically at the base.  The damaged frames are recommended 
for replacement.    

6.7. Patio, Terrace, and Balcony 

Not applicable.  There are no patios, terraces, or balconies.   

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

19 

   

7 .  B u i l d i ng  M ec ha n i c a l  a n d  P lum b i ng  Sy s t em s  

7.1. Building Heating, Ventilat ing, and A ir Condit ioning (HVAC) 

Individual Units 

Primary Components Split System Condensing Units 

Cooling (if separate from above) performed via components above 

Quantity and Capacity Ranges 18 units ranging from 3.5 tons/ to 50 tons 

Total Heating or Cooling Capacity 255.5 tons 

Heating Fuel Electric 

Location of Equipment Building exterior 

Space Served by System Entire building  

Age Ranges Vary from 1992 to 2017  

Primary Component Condition Fair 

 

Building Central Heating System 

Primary Heating System Type Hot water boilers 

Quantity and Capacity of Major Components Three boilers at 2929 MBH each; One boiler at 2000 MBH 

Total Heating Capacity 10787 MBH 

Heating Fuel Natural gas 

Location of Major Equipment Mechanical rooms 

Space Served by System Entire building  

Age Ranges Vary from 1975 to 2017  

Boiler Condition Fair 

Heat Exchanger Condition -- 

 

Building Central Cooling System 

Primary Cooling System Type None 

Quantity and Capacity of Major Components -- 

Total Cooling Capacity -- 

Refrigerant -- 

Cooling Towers -- 

Location of Major Equipment -- 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

20 

   

Building Central Cooling System 

Space Served by System -- 

Age Ranges -- 

Chiller Condition -- 

Cooling Tower Condition -- 

 

Distribution System 

HVAC Water Distribution System Two-pipe  

Heating Water Circulation Pump Size & Quantity Nine pumps ranging from 2 to 25 HP each 

Chilled Water Circulation Pump Size & Quantity NA 

Condenser Water Circulation Pump Size & Quantity NA 

Pump Condition Fair 

Air Distribution System Constant and Variable volume 

Quantity and Capacity of Air Handlers 21 air handlers ranging from 5000 to 13720 CFM each  

Location of Air Handlers Mechanical rooms 

Large Spaces the Larger Dedicated AHU’s Serve Patient Halls, New additions 

Age of Air Handlers Vary from 1992 to 2017  

Air Handler Condition Fair 

Terminal Units VAV boxes 

Quantity and Capacity of Terminal Units 
Approximately 66 VAV boxes ranging from 250 to 1300 CFM 
each   

Location of Terminal Units 2017 Additions 

Spaces Served by Terminal Units Throughout facility  

Terminal Unit Condition Good 

 

Supplemental Components 

Supplemental Component #1 Package units 

Location / Space Served by Package units Dining, Kitchen, Activity 

Package units Condition Fair 

Supplemental Component #2 Suspended unit heaters 

Location / Space Served by Unit heaters Mechanical rooms 

Unit heaters Condition Fair 

 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

21 

   

Controls and Ventilation 

HVAC Control System BAS, pneumatic controls 

HVAC Control System Condition Fair 

Building Ventilation Central AHU, with fresh air intake 

Ventilation System Condition Fair 

Anticipated Lifecycle Replacements: 

▪ Boilers 

▪ Air handling units  

▪ Distribution pumps  

▪ VAV boxes 

▪ Package units 

▪ Split system condensing units 

▪ Suspended unit heaters 

▪ Building Automation System (BAS) 

Actions/Comments: 

▪ The HVAC systems are maintained by an outside contractor.  Records of the installation, maintenance, upgrades, and replacement of 
the HVAC equipment at the property have been maintained since the property was first occupied. 

▪ The HVAC equipment varies in age. HVAC equipment is replaced on an "as needed" basis.  

▪ The HVAC equipment appears to be functioning adequately overall.  The maintenance staff  was interviewed about the historical and 
recent performance of the equipment and systems.  No chronic problems were reported and an overall sense of satisfaction with the 
systems was conveyed.  However, due to the inevitable failure of parts and components over time, some of the equipment will require 
replacement.   

▪ The facility HVAC is controlled using an outdated pneumatic system supplied by an air compressor.  For modernization, reliability, and 
increased control, full conversion to a web-based direct digital control (DDC) platform is highly recommended.   

7.2. Building Plumbing and Domestic Hot Water  

Building Plumbing System 

Type Description Condition 

Water Supply Piping Copper -- 

Waste/Sewer Piping Cast iron -- 

Vent Piping Cast iron -- 

Water Meter Location Mechanical room 

 

Domestic Water Heaters or Boilers 

Components Water Heaters 

Fuel Natural gas 

Quantity and Input Capacity 
7 units ranging from 125 MBH to 400 MBH 
each 

Storage Capacity Ranging from 80 to 120 gallons each 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

22 

   

Domestic Water Heaters or Boilers 

Boiler or Water Heater Condition Fair 

Supplementary Storage Tanks? No 

Storage Tank Quantity & Volume -- 

Quantity of Storage Tanks -- 

Storage Tank Condition -- 

Domestic Hot Water Circulation Pumps (3 HP and over) No  

Adequacy of Hot Water Adequate 

Adequacy of Water Pressure Adequate 

 

Plumbing Fixtures 

Water Closets Commercial grade 

Toilet (Water Closet) Flush Rating 1.6 GPF 

Common Area Faucet Nominal Flow Rate 1.0 GPM 

Condition Fair 

Anticipated Lifecycle Replacements: 

▪ Water heaters 

▪ Toilets 

▪ Sinks 

Actions/Comments: 

▪ The plumbing systems appear to be well maintained and functioning adequately.  The water pressure appears to be sufficient.  No 
significant repair actions or short term replacement costs are required.  Routine and periodic maintenance is recommended.  Future 
lifecycle replacements of the components or systems listed above will be required. 

7.3. Building Gas Distr ibution 

Gas service is supplied from the gas main on the adjacent public street.  The gas meter and regulator are located along the exterior wall 
of the building.  The gas distribution piping within the building is malleable steel (black iron). 

Anticipated Lifecycle Replacements: 

▪ No components of significance 

Actions/Comments: 

▪ The pressure and quantity of gas appear to be adequate. 

▪ The gas meter and regulator appear to be functioning adequately and will require routine maintenance. 

▪ Only limited observation of the gas distribution piping can be made due to hidden conditions.   

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

23 

   

7.4. Building Electrical  

Building Electrical Systems 

Electrical Lines Underground Transformer Pad-mounted 

Main Service Size 1600 Amps Volts 277/480 Volt, three-phase 

Meter & Panel Location Electrical room Branch Wiring Copper 

Conduit Metallic 
Step-Down 
Transformers? 

Yes 

Security / Surveillance 
System? 

Yes 
Building Intercom 
System? 

Yes 

Lighting Fixtures T-8, LED 

Main Distribution Condition Fair 

Secondary Panel and 
Transformer Condition 

Fair 

Lighting Condition Fair 

 

Building Emergency System 

Size 150 kW and 400 kW Fuel Diesel 

Generator / UPS Serves 
Emergency lights, 

elevators, etc. 
Tank Location Day tank 

Testing Frequency Bi-Weekly Tank Type Above ground storage tank 

Generator / UPS Condition Fair 

Anticipated Lifecycle Replacements: 

▪ Step-down transformers 

▪ Interior light fixtures 

▪ Emergency generator 

Actions/Comments: 

▪ The onsite electrical systems up to the meter are owned and maintained by the respective utility company. 

▪ The electrical service and capacity appear to be adequate for the property’s demands. 

7.5. Building Elevators and Conveying Systems 

Building Elevators 

Manufacturer Dover  Machinery Location 
Ground floor or basement 

adjacent to shaft 

Safety Stops Electronic 
Emergency 
Equipment 

Yes 

Cab Floor Finish Vinyl-tiled       Cab Wall Finish Plastic-laminated wood  

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

24 

   

Building Elevators 

Hydraulic Elevators Two cars at 4500 LB each  

Overhead Traction 
Elevators 

None 

Freight Elevators None 

Machinery Condition Fair 

Controls Condition Fair 

Cab Finish Condition Fair 

Other Conveyances None 

Other Conveyance 
Condition 

-- 

Anticipated Lifecycle Replacements: 

▪ Elevator controls 

▪ Hydraulic machinery 

Actions/Comments: 

▪ The elevators appear to provide adequate service.  The elevators are serviced by Otis on a routine basis.  The elevator machinery and 
controls appear to be more than 10 years old.  The elevators will require continued periodic maintenance.  

▪ The elevators are inspected on an annual basis by the municipality, and a certificate of inspection is on file in the management office. 

▪ The emergency communication equipment in the elevator cabs appears to be functional.  Equipment testing is not within the scope of 
the work. 

▪ The finishes in the elevator cabs will require replacement.  The cost to replace the finishes is relatively insignificant and the work can 
be performed as part of the property management’s operations program. 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

25 

   

7.6. Fire Protection and Security Systems 

Item Description 

Type Wet pipe 

Fire Alarm System 

Central Alarm Panel ☒ 
Battery-Operated Smoke 

Detectors 
☐ Alarm Horns ☒ 

Annunciator Panels ☒ 
Hard-Wired Smoke 

Detectors 
☒ Strobe Light Alarms ☒ 

Pull Stations ☐ 
Emergency Battery-Pack 

Lighting 
☒ Illuminated EXIT Signs ☒ 

Alarm System 
Condition 

Good 

Sprinkler System 
None ☐ Standpipes ☒ Backflow Preventer ☒ 

Hose Cabinets ☐ Fire Pumps ☐ Siamese Connections ☒ 

Suppression 
Condition 

Good 

Central Alarm Panel 
System 

Location of Alarm Panel Installation Date of Alarm Panel 

Mechanical room 2010 

Fire Extinguishers 
Last Service Date Servicing Current? 

July 2019 Yes 

Hydrant Location Parking lot 

Siamese Location Side of building 

Special Systems Kitchen Suppression System ☒ Computer Room Suppression System ☐ 

Anticipated Lifecycle Replacements: 

▪ Central alarm panel 

▪ Alarm devices and system 

▪ Sprinkler heads 

Actions/Comments: 

▪ No significant actions are identified at the present time.  On-going periodic maintenance is highly recommended.  Future lifecycle 
replacements of the components listed above will be required.   

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

26 

   

8 .  I n t e r i o r  S pac es  

8.1. Interior Finishes 

The facility is used as a medical rehabilitation center and rest home for the County of Lincoln.    

The most significant interior spaces include rehab rooms, therapy, laboratory spaces, activity space, chapel space, dining space and 
supporting restrooms, administrative offices, mechanical and other utility spaces. 

The following table generally describes the locations and typical conditions of the interior finishes within the facility:      

Typical Floor Finishes 

Floor Finish Locations General Condition 

Carpet Lobby, offices Good 

Vinyl tile Patient rooms, corridors Fair 

Ceramic tile Restrooms Fair 

Quarry tile Kitchen Fair 

Faux wood Patient rooms, lounge Good 

Linoleum Restrooms Fair 

Typical Wall Finishes 

Wall Finish Locations General Condition 

Painted drywall Throughout Fair 

Ceramic tile Restrooms, showers Good 

Painted CMU Basement, offices, patient rooms, corridors Fair 

Typical Ceiling Finishes 

Ceiling Finish Locations General Condition 

Painted drywall Restrooms Fair 

Suspended T-bar (Acoustic) Throughout Fair 

Exposed structure Basement, mechanical rooms Fair 

 

Interior Doors 

Item Type Condition 

Interior Doors Solid core wood Good 

Door Framing Metal Good 

Fire Doors Yes Good 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

27 

   

Anticipated Lifecycle Replacements: 

▪ Carpet 

▪ Vinyl tile 

▪ Ceramic tile 

▪ Interior paint 

▪ Suspended acoustic ceiling tile 

▪ Interior doors 

▪ Laundry room washers 

▪ Laundry room dryers 

Actions/Comments: 

▪ It appears that the interior finishes have not been renovated within the last 5 years.  

▪ No significant actions are identified at the present time.  On-going periodic maintenance is highly recommended.  Future lifecycle 
replacements of the components listed above will be required.   

8.2. Commercial Kitchen and Laundry Equipment 

The cafeteria area has a variety of commercial kitchen appliances, fixtures, and equipment.  The equipment is owned and maintained in-
house.   

The cafeteria kitchen includes the following major appliances, fixtures, and equipment: 

 

Commercial Kitchen 

Appliance  Comment  Condition 

Refrigerators Walk-in & Up-right  Fair 

Freezers Walk-in & Up-right  Fair 

Ranges Gas  Fair 

Ovens Gas  Fair 

Griddles / Grills Gas  Fair 

Fryers -- -- 

Hood Exhaust ducted to exterior  Fair 

Dishwasher Owned Fair 

Microwave ☒ Fair 

Ice Machines ☒ Fair 

Steam Tables ☒ Fair 

Work Tables ☒ Fair 

Shelving ☒ Fair 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

28 

   

 

Commercial Laundry 

Equipment Comment  Condition 

Commercial Washing Machines None -- 

Commercial Dryers None -- 

Residential Washers ☐ -- 

Residential Dryers ☐ -- 

Anticipated Lifecycle Replacements: 

▪ Cooking Range  

▪ Convection oven  

▪ Dishwasher     

▪ Walk-in freezer     

▪ Walk-in cooler     

▪ Ice maker  

▪ Refrigerator 

▪ Steamer 

▪ Coffee Maker  

▪ Coolers 

▪ Food warmer   

Actions/Comments: 

▪ No significant actions are identified at the present time.  On-going periodic maintenance is highly recommended.  Future lifecycle 
replacements of the components listed above will be required.   

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

29 

   

9 .  O t h e r  S t r uc t u re s  

Not applicable.  There are no major accessory structures. 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

30 

   

1 0 .  C e r t i f i c a t i o n  

Lincoln County retained EMG to perform this Facility Condition Assessment in connection with its continued operation of Pine Crest 
Nursing Home, 2100 East 6th Street, Merrill, Wisconsin, the “Property”.  It is our understanding that the primary interest of Lincoln County 
is to locate and evaluate materials and building system defects that might significantly affect the value of the property and to determine if 
the present Property has conditions that will have a significant impact on its continued operations. 

The conclusions and recommendations presented in this report are based on the brief review of the plans and records made available to 
our Project Manager during the site visit, interviews of available property management personnel and maintenance contractors familiar 
with the Property, appropriate inquiry of municipal authorities, our Project Manager’s walk-through observations during the site visit, and 
our experience with similar properties. 

No testing, exploratory probing, dismantling or operating of equipment or in depth studies were performed unless specifically required 
under Section 2 of this report.  This assessment did not include engineering calculations to determine the adequacy of the Property’s 
original design or existing systems.  Although walk-through observations were performed, not all areas were observed (See Section 4.2 
for areas observed).  There may be defects in the Property, which were in areas not observed or readily accessible, may not have been 
visible, or were not disclosed by management personnel when questioned.  The report describes property conditions at the time that the 

observations and research were conducted. 

This report has been prepared on behalf of and exclusively for the use of Lincoln County for the purpose stated within Section 2 of this 
report.  The report, or any excerpt thereof, shall not be used by any party other than Lincoln County or for any other purpose than that 

specifically stated in our agreement or within Section 2 of this report without the express written consent of EMG.   

Any reuse or distribution of this report without such consent shall be at Lincoln County and the recipient’s sole risk, without liability to 
EMG. 

 

Prepared by: David Harrell, PE, 

Project Manager 

 

Reviewed by: 

 

 

 Daniel White, 

Technical Report Reviewer for 

Brian Vickers 

Program Manager 

Brian.Vickers@bvna.com 

800.733.0660 x 6243 

 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

31 

   

1 1 .  A p pe nd i c es  

Appendix A: Photographic Record 

Appendix B: Site Plan 

Appendix C: EMG Accessibility Checklist 

Appendix D: Pre-Survey Questionnaire 
 
 
 
 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

 

   
 

Appendix A:   

Photographic Record  

 



LINCOLN COUNTY EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322  

 
 

 

   

 

#1 FRONT ELEVATION 

 

 

#2 400 HALL ELEVATION 

 

 

#3 500 HALL ELEVATION 

 

 

#4 A UNIT ELEVATION 

 

 

#5 A UNIT ELEVATION 

 

 

#6 B UNIT ELEVATION 

 
 
 

 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322  

 
 

 

   

 

#7 B UNIT ELEVATION 

 

 

#8 STOREFRONT, METAL-FRAMED  

 

 

#9 
OVERHEAD/DOCK DOOR, 
ALUMINUM  

 

 

#10 
INTERIOR DOOR, WOOD SOLID-
CORE 

 

 

#11 
LOCKERS, STEEL BAKED 
ENAMEL 

 

 

#12 
INTERIOR WALL FINISH, 
CERAMIC TILE 

 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322  

 
 

 

   

 

#13 
INTERIOR FLOOR FINISH,  
SURFACE WITH EPOXY 
COATING 

 

 

#14 
INTERIOR FLOOR FINISH, 
VINYL TILE (VCT) 

 

 

#15 
INTERIOR FLOOR FINISH, 
CERAMIC TILE 

 

 

#16 
INTERIOR FLOOR FINISH, 
LAMINATE FAUX WOOD 

 

 

#17 
INTERIOR FLOOR FINISH, 
LINOLEUM 

 

 

#18 
INTERIOR FLOOR FINISH, 
VINYL TILE (VCT) 

 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322  

 
 

 

   

 

#19 
INTERIOR FLOOR FINISH, 
LAMINATE FAUX WOOD 

 

 

#20 
INTERIOR FLOOR FINISH, 
CERAMIC TILE 

 

 

#21 
INTERIOR FLOOR FINISH, 
CARPET COMMERCIAL 
STANDARD 

 

 

#22 
INTERIOR CEILING FINISH, 
SUSPENDED ACOUSTICAL TILE 
(ACT) 

 

 

#23 ELEVATOR, HYDRAULIC 

 

 

#24 PASSENGER ELEVATOR  

 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322  

 
 

 

   

 

#25 ELEVATOR CONTROLS 

 

 

#26 
TOILET, COMMERCIAL WATER 
CLOSET 

 

 

#27 
TOILET, COMMERCIAL WATER 
CLOSET 

 

 

#28 SERVICE SINK, LAUNDRY 

 

 

#29 
SINK/LAVATORY, WALL-HUNG, 
VITREOUS CHINA 

 

 

#30 
COMMERCIAL KITCHEN SINK, 
STAINLESS STEEL, 3-BOWL 

 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322  

 
 

 

   

 

#31 
DRINKING FOUNTAIN, 
INTERIOR 

 

 

#32 BACKFLOW PREVENTER 

 

 

#33 WATER HEATER, GAS 

 

 

#34 WATER HEATER, GAS 

 

 

#35 WATER HEATER, GAS 

 

 

#36 AIR COMPRESSOR 

 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322  

 
 

 

   

 

#37 
BOILER, GAS, HIGH 
EFFICIENCY CONDENSING 
STYLE 

 

 

#38 BOILER, GAS 

 

 

#39 BOILER, GAS 

 

 

#40 BOILER, GAS 

 

 

#41 
CONDENSING UNIT, SPLIT 
SYSTEM 

 

 

#42 
CONDENSING UNIT, SPLIT 
SYSTEM 

 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322  

 
 

 

   

 

#43 
CONDENSING UNIT, SPLIT 
SYSTEM 

 

 

#44 AIR HANDLER (AHU) 

 

 

#45 PNEUMATIC CONTROLS 

 

 

#46 AIR HANDLER (AHU) 

 

 

#47 AIR HANDLER (AHU) 

 

 

#48 EXHAUST FAN, ROOF  

 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322  

 
 

 

   

 

#49 FURNACE, GAS 

 

 

#50 UNIT HEATER, HYDRONIC 

 

 

#51 FIRE RISER 

 

 

#52 
FIRE SUPPRESSION SYSTEM, 
COMMERCIAL KITCHEN 

 

 

#53 SECONDARY TRANSFORMER 

 

 

#54 BUILDING/MAIN SWITCHBOARD 

 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322  

 
 

 

   

 

#55 NURSE CALL SYSTEM 

 

 

#56 
FIRE ALARM CONTROL PANEL, 
ADDRESSABLE 

 

 

#57 GENERATOR, GAS 

 

 

#58 
SINK, LABORATORY, 
STAINLESS STEEL  

 

 

#59 
DEFIBRILLATOR (AED), 
CABINET MOUNTED 

 

 

#60 
PATIENT BED, FULLY 
AUTOMATIC/ELECTRIC WITH 
SECONDARY CONTROLS 

 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322  

 
 

 

   

 

#61 
COMMERCIAL KITCHEN, 
GRIDDLE 

 

 

#62 
COMMERCIAL KITCHEN, 
STEAMER, FREESTANDING 

 

 

#63 
COMMERCIAL KITCHEN, 
COFFEE MACHINE 

 

 

#64 
COMMERCIAL KITCHEN, 
EXHAUST HOOD 

 

 

#65 
COMMERCIAL KITCHEN, 
REFRIGERATOR, 2-DOOR 
REACH-IN 

 

 

#66 
PARKING LOTS, ASPHALT 
PAVEMENT 

 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322  

 
 

 

   

 

#67 SITE POLE LIGHT, 20' HIGH 

 

 

#68 SITE LIGHT POLE BASE 

 

 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

 

   
 

Appendix B:   

Site Plan 

 



Site Plan 

 

 

Project Name: 

Lincoln County 

Project Number: 

141484.19R000-001.322 

Source:  

Google Maps 

On-Site Date: 

December 4-6, 2019 
 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

 

   
 

Appendix C:   

EMG Accessibi l i ty  Checkl ist  
 

 



ADA Guidance for Dude and 017 FCA’s 

 ADA Visual Survey Category Ratings (place one X in each row): 

Accessibility Issues 

Category 

Major Issues 

(ADA Study 
Recommended) 

Moderate Issues 

(ADA Study 
Recommended) 

Minor/No Issues 

Parking ☐ ☐ ☒ 

Exterior Accessible 
Route 

☐ ☐ ☒ 

Interior Accessible 
Route ☐ ☐ ☒ 

Public Use Restrooms ☐ ☐ ☒ 

Elevators ☐ ☐ ☒ 

Kitchens/Kitchenettes ☐ ☐ ☒ 

 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

 

   
 

Appendix D:   

Pre-Survey Quest ionnaire  

 



 



 



 



LINCOLN COUNTY      EMG PROJECT NO.:  141484.19R000-001.322 

   

 

   

On the day of the site visit, provide EMG's Field Observer access to all of the available documents listed below.  
Provide copies if possible. 

 

INFORMATION REQUIRED 
 
1. All available construction documents (blueprints) for 
the original construction of the building or for any tenant 
improvement work or other recent construction work. 
 
2. A site plan, preferably 8 1/2" X 11", which depicts the 
arrangement of buildings, roads, parking stalls, and other 
site features. 
 
3. For commercial properties, provide a tenant list which 
identifies the names of each tenant, vacant tenant units, 
the floor area of each tenant space, and the gross and 
net leasable area of the building(s). 
 
4.  For apartment properties, provide a summary of the 
apartment unit types and apartment unit type quantities, 
including the floor area of each apartment unit as 
measured in square feet. 
 
5.  For hotel or nursing home properties, provide a 
summary of the room types and room type quantities. 
 
6.  Copies of Certificates of Occupancy, building permits, 
fire or health department inspection reports, elevator 
inspection certificates, roof or HVAC warranties, or any 
other similar, relevant documents. 
 
7. The names of the local utility companies which serve 
the property, including the water, sewer, electric, gas, 
and phone companies. 

8.  The company name, phone number, and contact 
person of all outside vendors who serve the property, 
such as mechanical contractors, roof contractors, fire 
sprinkler or fire extinguisher testing contractors, and 
elevator contractors. 
 
9.  A summary of recent (over the last 5 years) capital 
improvement work which describes the scope of the 
work and the estimated cost of the improvements.  
Executed contracts or proposals for improvements.  
Historical costs for repairs, improvements, and 
replacements. 
 
10.  Records of system & material ages (roof, MEP, 
paving, finishes, furnishings). 
 
11. Any brochures or marketing information. 
 
12. Appraisal, either current or previously prepared. 
 
13.  Current occupancy percentage and typical turnover 
rate records (for commercial and apartment properties). 
 
14.  Previous reports pertaining to the physical condition 
of property. 
 
15. ADA survey and status of improvements 
implemented. 
 
16.  Current / pending litigation related to property 
condition. 

 

Your timely compliance with this request is greatly appreciated. 

 

 



Maintenance Summary Report for Pine Crest Ad Hock Committee 

 

 Enclosed you will find the Pine Crest Assessment report given to this committee several months 

ago.  (Document A)  In this report I have attempted to lay out the major areas of concern regarding the 

facility and grounds of Pine Crest Nursing facility.  The original facility assessment report was compiled 

prior to January 2020, consequentially the original numbers do not reflect the unprecedented cost 

increases associated with the events of the past several years.  

 

Option A – Remodel Existing Structure 

 Document B reflects an attempt at breaking down the master list into possible annual project 

segments.  The list is in order of importance and / or critical nature.  You will notice the question marks 

on the first project.  This project will require further discussion before a final dollar figure and project 

itinerary is compiled.  You will also notice that my ten year project list does not cover everything on the 

original facility assessment.  I believe we can accomplish a great majority of the other items on the 

original list as part of the ONGOING ANNUAL OPERATING BUDGET which I will cover below. 

 There are two ways to approach the project list.  The greatest cost savings would be to do these 

projects separately as I have them laid out on document #2.  The projects done as separate and 

individual units would be managed by my office, resulting in little to no project management costs.  

Another advantage to smaller annual projects is the minimal inconvenience to residents, guests and 

staff.  The disadvantage is the length of time to complete the list and reality of rising product costs 

stretched out over many years.    The second way to approach this is as a major project with a 

construction firm managing and working in the interest of the county.  While this would speed up the 

overall project to one to two years maximum, a great deal of the tax payer dollars are spent on 

management costs and not infrastructure costs.   

 You will notice a line item marked as “Contingency”.  This line covers all the items that go with a 

project that are not raw materials.  The following list are but a few examples; 

1. Architectural and engineer costs 

2. State and local plan review, fees, permits and submittals 

3. Asbestos abatement fees 

4. Specialized labor costs 

5. Overtime labor costs 

6. Construction Equipment rental costs 

PROJECT TIMELINE SUMMARY 

If Lincoln County proposes to move forward with the improvements for the Pine Crest facility, I 

propose a budget of at least $10,000,000.00 over twelve to fifteen years with all unspent project funds 

remaining after each project in a maintenance account until all items on the list are completed and or 

deemed unnecessary.  I also propose a contingency fund of $3,000,000.00 for the items listed above 

plus inflation costs.  The timeline is roughly ten (10) years, but with timelines, construction delays and 

material lead times, I propose the twelve (12) to fifteen (15) years to accomplish our list.    

Ken.Wickham
Text Box
Appendix M



 

Option B – New Structure 

Generally speaking you can figure $350.00 per square foot to build a new structure on a 

different piece of land.  This cost is basic structure cost with an add of twelve to fifteen percent for soft 

costs (things like utilities infrastructure, parking lots, Project management /Architectural /Engineering/ 

state costs and fees)  You would add another eight to ten percent for contingence costs. 

 

ANNUAL OPERATING BUDGET 

 The Pine Crest Nursing facility will require an annual operating budget of $350,000.00 

starting next year.  As I alluded to above, many of the smaller items on the original facility 

assessment will be covered under the operating budget each year.  I will manage the ongoing 

improvements as time and budgets allow with a monthly report of progress to the Public 

Property committee.  This annual operating budget includes four (4) full time maintenance staff 

solely for that facility.  I, and four (4) other maintenance personnel (not included in this 

operating budget) will continue to assist with all snow removal, lawn care, and other 

maintenance operations required to make that facility successful from a maintenance 

standpoint.   

 

MAINTENANCE DIRECTORS GENERAL CONDITION ASSESSMENT 

 

 As your Maintenance Director I am compelled to ask many questions regarding the overall 

condition of all the county buildings as I discern recommendations moving forward with Pine Crest.  I 

have always contended with the point that the residents of Pine Crest, or any nursing facility for that 

matter, need to have a facility with reliable infrastructure components simply due to the frail and 

vulnerable nature of the residents.  To have major component issues and/or continual problems trying 

to maintain the facility climate control is a receipt for disaster.   

 Pine Crest is just one of many areas in Lincoln County faced with fiscal challenges.  If we spend 

the needed dollars on the Pine Crest facility, do we give up the capital desperately need to properly 

maintain, repair or replace so many other areas in need?  The highways and bridges in this county have 

also reached a critical point where, left unattended due to budget shortfalls, will be past the point of no 

return in just a matter of years.  The Highway facilities need a great deal of capital investment to bring 

them up to speed and/or replacement.  We have a hundred year old courthouse that requires constant 

attention, not to mention the security upgrades being considered.  Any maintenance to this facility, 

given the historical nature of the building, only adds increased costs to an already growing budget 

deficit.  

 

 My concern from a maintenance director’s standpoint is putting all our dollars in one basket.  

We have many areas to contend with and Pine Crest is just one of them.  How does the county contend 



with the growing need for dollars for so many areas, and will we be asking this same question each and 

every year when the next major project arises? 

 

 I look forward to discussing any and all of the many challenges facing Lincoln County at your 

convenience.  I can be reached at 715-218-6756 any time. 

 

Patrick Gierl 

Maintenance Director 

715-218-6756  

January 31st, 2023       



DOCUMENT B

Pine Crest Assessment - Breakdown into possible project units

Year

Water issue at several entrances City Engineer will look at ?

1 Boiler System 850,000.00$        

2 HVAC units Both inside bldg.& rooftop 800,000.00$        

Building Automation system (to join county wide system) 250,000.00$        

3-4 Building Siding 437,000.00$        

Windows 438,000.00$        

Doors (Exterior) 48,000.00$          

Roofing Systems 997,000.00$        

5 Parking Lots / Side Walks / Curb & Gutter 437,000.00$        

6 Sprinkler / Fire suppression system 875,000.00$        

Fire Control System 500,000.00$        

7 Lighting (interior and exterior) 650,000.00$        

Floor Coverings / Walls / Ceiling

Floors 250,000.00$        

Walls 450,000.00$        

Ceilings 260,000.00$        

8 Electrical Systems

New Service to Dietary (shared by HHS) $160,000.00

Generators / Power Feeds / Transformers 470,000.00$        

Door Alarm / Nurse Call System just installed

9 Dietary Equipment (Gas Appliances) 210,000.00$        

Elevator Mods / Upgrades / equipment 4 units in building $170,000 ea

Total 8,082,000.00$     

Contingency fund $3,000,000.00



LINCOLN COUNTY
PINE CREST ANALYSIS
AUGUST 15, 2022

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
CASH 196,187      172,669      739,816      6,345,850   478,117      913,243      1,071,295   1,051,027   1,509,584   3,516,424   2,110,614   2,354,325   2,667,612   2,639,776 2,409,909 

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS (757,743)     (320,812)     1,322,174   2,726,905   1,489,374   1,795,441   2,148,281   2,298,565   2,419,192   3,042,824   3,313,941   3,055,174   3,421,273   3,496,098 3,143,679 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (1,424,592)  (1,149,813)  (1,944,220)  (1,544,339)  (608,728)     (546,513)     (293,544)     (160,449)     (367,429)     (108,117)     187,006      (79,246)       (184,240)     285,997    371,223    

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (1,279,927)  (849,667)     (1,360,547)  (1,003,560)  (57,809)       (83,469)       45,871        204,787      (148,653)     36,336        381,615      232,498      15,098        426,370    447,633    

TAX LEVY 440,815      556,942      632,756      546,800      568,600      499,000      459,050      359,440      359,610      347,250      423,140      510,000      450,000      406,592    336,325    

OPERATING EXPENSES 15,947,339 14,709,589 13,679,182 13,241,871 12,846,161 12,514,162 12,061,251 11,898,810 12,084,674 11,692,534 11,028,527 10,715,218 10,124,143 9,613,251 9,288,051 

NET ASSETS/OP EXP (0.0475)       (0.0218)       0.0967        0.2059        0.1159        0.1435        0.1781        0.1932        0.2002        0.2602        0.3005        0.2851        0.3379        0.3637      0.3385      

NET GAIN W/OUT TAX LEVY (1,720,742)  (1,406,609)  (1,993,303)  (1,550,360)  (626,409)     (582,469)     (413,179)     (154,653)     (508,263)     (310,914)     (41,525)       (277,502)     (434,902)     19,778      111,308    

TAX LEVY/OP EXPS 0.0276        0.0379        0.0463        0.0413        0.0443        0.0399        0.0381        0.0302        0.0298        0.0297        0.0384        0.0476        0.0444        0.0423      0.0362      

CHNG IN NET ASSETS/OP EXP (0.0803)       (0.0578)       (0.0995)       (0.0758)       (0.0045)       (0.0067)       0.0038        0.0172        (0.0123)       0.0031        0.0346        0.0217        0.0015        0.0444      0.0482      

Ken.Wickham
Text Box
Appendix N

Ken.Wickham
Snapshot



 

 

To:  Lincoln County Finance Committee 
From:  Gary D. Olsen, MPA, Executive Director 
Date:  February 27, 2023 
RE:  Pine Crest 2022 Overage 
 
Under the current Tri-County agreement, page 2, Recital F, it reads: 
Lincoln County Nursing Home Administered. On September 17, 2019, 
the Lincoln County Board of Supervisors passed a resolution providing 
for the administration and management of its Nursing Home (Pine 
Crest) by the NCCSP Board. There was a separate Nursing Home 
Management Agreement executed following the adoption of the 
transfer. The NCCSP Board expanded the scope of the Nursing Home 
Operations Committee to assist in the oversight of the operations of 
both Pine Crest Nursing Home and Mount View Care Center. 
 
Recital F references the Nursing Home Management Agreement.  In this agreement on 
page 2, number 9, it reads:   
County Obligation.  Everything done by NCHC under Exhibit A, shall be 
done on behalf of the County and all related obligations incurred shall 
be at the ultimate expense of the County. 
 
Due to the obligations of the agreements, NCHC is requesting Lincoln County to cover the 
loss for Pine Crest Nursing Home for the year ended 2022.  The total amount of this loss 
is $1,126,328 (unaudited).   
 
This loss was due to the State changing how the Supplemental Payments were distributed 
and the reduction in the Certified Public Expenditure (CPE) payments.  Without the loss 
of these revenue sources, Pine Crest Nursing Home would have ended the year with a 
gain. 
 
There is currently an effort to request the State reimburse county nursing homes the 
amounts of Supplemental and CPE funding as was received the previous year.  Because 
of this fact, NCHC is requesting payment only if these funds are not received by July 2023.  
If the State does not increase the amounts of Supplemental or CPE funding by the July 
notice, then NCHC request that Lincoln County pay $1,126,328 (or the final audited 
amount) by July 31, 2023. 
 
Thank you for considering this request and I will be available at your meeting to explain 
this situation in greater detail.   
 
 

Ken.Wickham
Text Box
Appendix O



Pine Crest 500 Unit Operations Proposal 

 

500 unit of Pine Crest Nursing Home was operational until 2020 as a Hospice Unit which had 

census challenges from the start.  Hospice is a shorter-term specialty care that isn’t provided by 

the facility but a third party which is a challenge to keep at full census.  Since 2020, 500 unit has 

been used as a training unit and facility storage.  With recent changes to Medicaid 

reimbursement Pine Crest has seen a 42% increase in daily rates resulting in an average of 

$318/day per patient.  This shift has created a new financial stability for Medicaid populations 

which are the most vulnerable and greatest need in the community. 

Pine Crest has been able to keep census at capacity for its Special Care Unit even through the 

pandemic showing how great of a need memory care is in the Lincoln County community.  

Special Care Unit offers 20 beds with often a waitlist to get in.  The opening of 500 unit as an 

ambulatory memory care unit increases the number of memory care beds from 20 to 38.  

Memory care is a challenge to offer in the home or via technology due to non-predictable 

demands and behaviors, often time resulting in nursing homes being the least restrictive and 

most financially responsible environment for this level of care. 

As noted above the reopening of 500 unit adds 18 additional beds which when full would 

provide additional net income.  Assuming minor vacancies occur throughout the year we would 

budget for an occupancy rate of 16 which would still provide additional net income.  

To reopen 500 unit would have capital costs as a fire door would need to be moved down the 

hallway to increase the size of unit from the 12 it is today to 18 needed for efficiency. 

Additional staff would need to be hired but with this unit opening efficiency is created in special 

care resulting in a smaller net need of staff than opening a stand-alone unit.  It can be 

estimated to become fully operational at budgeted census once capital improvements are 

completed about six months.  Our 2024 budget would include the additional census and 

revenue for projection purposes. 

 

Submitted By: 

NCHC Nursing Home & Financial Leadership Teams  

Ken.Wickham
Text Box
Appendix P


